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Creating value with
unigue solutions.

For forty years, AMI Semiconductor {AMIS) has been unigue among semiconductor
manufacturers for its blend of technology and customer satisfaction. We hold leading
positions in key automotive, medical, industrial, and military and aerospace markets with
our SmartPower, digital signal processing, mixed-signal and ultra-low power capabilities,
coupled with knowledge-based IP system-level expertise and unequaled service.

Our broad range of sificon solutions allows our customers to mare fully aptimize
their products. AMIS offers mixed-signal and digital custom-designed application-specific
integrated circuits and standard products that target the sweet spot of our strategic
markets. By combining our core competencies in signal processing, high voitage, low
power and others - we help our customers deliver highly differentiated, highly integrated
solutions for their increasing complex applications, such as automotive engine control .
circuits, implantable medical devices and industrial sensor interfaces, thus c;reaﬁpg value ’

3 ~

with high-performance products. )

-
With complementary products, deep technical knowledge and excellent customer
service, AMIS is uniquely positioned to.continue as a leader in our targeted markets, all of

which have excellent growth potential. We offer “real world” solutions that enhance the

quality of life for all of us.
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During 20086, we celebrated our 40th anniversary, generated record revenue in
excess of $600 million and made good progress toward improving operations

$517.3
$503.6

and gross margins. These are great examples of how we are executing toward our

]

]

objective of maintaining and growing our position as a leading semiconductor company in
the strategic end markets of automotive, medical, industrial, and military and aercspace.

] $454.2

Our predecessor company, American Microsystems, inc., was founded in Santa
Clara, California in 1266, and over the last decade we have significantly expanded our ‘
core competencies, developed a strong reputation for quality, established a global
presence, and developed a leadership position in our strategic end markets. Not many

| $345.3

semiconductor companies can claim such impressive longevity and success.

Qur unigue history, capabilities and strategic business model haven't come without
some challenges. During 2008, | identified some of our recent issues and provided plans
to address each of the deficiencies. Most notably, | outlined the operational challenges we
faced as a resuit of having to move our back-end operations as well as inefficiency in our
front-end. I'm pleased to report that we made progress on remedying these items during
the year and | anticipate further improvernents in 2007

These improvements are now being led by our new President and COQ,
Ted Tewksbury. Ted joined us from Maxim Integrated Products where he ran 11 product
lines, established the company’s high-speed data converter and high-performance RF
businesses and introduced over 180 new products. I'm confident our operations will

continue to improve under Ted'’s keen leadership and his metrics-driven approach to
problem resolution.
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ASSP Revenue as a
Percent of Total Revenue

STRATEGY

Qur refined strategy going into 2007 continues to focus on our core competencies
of high voltage, low power mixed-signal and digital capability; high quality and customer
satisfaction; as well as operational excellence to drive margin improvement. The main
strategic drivers in 2007 include:

i Continuing to leverage our core competencies where we have a competitive
w
o
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advantage in our target markets. Today, we enable customers in our target markets
to address their challenges with higher functionality, smaller form factor, lower power,
improved price for performance, and faster time-to-market products. Examples of this
include }nixed-signal design for our unique SmartPower offering and products that
perform in extreme/harsh environments, low power digital signal processing, and digital
design and FPGA conversions.

8%
Continuing to be a leader in our target end markets of automotive, medical,
industrial, and military and aerospace. We intend to accomplish this by enhancing and
adding to our already strong customer relationships, growing our presence in the strategic
Asian market, and further utilizing and enhancing our unigue core competencies.

Continuing to improve gross margins. We also plan to begin increasing our pricing
power by leveraging the unique qualities of our core competencies and by offering more
complete solutions to customers in our target markets. These solutions include custom
2% and application specific standard product (ASSP) solutions; enhanced intellectual
property; software; applications and systems expertise.

Continuing to expand our ASSP offerings. We plan to expand our ASSP offerings
by leveraging our existing intellectual property, superior end market knowledge and
semiconductor design capabilities. ASSPs provide margin enhancement opportunities

because they contain our intellectual property and we can sell them to multiple customers
without significant incremental research and development spending. In addition, we
expect our ASSP initiative to help provide faster time-to-market solutions for our customers.
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Revenue in Design Pipeline

2005 2006

Improved execution. We intend to focus on operational excellence through
flawless execution to drive efficiencies and higher gross margins. This includes
transferring technologies to optimize asset use, insourcing test and continuing our solid
execution in bringing new products into production.

DESIGN WINS UPDATE

Entering 2007, our development pipeline is at a record level. In fact, the revenue in
design - based on the projected first three years of production — has increased by 73
percent since the beginning of 2005. This robust design pipeline and the corresponding
products we expect to enter preduction, support our outlook for future growth.

During 2006, our design wins, as measured by anticipated three-year revenue, were
. . , . . Number of Design Wins
down nine percent year over year. This decline was driven by two factors: first, we are
increasing our ASSP offerings and as a result we saw strong growth in ASSP designs.
ASSP design wins were up 83 percent year over year based on projected three-year
revenue. This depresses our total projected revenue as these designs individually are
typically smaller than custom designs. However, we anticipate that there will be many

repeat wins for the same products with different customers in the future and these
products will drive higher revenue than many of our standard products.

Second, we are being more selective in the designs we are accepting. The benefit
of this diligence is that our design win quality is increasing. For example, as measured
at the end of 2006, eight percent of the designs won in the period between 2003 and
2006 will never go into production, compared to 14 percent as measured at the end of
2005 for the previous three-year period.
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2006 Revenue by End Market

UPDATE ON TARGET MARKETS

We continue to believe in the strength and stability of our target end markets.
During 20086, we set several records for quarterly and annual revenues in several of

these markets. When compared to |ast year, we grew revenue in our autormotive and
Industrial 27% medical end markets by nearly 12 percent and industrial by nearly 50 percent. An
Automotive 24% overview of each of our target markets follows:

Medical 16%

®

®

© Automotive: We saw good growth in the automotive market in 2006, driven once again
® Communications 1%

®

O

@

c e 9% by increasing content, continued success in the European market and strength in
omputing 9%

Mil/Aero 8%
Consumer 5%

our in-vehicle networking, angle positioning and gyro sensing, and motor control
solutions. In fact, we set a record for quarterly revenue in the automotive market
in the third quarter and followed this with a new record in the fourth quarter, Cur
current automoitive product pipeline continues to be strong and we expect healthy
growth in this market in 2007

| 2006 R b Medical: We had another strong year for medical products and continue to be excited
: evenue by L .

| Geographic Region about the long-term opportunities in this market. 2006 revenues were up 11

| . ,

percent year over year due to strength in each of the medical sub-segments

of audiology, imaging, implantable and personal devices. We also completed
two strategic acquisitions during 2006 to enhance our medical offering. These
acquisitions are discussed in more detail in a subsequent section of this letier.
Despite an anticipated seasonal decline in first quarter revenue, we expect solid
medical growth in 2007,

Industrial: We had a great year in the industrial end market with record revenues derived

from broad product applications for an equally diverse base of customers. Much

O Americas 42% of our current momentum in the industrial market is due to the applicability of the
® Europe 35% analog array products that we acquired as part of the acquisition of the semiconductor
@ Asia 23% business of Flextronics in 2005, Turning to 2007 we anticipate modest growth in this

market for the full year.

._._f!mi‘.: i h:]ﬁk Lﬂ}}yﬂl e
ll “3 Rt

™ e EaYaXalew
o /

. ; -~
Y e - u...u (/\I\J

-
—~ e "('\I\“Qﬂﬁ NS e S e -
L. O A wrwnaSrars W L

il o ':ﬂ'ﬂ Q Rl Q E

.‘u.u s L W R W

"'-"“'"f'\"
e o oe N N

ﬁ)(r\n i




Non-GAAP Gross Margin

| 43.8%
| 47.6%
| 47.3%

] 37.8%

Military and Aerospace: Our unique product and design capabilities continue to
expand our opportunities in the mil/aero market, particularly for our digital
business. We anticipate that 2007 will be a good year for this market based on new
product introductions and ramps,

OPERATIONS AND MARGIN IMPROVEMENT INITIATIVE

Our main priority is improving operations to increase gross margins and generate

2005

2002 [
[
2004 [
|
2000 D ;9%

2003

greater operating leverage. I'm pleased to report that we made good progress
toward our target operating model in the fourth quarter of 2006 through operational
improvements, especially in our fabs. Looking ahead, our plans for 2007 are focused on

margin improvement initiatives through operational excellence. Operational excellence

includes maximizing our fab utilization through dynamic capacity allocation, minimizing Non-GAAP Operating Margin

test cosis through increased in-sourcing, consoelidating logistics and shipping,

improved yields, and reduced test times. 2
@*
The graphs to the right iflustrate the opportunity we have to improve gross and @ ] Bcg o
) - 4 )
operating margins. And the margin improvement initiatives outlined above show our g 102 5
continued commitment to achieve our target model of 50 percent gross margin and i mEna
20 percent operating margin. -8 T
)
r~
REVENUE H
. . . SN S
As | mentioned earlier, during 2006, we had record annual revenues of $605.6
million, driven primarily by strength in our industrial and automotive end markets. In 2 8 8 8 ¢
o~ o~ ™~ L] (]

addition, we achieved our target of bringing over $100M of new designs into production
in 2006 — and plan to achieve $120 million in 2007
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Last year | mentioned that we had a higher number of older products rolling off
compared to historical averages. I'm happy to report that as expected, at the end of
2008, old product roll-off was back to more historical levels of approximately 10 to 15
percent. In addition, we introduced a record number of new products during the year.

ACQUISITIONS

During the past year we completed two strategic acquisitions to enhance our
leadership position in the medical market. First, we announced a long-term supply
agreement with and acquired certain assets of Starkey Laboratory’s integrated circuit
design center for approximately $6 million in cash. The supply agreement and the
added design resources add scale to our growing audiology core competencies and
strengthen our relationship with Starkey.

Second, we completed the acquisition of the medical SOC and ultra-low power
{ULP) six transistor SRAM businesses of NanoAmp Solutions, inc. for approximately
$21 million in cash. We are excited about the opportunities created by the combination
of our ULP mixed-signal and DSP capabilities with the newly acquired class-leading
ULP SRAM technology from NanoAmp. This combination of technologies expands our
product offering to include a full fine of ULP solutions primarily for the medical market.

Stock Performance

This graph compares the change in the B1A0 oo etreeeeeee e ceeemeeetesebestesr semcemtesseeeseeessraanaanne lasararmnsann e ereenreanns
total stockholder return on our common
stock against the Nasdaq National Mar
ket Composite Index, the Philadelphia
Stock Exchange Semiconductor Index,

4 NASDAQ
$120

4 Phitadalphia Semi Index
$100

4 Average of Comparable

and a pegr group of companies from $80 Companies
September 24, 2003, the first day our
stock was traded on the Nasdaq Stock $60 .. o

Market, to December 28, 20086, the
last trading day in our fiscal year ended l
December 31, 2006. The graph assumes 20 .
that investments of $100 were made j

September 24 2003 fn our common $0 L) B T UL O | | T N I I AN |
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The integration and expected financial contribution of these acquisitions
continues to proceed as planned. Looking ahead, our acquisition strategy is to
focus on strategic acquisitions that increase market share in our target markets,
enhance core competencies, are accretive within a few quarters, and/or enhance
size and scale.

2007 GOALS

I am very pleased with our accomplishments this past year but remain focused
‘ on generating mere operating leverage for our business going forward. As such, our
! goals for 2007 include:
|

|

|

]

|

» Successfully execute on our margin improvernent initiatives
Christine King

Chief Executive Officer

= Grow revenue at or above our target end market growth rates

u Grow market share in our target end markets

s |ncrease our standard products offering toward a long-term goat of 20 percent of revenue
s Further strengthen our balance sheet and maximize free cash flow

= Enhance our already high customer satisfaction rating

s Grow our earnings per share higher than our revenue growth

The people at AMIS are ready to take the company to the next level of performance.
In addition, we have new leadership driving greater operational efficiency through our
gross margin improvement plan, a growing portfolio of ASSP designs and products, and

|
I

|

|

‘ a record level of designs in our pipeline. As you can see, we are committed to achieving

. greater operating leverage in 2007 Finally, and perhaps most importantly, we will continue

to provide unique solutions to our world class custorners.

Chuishie

| Christine King, Chief Executive G#Hicer

Hi

| am very pleased with our
ccomplishments this past year

but remain focused on generating
more operating leverage for our

cusiness going forward.”
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Supplying it All: Design, Initial Production,
Growth, and High Volume

QOur unique, valued solutions are trusted by our customers. We believe we are the
sole-source provider for the majority of our integrated mixed-signal products, and due to the
nature of our products and the markets we serve, we estimate our average product life to
be eight to ten years.

ASSPs drive increased profits by enabling us to sell our unique product definition IP and
by leveraging a given engineering investment over multiple customers.

Automotive: Today's vehicles have more than two and a half miles of wiring that
interconnect sensors, actuators and controllers, AMIE Semiconductor's control ar[ea network
{CAN) transceivers deliver the high-speed/low power operation needed to interconnect
these vehicle systerns, reducing total cost and vehicle weight and improving overall
performance.

Qur unigue system-on-chip (SoC) approach combined with our SmartPower|technology
to drive actuators and motor control enable the intelligence behind many of the innovative
electronics being implanted by autornotive equipment makers worldwide. Dynamic
breaking and stability control, adaptive lighting and night vision, and occupant sensing and
duail stage air bags are just a few of the applications that are fast becorming the standard in

Medical: AMIS plays a significant role in the development of cutting edge medical
devices. OQur ultra-low power technologies continue to contribute to improving the lives
of people around the world. Implantable medical devices can remain in the body much
longer. State-of-the-art hearing aid applications, including cochlear implants - a device that
stimulates hearing nerve fibers directly inside the cochlear - are providing useful hearing and
improved communication to those w;ith severe to profound hearing loss. At AMIS, quality is
more than a product spec, it's a life saving benefit.

Industrial: Our industrial market consists of broad-based manufacturers with high
volume and low volatility sales. Utility custorners design flow-metering devices with us; home
manufacturers want cameras and sensors for residential security. AMIS recently announced
the first commermally avallable 2400 dot per-inch CMOS image sensor - a resolutlon
éémFaBI_ee—ta Engh quahty magazine pnmmg It lowers the cost of st scanrung photographs
because it responds linearly to color brightness. This capability is unmatched by our competition

and needed in scanners, check readers, office automation and security product's

Miiitary/Aerospace: Mil/Aero companies want hlgh reliability solutions to mamta:n and’
improve the security of our nation. Our unique product and technology expemse enables
extreme environmental performance in military intelligence, ‘commercial and military
avionics, and tactical missiles/munitions. ’AM\]S is committed to providing assured end-of-life
supply and is military specification quality certified.




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TOQ SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006
or

[0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURILTIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number 000-50397

AMIS Holdings, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 51-0309588
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
2300 Buckskin Road Pocatello, ID 83201
{Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (208) 233-4690

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common stock, $0.01 par value Nasdaq Global Market

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yes [] No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursvant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of
the Act. Yes [ ] No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months {or for such shorter period that the registrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days. Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to Item 4035 of Regulation S-K (Section 229.405
of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive
proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part HI of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K, []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer [] Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer []
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Ruble 12b-2 of the
Act). Yes [] No
State the aggregate market value of the voling and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by
reference to the price at which the common equity was last sold, or the average bid and asked price of such common
equity, as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter. $422,911,430.00

Indicate the number of shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding as of February 23, 2007 was
88,510,483,

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s proxy statement relating to the registrant’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held on or about May 17, 2007 are incorporated by reference into Part I1I of this report.

R AL

e




Table of Contents

Page
PART Lt o i e e e e _l
Tterm 1. BUSINESS .. i e e et i e e e e e s 1
Item 1A. RISK FACTORS .. .. i i i it te et sa it aaens 15
Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS ... .. . . i e 26
Itern 2. PROPERTIES ... i e e it i it e s 26
Item 3. LEGAL PRQCEED[NGS ........................................................ 26
Ilem 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS .................. 27
PAR T I o i e ey 28
Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES ................... 28
Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA ... . e e e e e e 29
Item7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS . .. it i et e e e e 30
Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKETRISK ........ 44
Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA .......... ... .. .. ... 46
Iem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE . . ..ottt it ta et nnnns 83
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES ... .. . i i e 83
Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION ... ... it i i et 83
=N 20 A 84
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ............. 84
Item 11. EXECUTIVECOMPENSATION ... .. i e it e aans 84
Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS ........ ... ... . i 84
Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE . ... ittt it e s et iane e anas 84
Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANTFEES ANDSERVICES ... ... ..o 84
LN 2 U L2 84
Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES ... ...... ... ... ..o 84

SIGNATURES .. oottt e e et i i 835




PART1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INDUSTRY AND
MARKET DATA

This annual report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify
forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “target,"
“anticipates,” “believes,” "estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continues” or the negative of these terms or
other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions and speak only as of the date of this report.
These forward-looking statements are based largely on our current expectations and are subject to a number of
risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from these forward-looking statements. Factors
that could cause or contribute to such differences include the failure to properly execute on anticipated
restructuring plans, the failure to efficiently operate our manufucturing facilities and to take the actions
necessary to increase our gross margins, failure to maintain and improve the quality and effectiveness of our
internal controls over financial reporting, the availability of required capacity at our key subcontractors,
manufacturing underutilization, changes in the conditions affecting our target markets, fluctuations in customer
demand, timing and success of new products, competitive conditions in the semiconductor industry, failure to
properly operate our manufacturing facilities so as to avoid manufacturing defects and unnecessary scrap,
JSailure to successfully integrate the Flextronics, Starkey and NanoAmp Solutions businesses, loss of key
personnel, general economic and political uncertainty, conditions in the semiconductor industry, the other
factors identified under “ Factors that May Affect Our Business and Future Results” in Item A “Risk Factors”
in this annual report on Form 10-K and other risks and uncertainties indicated from time to time in our filings
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). In light of these risks and uncertainties, there can be
no assurance that the matters referred to in the forward-looking statements contained in this annual report will
in fact occur. We do not intend 1o publicly release any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect
evenis or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

[Tt

We obiained the industry, market and competitive position data used throughout this Annual Report of
Form 10-K from our own research, internal surveys and studies conducted by third parties, independent industry
associations or general publications and other publicly available information. In particular, we have based a
portion of our discussion of the semiconductor industry, including forecasted growth in demand for application
specific integrated circuits and application specific standard products and competitive position within the market
Jor these products, on information published by Gartner, Inc., a provider of research and analysis on the global
information technology indusiry. You should be aware that independent industry publications and surveys
generally state that they incorporate information obtained from sources believed to be reliable, bur do not
guarantee the accuracy and completeness of this information. Forecasts are particularly likely to be inaccurate,
especially over long periods of time.

Overview

We are a leader in the design and manufacture of customer-specific mixed signal semiconductor products.
We focus on the automotive, medical, industrial, communications and military and aerospace markets where
there is a significant need for electronic products to interact with the real world through analog signals, such as
light, heat, pressure, power and radio waves. These analog signals are captured, processed, controlled and
converted into digital signals by mixed-signal semiconductors provided by us. Our integrated mixed signal
products combine analog and digital circuitry on a single integrated circuit, or IC, to perform functions that range
from monitoring of human heart rates to determining air pressure in a tire.

Many of our products are customer-specific and are developed according to customers® specifications and
requiremenis. We work closely with our customers to design and manufacture custom 1Cs that enable them to




offer more competitive and differentiated products. We have been supplying many of our customers for over ten
years and our current customers include industry leaders such as Alcatel, General Electric, Hella, Hewlett
Packard, Medtronic and Siemens. We believe we are the sole-source provider for the majority of our integrated
mixed signal products and due to the nature of our products and the markets we serve, we estimate our average
product life to be eight to ten years.

Industry Background

Semiconductors are critical components that serve as fundamental building blocks in a broad array of
electronic products. Continuous technological development has enabled semiconductor suppliers to offer more
feature rich yet lower cost products. As electronic products continue to penetrate most aspects of daily life,
semiconductors are playing an increasingly more important role in our target automotive, medical, industrial,
communications, military and aerospace markets. Electronic products in these markets use semiconductors to
interface with the real world, which monitor, sense, control and communicate between digital and analog
environments. For example, in the automotive sector, semiconductors are used to enhance vehicle performance
and safety as well as provide real time diagnostic information. In the medical sector, semiconductors are used to
improve the quality of medical imaging and patient treatment and diagnostics as well as to enable high
performance implantable and portable devices such as pacemakers, glucose monitors and hearing aids. In the
industrial sector, semiconductors are used to augment the performance of a broad range of products, including
security systems, home appliances and automation equipment. Similar fundamental functions are enabled by
mixed signal semiconductors in military, aerospace and communications markets.

Designers of electronic systems can choose to custom design the functionality of semiconductors they use or
choose from standard or application-specific products available in the market. In any case, electronic system
designers rely on the technical, system-level design and manufacturing expertise of their semiconductor suppliers
to implement their desired functionality in semicenductor products.

According to Gartner, in 2005 woridwide revenues from semiconductors used in the automotive, industrial/
medical and military/aerospace markets were $40.3 billion, representing 17.2% of total semiconductor industry
revenues. Application specific integrated circuits, or ASICs, which we refer to as custom or customer-specific
products, and application specific standard products, or ASSPs, targeted for applications within these markets
generated revenues of $7.6 billion in 2005 and are estimated to reach $12.5 billion in 2010, representing a 10.4%
compound annuat growth rate. We believe this growth is driven both by the unit growth in end products and the
increasing semiconductor content in these products.

Our Solution

We provide complete solutions to our customers through both custom and application specific standard
products and manufacturing services. We believe we add value through our differentiated silicon manufacturing
process technologies, our ability to design complex, highly integrated products, our system level and end market
expertise, our commitment to quality and support for our customers’ products throughout their product lives. We
consider our core technical capabilities to include the following:

»  “Smart power technology”, which involves integration of computing, accurate sensing and high
voltage control capabilities in semiconductors that can operate in rugged high voltage or high
temperature environments. Many devices in automotive and industrial applications operate under high
voltage or in high temperatures and we leverage our smart power capabilities to offer industry leading
high voltage system-on-chip, or SoC devices,

+ Low power signal precessing, which involves integration of analog and digital circuitry to sense,
capture and process data in low power, battery operated environments. We believe we offer one of the
lowest power digital signal processors, or DSPs, available in the market. This technology is broadly
applicable to a growing number of applications in the medical, industrial and other of our end markets.

2




Structured digital conversion, which involves conversion of programmable semiconductors, also
known as field programmable gate arrays, or FPGAs, into application specific integrated circuits that
are lower cost and that have a smaller footprint. Our conversion capabilities leverage our intellectual
property block libraries, circuit design expertise and optimized manufacturing flow to provide our
customers low cost digital products that enable them to improve profitability, performance and increase
reliability, as compared to a standard cell offering, as their products ramp in volume,

Our Strengths

We apply our strengths to enhance our position as a leading supplier of customer-specific mixed signal
semiconductor products. We consider our key strengths to include the following:

We have expertise in developing high quality semiconductor products for demanding
applications. Many of our products operate in harsh environments characterized by heat, vibration,
radiation and other conditions. At the same time, many of them are used in critical applications and
must meet very high reliability standards. Through more than 40 years of experience, we have acquired
capabilities to design and manufacture products with increasingly more features and improved
functionality while maintaining exceptionally high quality and reliability.

We enable our customers to differentiate their products. Our products are the result of close
collaboration with our customers and our thorough knowledge of our customers’ end markets. Together
with our customers, we work to design our customers’ and our own intellectual property, and our
design and manufacturing know-how into our semiconductor components to facilitate the
differentiation of our customers’ products in the marketplace,

We offer complete solutions to our customers. We help our customers tzke advantage of our design
expertise, proven manufacturing process technology, re-usable intellectual property and fiexible
manufacturing facilities to reduce their time to market. We utilize our system architects and our end
market experience to optimize our product designs to meet our customers’ needs.

We have leading market positions in our target markets. We believe our strong market position is
important for winning and retaining key customers and we are focused on increasing our share of the
addressable market.

According to Gartner, we were ranked fourth in 2005 for worldwide automotive ASIC vendor revenue
with an 8.9% market share. We ranked number three in terms of vendor revenue in the combined
industrial/medical ASIC vendor market, with a 9.4% market share. In the military/ aerospace ASIC
segment we ranked second in terms of worldwide vendor revenue with a 15.4% market share.

We also believe we have leading capabilities in FPGA conversions. We are leveraging our strong
position in our end markets to broaden our offering of ASSPs for these markets, and we believe we are
one of the leading providers of ASSPs to the medical market today.

Qur Strategy

Our goal is to be the leading supplier of application-specific mixed signal semiconductor products in our
target markets. To accomplish this goal, we intend to:

Leverage our integrated mixed signal capabilities and systems-level knowledge to further
penetrate our target markets. We intend to continue 1o leverage our core competency of developing
solutions for extreme environments, such as high temperature and high voltage, along with our mixed
signal engineering capabilities, our intellectual property and systerns-level understanding of the
electronic products our customers are developing to enable our customers to introduce market-leading,
differentiated products. Today, we help our customers address the challenges they face in our target
markets with higher functionality, smaller form factor, lower power, improved price for performance
and faster time-to-market products. We are continuing to build new mixed signal and system-on-chip
building blocks and process technologies to keep our customers at the leading edge of product
functionality.



« Continue to streamline our operations to improve efficiency and profitability. Our business has
grown through acquisitions and new product and service introductions. We intend to heighten our focus
on streamlining our operations to drive efficiencies and higher profitability. Most recently, we
announced a restructuring plan to consolidate our design centers worldwide and reduce our headcount
by 80 1o 85 people. We are also implementing plans to improve our tab utilization through closure of
our older generation 4-inch fab, and to improve our backend costs by consolidating our backend
processing in our in-house facility in the Philippines.

» Continue to expand our ASSP portfolio to complement our customer-specific product design
capabilities. We are implementing an initiative to leverage our existing intellectual property, end
markel knowledge and semiconductor design capabilities to expand our ASSP offerings. We believe
this will help us capture more benefit from our research and development spending, while offering a
broader product portfolio and faster time to market for our cusiomers. While an ASSP may generate
less revenue per design win than a customer-specific product, ASSPs can be sold to multiple customers
without significant incremental research and development spending. ASSPs also contain higher
intellectual property content that we develop internally and can therefore, allow far better return on
research and development investment. We aim to increase the share of our revenue that is derived from
ASSPs and we believe that successful implementation of this strategy can improve profitability.

= Continue to increase value added to our customers by offering complete solutions. We offer our
customers design assistance, proprietary intellectual property implemented in both customer-specific
and application specific standard products and manufacturing services. By offering complete solutions
and value added services, we believe we differentiate ourselves from competitors who have not been
focused on our target markets as long as we have been or are not willing to accommodate customers’
demands in the level of volumes or length of product lifecycles that we are focused on.

+ Pursue growth through targeted acquisitions. During the last few years we have completed several
acquisitions including the Mixed Signal Business of Alcatel Microelectronics, Flextronics
Semiconductor Business, Dspfactory, Starkey Laboratories” design center and NanoAmp Solutions.
We intend to continue evaluating acquisition opportunities that we believe will improve our market
presence and add inteliectual property or technical capabilities in our target markets.

The Company and History

We are a holding company and conduct atl our business operations through AMI Semiconductor, Inc., our
wholly-owned subsidiary, and its subsidiaries. We were incorporated in Delaware in 1988. Our headquarters are
located in Pocatello, Idaho, and we have wafer fabrication facilities in Pocatello, Idaho and Oudenaarde,
Belgium, as well as test operations in Calamba, the Philippines.

Our predecessor company was founded in Santa Clara, California in 1966 as American Microsystems, Inc.,
to design and manufacture analog and mixed signal integrated circuits. In the 1980s, American Microsystems
shifted its focus to the design and manufacture of mixed signal and digital custom integrated circuits and, in
1985, entered the digital conversion ASIC business when it completed its first significant conversion project.
American Microsystems was acquired by Gould, Inc. in 1982, which in turn was acquired by a company now
known as Nippon Mining Holdings, Inc. in 1988. Between 1988 and 2000 our predecessor operated at various
times as a division of Nippon Mining and a subsidiary of GA-TEK, which was also a subsidiary of Nippon
Mining. We refer to GA-TEK as our former parent. In 2000 our division was spun out into a subsidiary, and in
December 2000 the subsidiary, Nippon Mining and new investors engaged in a recapitalization transaction
pursuant to which the subsidiary was renamed AMI Semiconductor, Inc., and became our wholly owned
subsidiary. [n June 2002, we acquired the mixed signal business of Alcatel Microelectronics NV from
STMicroelecironics NV, We refer (o this as the MSB acquisition. That same year, we acquired Microsemi’s
Micro Power Products group. Those acquisitions provided us with new capabilities in mixed signal technology,
including high- voltage analog CMOS processes as well as the beginnings of our ultra low power capability. In
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September 2003, we completed an initial public offering. In November 2004, we acquired Dspfactory Ltd.
(Dspfactory), a leader in ultra-low power digital signal processing technology for digital hearing aids and other
low-power applications. We refer to this as the Dspfactory acquisition. This acquisition boosted our ultra-low
power intellectual property and design capability and provided us with in-house signal processing experts. In
September 2003, we acquired the semiconductor business of Flextronics International USA Inc. and certain of its
affiliates, which specializes in custom mixed signal products, image sensors and digital application-specific
integrated circuits including field programmable gate array conversion products. We refer to this as the
Flextronics acquisition. To further strengthen our uitra-low power capability, we purchased certain assets of
Starkey Laboratories’ integrated circuit design center in July 2006 (the Starkey acquisition) and we acquired
certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of the Ultra-Low Power (ULP) six-transistor (6T} SRAM and
medical System-on-Chip (SOC) businesses of NanoAmp Solutions, Inc., in September 2006 (the NanoAmp
acquisition}.

Products and Services

Our products and services are organized into two reportable segments: integrated mixed signal products and
structured digital products. Through these segments, we provide our customers semiconductor products,
manufacturing services for customer-designed semiconductor products and structured digital cost optimization
platforms. See note 19 to the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report on
Form 10-K for information by geographical area. Because we have significant foreign sales and operations and
intend to expand our global presence, we are subject 1o political, economic and other risks we would not face in a
domestic market.

Integrated Mixed Signal Products (77.8% aof 2006 revenue)

We design and manufacture complex, application-specific, integrated mixed signal semiconductor products.
We provide a full range of products and manufacturing services to our customers, including customer specific
mixed signal ICs and ASSPs. We work closely with our customers throughout the design period, typically lasting
from six to 36 months, which allows us to establish long-term working relationships with them. Qur integrated
mixed signal products combine analog and digital functions on a single chip to form either a customer defined
system-level solution specific to the customer’s application or, increasingly, ASSPs which can be used in many
different applications by many different customers.

Customer Specific Integrated Mixed Signal ICs

We help our customers design and manufaciure mixed signal 1Cs custom designed for their applications,
which typically require our semiconductors to interface to an analog sensor, digitize the signal captured by the
sensor, mathematically process the digitized signal and then activate one or more control outputs based on the
results of the signal processing. The proliferation of sensors and the requirement to interface with those sensors
in our target markets are driving the growing need for integrated mixed signal products we provide.

We also provide customer specific mixed signal IC’s through the use of analog array technology. Analog
arrays use proven blocks of circuitry, such as amplifiers, capacitors, data converters, non-volatile memory,
temperature sensors, oscillators, and voltage references, as custom interconnect layers to produce finished semi-
custom products. Analog arrays enable us and our customers to quickly develop a semi-custom mixed signal
product at the lowest possible design cost.

Integrated Mixed Signal ASSPs

The ASSPs that we have developed are targeted towards applications in our core markets and often
complement our custom designs. For example, our line of wireless transceivers is often sold into a particular
application together with a custom product. The pairing allows us to optimally design the custom product to take
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In 2006, 2005 and 2004, our 30 largest customers accounted for 60.4%, 64.4% and 65.8% of our revenue,
respectively. Our three largest customers accounted for the following percentage of revenue for the years
indicated:

Customer m % w

Hella . ..o e 83% 72% 6.7%
MBS .. .. i e e e 59% 59% 5.6%
Alcatel .. 57% 57% 6.5%

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

We sell our products primarily through direct sales personnel and independent sales representatives. In
2006, approximately 97% of our sales were made to original equipment manufacturers or their electronic
manufacturing service providers. Approximately 3% of our 2006 sales were made to distributors. As we continue
to develop our ASSP product catalog, distributors are expected to have our increasing role in addressing the
broader applicable customer base for these products. Contracts with our independent sales representatives and
our distributors are usually terminable by either party on relatively short notice.

We believe that maintaining a technically competent and highly focused group of direct sales personnel
supported by independent sales representatives is the most efficient way to serve our current customers and to
develop and expand our markets and customer base worldwide. Our direct sales organization includes regional
sales managers, field application engineers and account managers. Our direct sales personnel are divided
geographically throughout North America, Europe and the Asia Pacific region to provide localized technical
support. We have strategically located our sales and technical support offices near concentrations of major
customers. As of December 31, 2006, we had 71 direct sales personnel, of which 30 covered North America,
26 covered Europe and 15 covered the Asia Pacific region.

We use our independent sales representatives network to distribute our products, except for mixed signal
foundry services, primarily in North America and the Asia Pacific region, and for a small percentage of our sales
in Europe. Our direct sales personnel support independent sales representatives by regularly calling on existing
and prospective customers. During 2006, 2005 and 2004 we derived approximately 26.3%, 32.7% and 39.2%
respectively, of our revenue from independent sales representatives. Independent sales representatives in North
America do not offer other products that compete directly with our products.

We maintain a dedicated marketing organization, which includes product marketing and strategic marketing
in our business units and segment marketing and field applications engineers located in offices around the world
where they can be close to our customers’ locations.

Generally, orders flow from the customer directly to us or, in the case of North America, to one of our
independent sales representatives. Qur independent sales representatives do not normally carry any product
inventory. Most products are shipped from our warehouse in Calamba, the Philippines, to our customers
worldwide.

Research and Development

As an integrated device manufacturer, our basic strategy is two-fold: we must leverage our in-house analog
CMOS process technologies as well as develop intellectual property to use those processes. We invest in three
core technologies that underpin most of the ICs we produce. We believe that these technologies provide us with
competitive advantages versus other semicondutor companies. The technologies are analog/mixed signal
processes, intellectual property and design skills, especially for applications that require interfacing with high
voltages (5V to 100V); ultra-low power mixed signal IC design, especially for applications that require digital
signal processing; and FPGA conversion intellectual property and design.
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COur expenditures for research and development for 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $104.6 million, $87.4 million
and $77.2 million, respectively, representing 17.3%, 17.4% and 14.9%. of revenue in each of the respective
periods.

During 2003, we reorganized and decentralized our product development organization, resulting in each
segment controlling its respective product development activities. Our research and development efforts focus on
design methodology, intellectual property and process technology for integrated mixed signal and structured
digital products. We have continued to improve our manufacturing processes, design software and design
libraries. We also work closely with our major customers in many research and development activities, including
joint intellectual property development, to increase the likelihood that our products will be more easily designed
into our customers' products and consequently achieve rapid and lasting market acceptance. Areas of focus in
intellectual property development include developing our library of microcontroller, motor control, data
conversion, high voltage (including flash memory), wireless, low power and digital signal processing building
blocks.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, maskwork rights, trademark and trade secret laws and
contractual restrictions to establish the proprietary aspects of our business and technology across our principal
product groups. As of December 31, 2006, we held 108 U.S. patents and 111 foreign patents. We also had over
100 patent applications in progress. The patents are based primarily on circuit design and process techniques. Qur
patents have a typical duration of 20 years from application date. By the end of 2007, approximately 3% of the
patents we currently have will be expiring. We do not expect this to have a material impact on our results, as
these technologies are not revenue producing and we will be able to continue using the technologies associated
with these patents. Pending patent applications or other applications that may be filed may not result in issued
patents. In addition, issued patents may not survive challenges to their validity. However, we believe that the loss
of any one of our patents would not materially affect our business. We have licensed our design libraries and
software 1o selected customers to design products that are then manufactured by us. We may also license
technology from third parties to incorporate into our designs.

As part of the Dspfactory acquisition, we acquired 16 U.S. and foreign patents and 19 patent applications.
As part of the Flextronics acquisition, we acquired 13 U.S. and foreign patents and seven patent applications. As
part of the Starkey acquisition, we acquired two U.S. patents and three patent applications. As part of the
NanoAmp acquisition, we acquired 18 U.S. patents.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other intellectual
property rights. As is typical in the semiconductor industry, from time to time we receive communications from
third parties asserting rights under patents that cover certain of our technologies and alleging infringement of
certain intellectual property rights of others. We expect to receive similar communications in the future. In the
event that any third party had a valid claim against us or our customers, we could be required to:

» discontinue using certain process technologies which could cause us 10 stop manufacturing certain
semiconductors;

* pay substantial monetary damages;
* seek to develop non-infringing technologies, which may not be feasible; or
= seek to acquire licenses to the infringed technology which may not be available on commercially

reasonable terms, if at all.

We were named as a defendant in a complaint filed on Janvary 21, 2003, by Ricoh Company, Ltd. in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California alleging infringement of a patent owned by Ricoh. See
"ltem 3. Legal Proceedings” for a more complete description of the Ricoh claim.
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Manufacturing

We manufacture wafers at our 5-inch fab and an 8-inch fab located in Pocatello, Idaho, and cur 4-inch fab
and a 6-inch fab located in Oudenaarde, Belgium. Qur wafer fabrication technology is based on CMOS,
BiCMOS and high voltage processes. During the third quarter of 20085, we announced the intended closure of our
4-inch wafer fabrication facility in Oudenaarde, Belgium. Due to strong demand for products manufactured in
that fab, its closure has been delayed until the first half of 2008.

Our integrated mixed signal products customers do not typically require us to maintain process technologies
below (.35 micron. As a result, our capital expenditure requirements are often less as a percentage of revenue as
compared to purely digital semiconductor companies, which invest in higher cost process technologies below
0.35 micron. We purchase from TSMC 0.15 and .13 micron CMOS wafers that we use in our various product
platforms.

In addition to TSMC, we procure fabricated wafers from third-party foundries, such as Samsung, X-Fab,
Chartered Semiconductor, UMC and Supertex. During 2005, we announced a joint development and foundry
agreement with Magnachip Semiconductor, Ltd., for the development and manufacture of 0.18 micron CMOS
technology for low power medical applications. Purchases under this agreement are expected to begin in 2008.

The table below sets forth information with respect to our wafer fabrication facilities, products and
technologies:

Installed
Annual
Equipment Wafer

Location Products/Functions Capacity(1) Diameter
Pocatello CMOS Wafers, 0.6 micron and above, 2 to 3 metal levels 130,000 5"
Pocatello CMOS Wafers, 0.35 micron to 0.8 micron, 2 to 5 metal levels 78,0002y &
Oudenaarde BiCMOS Wafers, 1 micron, 2 metal levels 130,000 47
Oudenaarde BiCMOS Wafers, 0.35 micron to | micron, 2 to 5 metal levels 112,000(3) 6"

(1) Wafers per year.

(2) By adding additional equipment, production capacity at our 8-inch fab could be increased to 225,000 wafers
per year.

(3) By adding additional equipment, production capacity at our 6-inch fab could be increased to 175,000 wafers
per year.

Fabricated wafers are transferred to third party facilities for packaging and returned to us. We perform wafer
and packaged die testing primarily at cur facility in Calamba, the Philippines. In 2005 and before, we performed
testing at our 85,600 square foot facility in Manila, which was established in 1980. Beginning in the second
quarter of 20035, we began relocating these activities to a new 129,000 square foot facility in Calamba, the
Philippines. As of March 1, 2006 we closed the Manila facility and now perform all of our testing activities at the
new facility. We also outsource back-end packaging and testing to a number of subcontractors in Asia, including
Amkor, ASE, STATSChipPac and AIT.

Our manufacturing processes use many raw materials, including silicon wafers, copper lead frames, molding
compounds, ceramic packages and various chemicals and gases. We obtain raw materiais and supplies from a
large number of sources. Although supplies of raw materials are currently adequate, shortages could occur in
various essential materials due to interruption of supply or increased demand in the industry.

Our manufacturing groups also go through stringent certifications to support our focus on our target markets
of automotive, medical, industrial, military and aerospace, and communications. These markets have very

demanding requirements for quality and reliability. The following standards require third party auditing to
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receive certification. We believe we were the first semiconductor company to independently certify to the
MIL-PRF-38535 QML standard. In 2002 we believe we became the first pure-play custom integrated circuit
manufacturer to attain certification to the telecom TL9000 R3 standard. We became an 1509000 certified
company in 1994, received the QS9000 automotive certification in 1997, a STACK-certified supplier in 2000 and
certified since 2003 to the worldwide automotive 1SO TS16949:2002 standards. We have also been certified to
the ISO14001:1996 environmental standard since 2004, and earned several government-sponsored quality
awards.

Backlog

Reported backlog represents products forecasted or scheduled to be delivered under written purchase orders
within six months. Backlog is influenced by several factors, including market demand, pricing, customer order
patterns and changes in product lead times. Backlog may fluctuate from booking to time of delivery to reflect
changes in customer needs or industry conditions. Once manufacturing has commenced, orders generally are not
cancelable. In addition, because customers already have invested significant time working with us (typically from
stx to 24 months before production of a custom semiconductor) and have incurred the non-recurring engineering
fee in full before production begins, customers generally have given careful consideration to the orders they
place, and generally do not cancel orders. However, backlog may not ultimately be realized as revenue.
Six-month backlog was $158.2 million as of December 31, 2006 and $137.6 million as of December 31, 2005.
The increase was driven by improved demand for our products.

Backlog should not be taken as an indicator of our anticipated revenue for any particular future period. Line
items recorded in backlog may not result in revenue within six months for several reasons, including: (a) we, for
various reasons, may be unable to ship certain customer orders within the specified time frame promised;

{b) customer order delivery dates may be delayed to a subsequent pericd by our customers; and (c) customer
orders may be cancelled at our customers' request. These factors may be offset by, both (a} new customer orders
that are booked subsequent to the backlog reporting date and delivered to the customer within six months and
{b) customer orders with anticipated delivery dates outside six months and subsequently shipped sooner than
originally anticipated. The amount of revenue recognized in excess of backlog during any six-month period
varies and depends greatly on overall capacity in the semiconductor industry and capacity in our manufacturing
facilities. We do not routinely monitor the extent of backlog cancelled, pushed out for later delivery or
accelerated for earlier delivery.

Seasonality

Generally, we are affected by the seasonal trends of the semiconductor and related electronics industries.
However, we believe our revenues are less susceptible to seasonality than some other semiconductor companies
because of a lower concentration of revenues in the communications, computing and consumer markets, which
are generally considered to be more cyclical in nature than our target markets of automotive, medical and
industrial. Typically, revenues are lower in the fourth and first quarters of the year, and higher in the second and
third quarters. In 2006, we experienced sequential growth in revenues in the first three quarters of 2006. Normal
seasonality returned as revenues declined in the fourth quarter. Specific conditions in any given year, such as
inventory corrections, increases and decreases in customer demand, new end-market product cycles or economic
or political events, can override seasonal trends. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.”

Competition

We compete in highly competitive markets. As the semiconductor industry continues to mature, we expect
our competition to intensify. The value we provide our custorers includes our unique process technologies, our
ability to design complex, highly integrated products, our commitment to quality and our commitment to support
our customers’ products throughout their product lives. Although no one company competes with us in all of our
product lines, we face significant competition for products in our twe business areas from domestic, as well as

11




international companies. Some of these companies have substantially greater financial, technical, marketing and
management resources than we have.

Ouwr integraled mixed signal product competitors include larger diversified semiconductor suppliers, such as
STMicroelectronics and Texas Instruments, and smaller end market focused suppliers, such as Elmos, Zarlink
and Gennum. The principal markets we serve in this segment are automotive, medical and industrial. In the
automotive and industrial markets, we believe we are the fourth-largest and third-largest supplier of custom
analog and mixed signal products, respectively. In the medical market, we believe we are one of the leading
suppliers of cusiom and application-specific analog and mixed signal products.

In our integrated mixed signal products segment, we compete with other customer-specific semiconductor
solutions providers based on design experience, manufacturing capability, depth and guality of mixed signal
intellectual property, the ability to service customer needs from the design phase to the shipping of a completed
product, length of design cycle, longevity of technology support and sales and technical support personnel. In our
structured digital products segment, we compete with programmable digital logic product suppliers on the basis
of chip size, performance and production costs. Our ability to compete successfully depends on internal and
external variables, both within and outside of our control. These variables include, but are not limited to, the
timeliness with which we can develop new products and technologies, product performance and quality,
manufacturing yields and availability, customer service, pricing, industry trends and general economic trends.

Altera and Xilinx are our principal competitors for our structured digital products where the primary
business is conversion of FPGAs into structured digital products. We believe we have market leading capabilities
in FPGA conversions.

In addition, companies such as Maxim, Microchip, Linear Technology, LSI Logic and IBM have skills and
base capabilities similar to ours but we do not generally compete with these companies on a direct basis.

Employees

Our worldwide workforce consisted of 2,924 employees (full- and part-time) as of December 31, 2006, of
which 1,180 were located in North America, 926 were located in Europe and 8§18 were located in Asia. None of
our employees in North America or Asia are represented by collective bargaining arrangements. We believe that
our relations with our employees in North America and Asia are satisfactory. The employees located in Belgium
are represented by unions and have collective bargaining arrangements at the national, industry and company
levels. We believe that our relations with our unionized employees in Belgium are satisfactory.

Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to numerous environmental, health and safety laws and regulations that prohibit
or restrict the discharge of pollutants into the environment and regulate employee exposure to hazardous
substances in the workplace. Failure to comply with these laws or our environmental permits could subject us to
material costs and liabilities, including costs to clean up contamination caused by our operations. In addition,
future changes to environmental laws could require us 1o incur significant additional expense or restrict our
operations.

Some environmental laws hold current or previous owners or operators of real property lizble for the costs
of cleaning up contamination, even if these owners or operators did not know of and were not responsible for
such contamination. These environmental laws also impose liability on any person who arranges for the disposal
or treatment of hazardous substances, regardless of whether the affected site is owned or operated by such
person. Third parties may aiso make claims against owners or operators of properties for personal injuries and
property damage associated with releases of hazardous or toxic substances.
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We are required pursuant to an order issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board to
clean up trichloroethylene contaminated groundwater at our former manufacturing facility located in Santa Clara,
California. We are currently monitoring the groundwater and, based on the results of our clean-up efforts to date,
do not expect to be required to implement any other remedial measures. We believe that the annual cost of
operating the groundwater treatment system will be immaterial to our financial statements in 2007, Nippon
Mining Holdings Inc. (formerly known as Japan Energy Corporation) and its subsidiary agreed to indemnify us
for certain existing environmental exposures and to pay certain existing liabilities as part of our recapitalizaticn
in December 2000. However, Nippon Mining or the other indemnifying party may not have the ability to fulfill
their obligations in the future. Unexpected costs that we may incur with respect to environmental matters may
result in additional loss contingencies.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our executive officers as of February 23,
2007.

Name E %

Executive Officers

ChristineKing ............ 57 Chief Executive Officer

Ted Tewksbury ........... 50 President and Chief Operating Officer

David A.Henry ........... 45  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
JonStoner ............... 50  Senjor Vice President and Chief Technology Officer
Charlie Lesko ............ 48  Senior Vice President, Sales & Marketing

Christine King, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director. Ms. King joined us in September 2001 as
President, Chief Executive Officer and a director. From September 2000 to September 2001 Ms. King served as
Vice President of Semiconductor Products for IBM Microelectronics. From September 1998 to September 2000
Ms, King was Vice President of the Networking Technology Business Unit for IBM. Ms. King also served as
Vice President of Marketing and Field Engineering at IBM from June 1995 to September 1998 and Manager of
ASIC Products at IBM from March 1992 to June 1995. While at IBM, Ms. King launched the company's ASIC
and networking businesses. Ms. King holds a B.S. degree in electrical engineering from Fairleigh Dickinson
University. Ms. King serves on the boards of Analog Devices, Inc., a semiconductor company and IDACORP,
Inc., a power company in Boise, Idaho.

Ted Tewksbury, President and Chief Operating Officer. Dr. Tewksbury joined us in 2006, He has over
20 years of semiconductor industry experience, including most recently serving as general manager and
managing director at Maxim Integrated Products, Inc., where he ran 11 product lines, established its high-speed
data converter and high-performance RF businesses, and introduced over 180 new products. Before that,
Dr. Tewksbury served as director of 5iGe RF/analog product development for IBM Microelectronics and as
senior design engineer for Analog Devices. Dr. Tewksbury obtained his bachelors, masters and doctorate degrees
from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

David A. Henry, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Henry has served as our Chief
Financial Officer since April 2004. On February 22, 2007, we announced that Mr. Henry plans to step down as
our Chief Financial Officer due to family reasons but has agreed to remain with us while we search for his
replacement. Prior to joining us, Mr. Henry worked for seven years at Fairchild Semiconductor International,
Inc., where he was Vice President of Finance, Worldwide Operations from November 2002 until April 2004, and
Vice President, Corporate Controller from March 1997 until November 2002. Prior to that, Mr. Henry worked for
eight years at National Semiconductor Corporation, where he held various financial management positions.

Mr. Henry holds an M.B.A. from Santa Clara University, and a B.S. in business administration from the
University of California, Berkeley.
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Jon Stoner, Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer. Mr. Stoner joined us in 1980. Prior to his
current position, Mr. Stoner held various research and development positions, including Senior Vice President,
Technology and Product Development, Director of Standard Products, Director of Technology Planning and New
Business Development and Director of Process Technelogy. Mr. Stoner served as a member of the Advisory
Council to the Idaho State Board of Education for Engineering Education and is a member of the Boise State
Engineering Advisory Board. Mr. Stoner was recently appointed as a member of the Governor's Committee for
Idahe's Experimental Program for Stimulation of Competitive Research. Mr. Stoner holds a B.A. degree in
chemistry from the University of Montana and a M.S. degree in physics from ldaho State University.

Charlie Lesko, Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Lesko joined us in 2003 from Broadcom
Corporation where he was Vice President of North American Sales from July 2002 to May 2003. Mr. Lesko has
an extensive sales and marketing background in the semiconductor industry. Prior to working with Broadcom
Corporation, Mr. Lesko was Vice President of Worldwide Sales for Axcelis Technologies from July 2000 to July
2002. Prior to joining Axcelis, Mr. Lesko held various management positions at Teradyne, Inc. from July 1990 1o
July 2000. Mr. Lesko holds an M.B_A. in finance from the University of Dallas. He earned a B.E. degree in
engineering at State University of New York-Stony Brook.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You
may read and copy any reports, statements and other information we file at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call (800) SEC-0330 for further information on the
Public Reference Room. The SEC also maintains an internet web site that contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. Our filings
are available on the website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov.

We make available, free of charge, through our investor relations page on our website, our reports on

Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after they are
filed with the SEC. You can find this information on our web site at www.amis.com/investor_relations/.
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Item 1A: Risk Factors

We may need to incur impairment and other restructuring charges, which could materially affect our
results of operations and financial conditions.

During industry downturns and for other reasons, we may need to record impairment or restructuring
charges. We have incurred impairment or restructuring charges in each of the fast three fiscal years. In February
2007 we announced a global workforce reduction and consolidation of facilities as well as a reorganization of our
business and the closure of three of our design centers. We expect these actions to result in restructuring charges
ranging between $6.0 million and $7.0 million in the first quarter of 2007. In 2006, we realigned our resources
which involved the termination of certain management and other employees. As of December 31, 2006, total
expenses of approximately $0.6 million related to this plan have been recognized, all of which have been paid.
We do not expect any other material expense to be incurred in relation to this plan. In the first hatf of 2005, we
began relocating our test operations (o a new larger facility in the Philippines and transferring our wafer sort
operations in Pocatello, Idaho and Oudenaarde, Belgium to that new facility. Total expenses to date related to
this restructuring plan totaled approximately $9.8 million, as of December 31, 2006. In August 2005, we
announced a plan to close our 4-inch wafer fabrication facility in Oudenaarde, Belgium. The closure is expecied
to occur during the first half of 2008. We expect this action to result in restructuring charges in the range of
approximately $20.0 million to $23.0 million, of which approximately $5.6 mitlion was recorded in 2006 and
$10.5 million in total to date, with the remainder to be recorded in the rest of 2007 and the first half of 2008. In
the future, we may need to record additional impairment charges or further restructure our business and incur
additional restructuring charges, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or
financial condition, if they are large enough.

We could be adversely affected by manufacturing interruptions or reduced yields.

1n 2005, we began relocating our test operations to a new facility in the Philippines and relocated our sort
operations in the United States and Belgium to this new facility as well. This project was completed during the
first quarter of 2006, However, our current efficiency is not optimum or at the level we have previously achieved.
This move has been further complicated by assembly constraints, which in combination with inefficiencies in our
test operation has resulted in extended lead times and increased inventories. In addition, the fabrication of our
integrated circuits is a highly complex and precise process, requiring production in a tightly controlled, clean
room environment. Minute impurities, difficulties in the fabrication process, defects in the masks used to print
circuits on a wafer or other factors can cause a substantial percentage of wafers to be rejected or numerous die on
each wafer to be nonfunctional. We may experience problems in achieving acceptable yields in the manufacture
of semiconductors, particularly in connection with the production of a new product, the adoption of a new
manufacturing process or any expansion of our manufacturing capacity and related transitions. The interruption
of manufacturing, including power interruptions, or the failure to achieve acceptable manufacturing yields at any
of our wafer fabrication facilities, would adversely affect our business and our gross margins. We are also
planning to close our 4-inch wafer fabrication facility in Oudenaarde. Belgium during the first half of 2008. In
connection with this closure, we will transfer the manufacture of some products to another of our fabrication
facilities. If we experience delays or other technical or other problems during these moves, our costs, efficiencies
and ability to deliver products to customers may be adversely affected and our results of operations could be
adversely affected.
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Our success depends on efficient utilization of our manufacturing capacity, and a failure could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

An important factor in our success is the extent to which we are able to utilize the available capacity in our
fabrication and test facilities. Utilization rates can be negatively affected by periods of industry over- capacity,
low levels of customer orders, operating inefficiencies, obsolescence, mechanical failures and disruption of
operations due to expansion or relocation of operations and fire or other natural disasters. Because many of our
costs are fixed, a reduction in capacity utilization, together with other factors such as yield and product mix,
could adversely affect our operating resuits. The downturn in the semiconductor industry from 2000 to 2003
resulted in a decline in the capacity utilization at our wafer fabrication facilities. In addition, our capacity
utilization for the second half of 2004 declined from the first half of 2004 and that trend continued through 2005.
While we saw an increase in capacity utilization in the first six months of 2006, capacity utilization decreased in
the third and fourth quarters of 2006. If this downward trend continues, our wafer fabrication capacity may be
under-utilized and our inability to quickly reduce fixed costs, such as depreciation and other fixed operating
expenses necessary to operate our wafer manufacturing facilities, would harm our operating results.

We rely on packaging subcontractors, which reliance could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition.

Most of our products are assembled in packages prior to shipment. The packaging of semiconductors is a
complex process requiring, among other things, a high degree of technical skill and advanced equipment. We
outsource our semiconductor packaging to subcontractors, most of which are located in Southeast Asia. We
depend on these subcontractors to package our devices with acceptable quality and yield levels. We rely heavily
on a single subcontractor for packaging. During the fourth quarter of 2005, our principal packaging subcontractor
experienced capacity constraints, which affected our ability to ship products to customers during the guarter and
negatively affected our revenues. We have taken steps to attempt to guarantee capacity in the future, which
caused us to incur additional costs in 2006.

Nevertheless, if our subcontractor experiences problems in packaging our semiconductor devices or ,
experiences prolonged quality or yield problems or continued capacity constraints, our operating results would be
adversely affected.

If we are unable to maintain the quality of our internal control over financial reporting, a weakness could
materially and adversely affect our ability to provide timely and accurate information about our company,
which could harm our reputation and share price.

In connection with the preparation of our financial statements and other reports for the year ended
December 31, 2005, we identified a deficiency in our internal control over financial reporting relating to revenue
recognition that we concluded rose to the level of a "material weakness." Our internal control over financial
reporting was not designed to effectively identify when delivery of products to our customers had occurred and
related revenue could accordingly be recognized. This material weakness was remediated in 2006. In the third
quarter of 2006, we identified an error related to the accounting for income taxes on income deemed to be
distributed to the U.S. parent company from certain of our foreign affiliates. On November 2, 2006, we
concluded that this error was material to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2005. The error also affected our financial statements for the first and second quarters of 2006. We restated the
financial statements for these periods. We further determined that a material weakness existed related to our
income tax controls as of December 31, 2005, and revised our assessment of internal control over financial
reporting to include this additional material weakness when we filed our Form 10-K/A. As of December 31,
2006, this material weakness has been remediated. We cannot be certain that previously remediated material
weaknesses will not recur, that other deficiencies will not arise or be identified or that we will be able to correct
and maintain adequate controls over our financial processes and reporting in the future. Any failure to maintain
adequate controls or to adequately implement required new or improved controls could harm our operating
results or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations in a timely and accurate manner. Ineffective internal
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control over financial reporting could also cause investors 10 lose confidence in our reported financial
information, which could adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their
objectives. However, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does
not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no
matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives
of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues
and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected.

We may face product warranty or product liability claims that are disproportionately higher than the
value of the products involved, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition.

Our products are typically sold at prices that are significantly lower than the cost of the equipment or other
goods in which they are incorporated. Although we maintain rigorous quality control systems, in the ordinary
course of our business we receive warranty claims for some of these products that are defective or that do not
perform to specifications. Since a defect or failure in our product could give rise to failures in the goods that
incorporate them (and consequential claims for damages against our customers from their customers), we may
face claims for damages that are disproportionate to the revenues and profits we receive from the products
involved. See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report on Form 10-K
for further discussion.

We attempt, through our standard terms and conditions of sale and other customer contracts, to limit our
liability for defective products to obligations to replace the defective goods or refund the purchase price.
Nevertheless, we have received claims in the past for other charges, such as for labor and other costs of replacing
defective parts, lost profits and other damages. In addition, our ability to reduce such liabilities may be limited by
the laws or the customary business practices of the countries where we do business. And, even in cases where we
do not believe we have legal liability for such claims, we may choose to pay for them to retain a customer’s
business or goodwill or to settle claims to avoid protracted litigation. In the fourth quarter of 2005, our gross
margin was negatively affected by approximately $3.7 million due to a charge taken related to a quality issue
with one of our customers. We agreed to settle by covering the return of parts in the recalled products for
$5.0 million in cash, which was paid in 2006. Our results of operations and business could be adversely affected
as a result of a significant quality or performance issue in our products if we are required or choose to pay for the
damages that result.

We depend on our key personnel, and the loss of these personnel could have a material effect on our
business.

Our success depends to a large extent upon the continued services of our president and chief executive
officer, Christine King, and our other key executives, managers and skilled personnel, particularly our design
engineers. In July 2005, we signed a new employment agreement with Ms. King that expires on December 31,
2008. On February 22, 2007, we announced that David Henry, our Chief Financial Officer, plans to step down
due to family reasons but has agreed to remain with us while we search for his replacement. While we have
commenced a search for a new Chief Financial Officer, it may take some time to identify a candidate who
possesses the necessary qualifications and is willing to relocate to Pocatello, Idaho. Generally, our employees are
not bound by employment or non-competition agreements and we may not be able to retain our key executives
and employees. We may or may not be able to continue to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel
necessary for our business. Loss of the services of, or failure to recruit, skilled personnel could be significantly
detrimental to our product development programs or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our business.

17




The cyelical nature of the semiconductor industry may limit our ability to maintain or increase revenue
and profit [evels, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial
condition.

The semiconductor industry is cyclical and our ability to respond to downturns is limited, The
semiconductor industry experienced the effects of a significant downturn that began in late 2000 and continued
into 2003. Our business was affected by this downturn. During this downturn, our financial performance was
negatively affected by various factors, including general reductions in inventory levels by customers and excess
production capacity. In addition, our bookings and backlog decreased during the second half of 2004 and
remained sluggish throughout 2003, This resulted in lower revenue in 2003 as compared o 2004. While
bookings and backlog increased during the first nine months of 2006, our bookings and backlog decreased in the
fourth quarter of 2006. We cannot predict whether this will continue or to what extent business conditions will
change in the future. If the soft bookings environment returns for an extended period, or business conditions
change for the worse in the future, these events would materially adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition,

We may not be able to sell the inventories of products on hand, which could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial condition.

In anticipation of the relocation of our test facilities in the Philippines, the consolidation of our sort facilities
in Belgium and the United States into the new facility in the Philippines, and in preparation for the closure of our
4-inch wafer fabrication facility in Oudenaarde, Belgium, and for other reasons, we built up and may continue to
build up inventories of certain products in an effort to prevent or mitigate any interruption of product deliveries
to our customers. In many instances, we have manufactured these products without having first received orders
for them from our customers. Because our products are typically designed for a specific customer and are not
commodity products, if customers do not order the products we have built, we will likely not be able to sell them,
and we may need to record reserves against the valuation of this inventory. If these events occur, it could have a
maierial adverse effect on our results and financial condition.

Our ability to compete successfully and achieve future growth will depend, in part, on our ability to .
protect our proprietary technology, as well as our ability to operate without infringing the proprietary
rights of others, and our inability to do so could have a material adverse effect on our business,

As of December 31, 2006, we held 108 U.S. patents and |11 foreign patents. We also had over 100 patent
applications in progress. By the end of 2007, approximately 3% of the patents we currently have in place will be
expiring. We do not expect this to have a material impact on our results, as these technologies are not revenue
producing and we will be abie to continue using the technologies associated with these patents, We intend to
continue to file patent applications when appropriate to protect our proprietary technologies. The process of
seeking patent protection takes a long time and is expensive. We cannot assure you that patents will issue from
pending or future applications or that, if patents issue, they will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented,
or that the rights granted under the patents will provide us with meaningful protection or any commercial
advantage. In addition, we cannot assure you that other countries in which we market our services will protect
our intellectual property rights to the same extent as the United States,

We also seek to protect our proprietary technologies, including technologies that may not be patented or
patentable, by confidentiality agreements. We cannot assure you that these agreements will not be breached or
that we will have adequate remedies for any breach.

Qur ability to compete successfully depends on our ability to operate without infringing the proprietary
rights of others. In January 2003, Ricoh Company, Ltd., filed in the U.S. District Court for the District of
Delaware a complaint against us and other parties alieging infringement of a patent owned by Ricoh, The case
has been transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California. Ricch is seeking an
injunction and damages in an unspecified amount relating to such alleged infringement. The patents relate to
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certain methodologies for the automated design of custom semiconductors. This case had been scheduled to go to
trial in March 2007. However, after the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (PTO) issued a non-final office action
rejecting all of the claims of the patent and gave Ricoh two months to respond, in December 2006, the court
issued an order staying the case pending a final decision from the PTO on the validity of the claims stated in the
patent at issue in this case.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other intellectual
property rights. As is typical in the semiconductor industry, we have from time to time received communications
from third parties asserting rights under patents that cover certain of our technologies and alleging infringement
of certain intellectual property rights of others. We expect to receive similar communications in the future. In the
event that any third party has a valid claim against us or our customers, we could be required to:

» discontinue using certain process technologies which could cause us to stop manufacturing certain
semiconductors;

« pay substantial monetary damages;
» seek to develop non-infringing technologies, which may not be feasible; or

+ seek to acquire licenses to the infringed technology which may not be available on commercially
reasonahle terms, if at all.

In the event that any third party causes us or any of our customers to discontinue using certain process
technologies, such an outcome could have an adverse effect on us as we would be required to design around such
technologies, which could be costly and time consuming.

Litigation, which could result in substantial costs to us and diversion of our resources, may also be
necessary to enforce our patents or other intellectual property rights or to defend us against claimed infringement
of the rights of others. If we fail to obtain a necessary license or if litigation relating to patent infringement or any
other intellectual property matter occurs, our business could be adversely affected.

Due to our relatively fixed cost structure, our margins will be adversely affected if we experience a
significant decline in customer orders or increase in expenses.

We make significant decisions, including determining the levels of business that we will seek and accept,
production schedules, component procurement commitments, personnel needs and other resource requirements,
based on our estimates of customer requirements and expenses, The short-term nature of commitments by many
of our customers and the possibility of rapid changes in demand for their products reduces our ability to
accurately estimate future customer requirements. On occasion, customers imay require rapid increases in
production, which can challenge our resources, reduce margins or harm our relationships with our customers. We
may not have sufficient capacity at any given time to meet our customers' demands. Conversely, downturns in
the semiconductor industry, such as the downturn that commenced late in 2000 and ended in 2003, can and have
caused our customers to significantly reduce the amount of products ordered from us. We experienced a decrease
in orders in the third and fourth quarters of 2004. Sluggish business conditions continued in 2005 due to general
declines in ihe industry and an above average roll off of old products, particularty in the integrated mixed signal
products segment, that new product introductions failed to offset. Reductions in customer orders have caused our
wafer fabrication capacity to be under-utilized. Because many of our costs and operating expenses are relatively
fixed, a reduction in customer demand has an adverse effect on our gross margins and operating income.
Reduction of customer demand also causes a decrease in our backlog. There is also a higher risk that our trade
receivables will be uncollectible during indusiry downturns or downturns in the economy. Any one or more of
these events could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. While
orders increased in the first nine months of 2006, they decreased in the fourth quarter of 2006. We cannot predict
the duration of the current soft bookings environment. If it is prolonged, cur margins could be adversely affected.
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Similarly, because we have limited ability to increase the prices we charge o our customers, if we
experience an increase in operating expenses, equipment or raw materials, our margins could be adversely
affected.

A significant portion of our revenue comes from a relatively limited number of customers and devices, the
loss of which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition,

If we lose a major customer or if customers cease to place orders for our high volume devices, our financial
results will be adversely affected. While we served more than 625 customers in 2006, sales to our 19 largest
customers represented 50.4% of our revenue during this period. The identities of our principal customers have
varied from year to year and our principal customers may not continue to purchase products and services from us
at current levels, or at all. In addition, while we sold over 2,715 different products in 2006, the 112 top selling
devices represented 50.0% of our revenue during this period. The devices generating the greatest revenue have
varied from year to year and our customers may not continue to place orders for such devices from us at current
levels, or ar all. Significant reductions in sales to any of these customers, the loss of a major customer or the
curtailment of orders for our high velume devices within a short peried of time would adversely affect our
business.

We depend on growth in the end markets that use our products, and a lack of growth in these markets
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition,

Our continued success will depend in large pait on the growth of various industries that use semiconductors,
including our target automotive, medical and industrial markets, as well as the communications, military and
computing markets, and on general economic growth. Factors affecting these markets as a whole could seriously
harm our customers and, as a result, harm us. These factors include:

= recessionary periods or periods of reduced growth in our customers’ markels;
+ the inability of our customers to adapt to rapidly changing technology and evolving industry standards;

* the potential that our customers’ products may become obsolete or the failure of our customers’
products to gain widespread commercial acceptance; and

= the possibility of reduced consumer demand for our customers’ products.

Our industry is highly competitive, and a failure to successfully compete could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

The semiconductor industry is highly competitive and includes hundreds of companies, a number of which
have achieved substantial market share. Current and prospective customers for our custom products evaluate our
capabilities against the merits of our direct competitors, as well as the merits of continuing 10 use standard or
semi-standard products. Some of our competitors have substantially greater markel share, manufacturing,
financial, research and development and marketing resources than we do. We also compete with emerging
companies that are attempting to sell their products in specialized markets. We expect to experience continuing
competitive pressures in our markets from existing competitors and new entrants. Our ability to compete
successfully depends on a number of other factors, including the following:

* our ability to offer cost-effective products on a timely basis using our technologies;

* our ability to accurately identify emerging technological trends and demand for product features and
performance characteristics;

* product introductions by our competitors;
* our ability to adopt or adapt to emerging industry standards;
» the number and nature of our competitors in a given market; and

« general market and economic conditions.
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Many of these factors are outside of our control. In addition, in recent years, many participants in the
industry have substantially expanded their manufacturing capacity. If overall demand for semiconductors should
decrease, this increased capacity could result in substantial pricing pressure, which could adversely affect our
operating results.

We depend on technological advances for growth, and a lack of such advances could have a material
adverse effect on our business.

Our industry is subject to rapid technological change as customers and competitors create new and
innovative products and technologies. We may not be able to access leading edge process technologies or to
license or otherwise obtain essential intellectual property required by our customers. If we are unable 10 continue
manufacturing technologicalty advanced products on a cost-effective basts, our business would be adversely
affected.

Our customers may cancel their orders, change production guantities or delay production, which could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. -

We generally do not obtain firm, long-term purchase commitments from our customers. Customers may
cancel their orders, change production quantities or delay production for a number of reasons. Cancellations,
reductions or delays by a significant customer or by a group of customers, which we have experienced in the
past, have adversely affected and may continue to adversely affect our results of operations. In addition, while we
do not obtain long-term purchase commitments, we generally agree to the pricing of a particular product for the
entire lifecycle of the product, which can extend over a number of years. If we underestimate our costs when
determining the pricing, our margins and results of operations will be adversely affected.

We are dependent on successful outsourcing relationships, which dependence could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We have formed arrangements with other wafer fabrication foundries to supplement capacity and gain
access to more advanced digital process technologies. If we experience problems with our foundry partners, we
may face a shortage of finished products available for sale. We believe that in the future we will increasingly rely
upon outsourced wafer manufacturing to supplement our capacity and technology. If any foundries with which
we form an outsourcing arrangement, experience wafer yield problems or delivery delays, which are common in
our industry, or are unable to produce silicon wafers that meet our specifications with acceptable yields, our
operating results could be adversely affected.

To service our consolidated indebtedness, we will require a significant amount of cash.

Our ability to generate cash depends on many factors beyond our control. Our ability to make payments on
our consolidated indebtedness and to fund working capital requirements, capital expenditures and research and
development efforts will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future. Our historical financial results have
been, and we expect our future financial results will be, subject to substantial fluctuation based upon a wide
variety of factors, many of which are not within our control. These factors include:

= the cyclical nature of both the semiconductor industry and the markets for our products;
= fluctuations in manufacturing yields;

» the timing of introduction of new products;

= the timing of customer orders;

» changes in the mix of products sold and the end markets into which they are sold;

» the extent of utilization of manufacturing capacity;
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* the length of the lifecycle of the semiconductors we are manufacturing;
« availability of supplies and raw materials;
« price competition and other competitive factors; and

» work stoppages, especially at our fabs in Belgium.

Unfavorable changes in any of these factors could harm our operating results and our ability 1o generate
cash to service our indebtedness. If we are unable to service our debt using our operating cash flow, we will be
required to pursue one or more alternative strategies, such as selling assets, refinancing or restructuring our
indebtedness or selling equity securities, each of which could adversely affect the market price of our common
stock. However, we cannot assure you that any alternative strategies will be feasible at the time or prove
adequate. Also, certain of these strategies would require the consent of our senior secured lenders.

We may need to raise additional capital that may not be available, which could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Semiconductor companies that maintain their own fabrication facilities have substantial capital
requirements. We made capital expenditures of $51.2 miilion in 2006, $34.5 million in 2005 and $32.4 million in
2004, Capital expenditures for 2006 focused on renovating Fab 2 in Belgium to compensate for the planned
closure of Fab 1, upgrading testers and handlers in our test operations and other equipment and facility upgrades.
Other capital spending is attributed to activities related to the Flextronics acquisition (i.e., building renovations
and purchase of testers). In 2003, these expenditures were made in relation to the transfer of our wafer sort
operations and the relocation of our test facility in the Philippines to a new location as well as for increases in our
manufacturing capacity. In 2004, these expenditures were made to expand capacity in our eight-inch fabrication
facility, replace equipment and expand our test and design capabilities. In the future, we intend to continue to
make capital investments to support business growth and achieve manufacturing cost reductions and improved
yields. The timing and amount of such capital requirements cannot be preciscly determined at this time and will
depend on a number of factors, including demand for products, product mix, changes in semiconductor industry
conditions and competitive factors. We may seek additional financing to fund further expansion of our wafer
fabrication capacity or to fund other projects. As of December 31, 2006, we had consolidated indebiedness of
approximately $279.6 million. Because of this or other factors, additional financing may not be available when
needed or, if available, may not be available on satisfactory terms. If we are unable to obtain additional
financing, this could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial cendition,

Our substantial consolidated indebtedness could adversely affect our financial health.

AMI Semiconductor, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary through which we conduct all our business
operations, has a substantial amount of indebtedness that is guaranteed by us. We are a holding company with no
business operations and no significant assets other than our ownership of AMI Semiconductor, Inc.’s, capital
stock. As of December 31, 2006, our consolidated indebtedness was approximately $279.6 million and our total
consolidated debt as a percentage of total capitalization was 42%. Subject to the restrictions in the senior credit
facilities, our subsidiaries and we may incur certain additional indebtedness from time to time.

Our substantial consolidated indebtedness could have important consequences. For example, our substantial
indebtedness:

» will require our operating subsidiaries to dedicate a substantial portion of cash flow from operations to
payments in respect of indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of cash flow to fund working
capital, capital expenditures, research and development efforts and other general corporate purposes;

= could increase the amount of our consolidated interest expense because some of our borrowings are at
variable rates of interest, which, if interest rates increase, could result in higher interest expense;
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= will increase our vulnerability to adverse general economic or industry conditions;

» could limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business or the industry in
which we operate;

= could restrict us from making strategic acquisitions, introducing new technologies or exploiting
business opportunities;

» could place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

= could limit, along with the financial and other restrictive covenants in our indebtedness, among other
things, our ability to borrow additional funds or dispose of assets.

These factors could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Restrictions imposed by the senior credit facilities limit our ability to take certain actions,

Qur senior credit facilities contain certain operating and financial restrictions and covenants and require us
to maintain certain financial ratios, which become more restrictive over time. Our ability to comply with these
ratios may be affected by events beyond our control. The operating and financial restrictions and covenants may
adversely affect our ability to finance our future operations or capital needs or engage in other business activities
that may be in our interest. A breach of any of the covenants or our inability to comply with the required
financial ratios could result in a default under our senior credit facilities. In the event of any default under the
senior credit facilities, the lenders under our senior credit facilities will not be required to lend any additional
amounts 1o us and could elect to declare all outstanding borrowings, together with accrued interest and other fees,
to be due and payable, and require us to apply all of our available cash to repay these borrowings. If we are
unable to repay any such borrowings when due, the lenders could proceed against their collateral, which consists
of substantially all of our assets, including 65% of the outstanding stock of certain of our foreign subsidiaries. If
the indebtedness under our senior credit facilities were to be accelerated, our assets may not be sufficient to repay
such indebtedness in full.

In addition, we may be required to seek waivers or consents in the future under our senior credit facilities.
We cannot be sure that these waivers or consents will be granted.

We could incur material costs to comply with environmental laws, which could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Increasingly stringent environmental regulations restrict the amount and types of pollutants that can be
released into the environment. We have incurred and will in the future incur costs, including capital expenditures,
to comply with these regulations. Significant regulatory changes or increased public attention to the impact of
semiconductor operations on the environment may result in more stringent regulations, further increasing our
costs or requiring changes in the way we make our products. For example, Belgium has enacted nationai
legislation regulating emissions of greenhouse gases, such as carbon dioxide.

In addition. because we use hazardous and other regulated materials in our manufacturing processes, we are
subject to risks of accidental spills or other sources of contamination, which could result in injury to the
environment, personal injury claims and civil and criminal fines, any of which could be material to our cash flow
or earnings. For example, we have recently received concurrence with a proposal to curtail pumping at one of our
former manufacturing sites. Ongoing monitoring and reporting is still required. If levels significantly change in
the future additional remediation may be required. [n addition, at some point in the future, we will have to
formally close and remove the extraction wells and treatment system. The discovery of additional contamination
at this site or other sites where we currently have or historically have had operations could result in material
cleanup costs. These costs could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial
condition.
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We may incur costs to engage in future acquisitions of companies or technologies and the anticipated
benefits of those acquisitions may never be realized, which could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.

From time to time we have purchased other businesses or their assets. In November 2004 we acquired
substantially all of the assets of Dspfactory Ltd. In September 2005, we purchased substantially all of the assets
and certain liabilities of the semiconductor business of Flextronics International USA Inc. for approximately
$138.5 million in cash. In July 2006, we acquired certain assets of Starkey Laboratories’ integrated circuit design
center located in Colorado Springs, Colorado, for approximately $6.0 million in cash and in September 2006 we
acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of the Ultra-Low Power (ULP) six-transistor (6T} SRAM
and medical System-on-Chip (SOC) ASIC businesses of NanoAmp Solutions, Inc., for approximately
$21.0 million in cash. These, as well as any future acquisitions, are accompanied by risks, including the
following:

+ potential inability to maximize our financial or strategic position, which could result in impairment
charges if the acquired company or assets are later worth less than the amount paid for them in the
acquisition;

« difficulties in assimilating the operations and products of an acquired business or in realizing projected
efficiencies, cost savings and revenue synergies;

* entry into markets or countries in which we may have limited or no experience;

* potential increases in our indebtedness and contingent liabilities and potential unknown liabilities
associated with any such acquisition;

+ diversion of management's attention due to transition or integration issues;
+ difficulties in managing multiple geographic locations;

» cultural impediments that could prevent establishment of good employee relations, difficulties in
retaining key personnel of the acquired business and potential litigation from terminated employees;
and

= difficulties in maintaining uniform standards, controls and procedures and information systems.

We may. in the future, make additional acquisitions of complementary companies or technologies. We
cannot guarantee that we will be able to successfully integrate any company or technologies that we might
acquire in the future and our failure to do so could harm our business. The benefits of an acquisition may take
considerable time to develop and we cannot guarantee that any acquisition will, in fact, produce the intended
benefits.

In addition, our senior credit facilities may prohibit us from making acquisitions that we may otherwise
wish to pursue.

QOur internatjonal sales and operations expose us to various political and economic risks, which could have
a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

As a percentage of total revenue, our revenue outside of North America was approximately 58% in 2006.
Our manufacturing operations are located in the United States and Belgium, our test facilities and our primary
assembly subcontractors are located in Asia and we maintain design centers and sales offices in North America,
Europe and Asia.*We conduct almost all of our test and sort activities at our facility in Calamba, the Philippines.
Political unrest or other conditions could prevent us from conducting these activities and/or shipping our
producis. International sales and operations are subject to a variety of risks, including:

o greater difficulty in staffing and managing foreign operations;

» greater risk of uncoellectible accounts;
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« longer collection cycles;
* logistical and communications challenges;

» potential adverse changes in laws and regulatory practices, including export license requirements. trade
barriers, tariffs and tax laws;

» changes in labor conditions;

« burdens and costs of compliance with a variety of foreign laws;
= political and economic instability;

+ increases in duties and taxation;

« exchange rate risks;

« greater difficulty in protecting intellectual property; and

« general economic and political conditions in these foreign markets.

An adverse development relating to one or more of these could have a materially adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial position.

We are subject to risks associated with currency fluctuations, which could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial condition.

A significant portion of our revenue and costs are denominated in foreign currencies, including the euro and,
to a lesser extent, the Philippine peso and the Japanese yen. Euro-denominated revenue represented
approximately 27% of our revenue in 2006. As a result, changes in the exchange rates of these foreign currencies
to the U.S. dotlar will affect our revenue, cost of revenue and operating margins and could result in exchange
losses. The impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on our results of operations cannot be accurately
predicted. From time to time, we will enter into exchange rate hedging programs in an effort to mitigate the
affect of exchange rate fluctuations. However, we cannot assure you that any hedging transactions will be
effective or will not result in foreign exchange hedging losses.

We are exposed to foreign labor laws due to our operational presence in Europe, which could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We had 926 employees in Europe as of December 31, 2006, most of whom work in Belgium. The
employees located in Belgium are represented by unions and have collective bargaining arrangements at the
national, industry and company levels. In connection with any future reductions in work force we may
implement, we would be required to, among other things, negatiate with these unions and make severance
payments to employees upon their termination. In addition, these unions may implement work stoppages or
delays in the event they do not consent to severance packages proposed for future reductions in work force or for
any other reason. Furthermore, our substantial operations in Europe subject us to compliance with labor laws and
customs that are generally more employee favorable than in the United States. As a result, it may not be possible
for us to quickly or affordably implement workforee reductions in Europe.

We rely on test subcontractors, which reliance could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition.

The testing of semiconductors is a complex process requiring, among other things, a high degree of
technical skill and advanced equipment. We outsource some of our semiconductor testing to subcontractors, most
of which are located in Southeast Asia. In particular, we rely heavily on a small number of subcontractors for this
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activity. In 2007, we plan to begin performing more of this work ourselves in our facility in Calamba, the
Philippines. If our subcontractors experience problems in testing our semiconductor devices, our operating
results would be adversely affected. In addition, if we experience difficulties in transferring this work to our
facilities in the Philippines, our operating results would be adversely affected.

We depend on successful parts and materials procurement for our manufacturing processes, which
dependence could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We use a wide range of parts and materials in the production of our semiconductors, including silicon,
processing chemicals, processing gases, precious metals and electronic and mechanical components. We procure
materials and electronic and mechanical components from domestic and foreign sources and original equipment
manufacturers. If we have difficulty in supply due to an unforeseen catastrophe, worldwide shortage or other
reason, alternative suppliers may not be available or these suppliers may not provide materials or electronic or
mechanical components in a timely manner or on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain adequate materials in a
timely manner or on favorable terms, our business and financial results would be adversely affected.

ITEM 1B, UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

In the United States, our corporate and manufacturing headquarters and warehouse operations are located in
443,000 square feet of space built on 33 acres of land owned by us in Pocatello, Idaho. We also lease an
engineering and research center in Pocatello.

In Europe, our manufacturing and other facilities are located in 15,601 square meters on 44,000 square
meters owned by us in Oudenaarde, Belgium.

In Calamba, the Philippines, we lease a 129,000 square foot facility for our sort and test operations.

We also lease space in many locations throughout the United States for regional sales offices, field design
centers and remote engineering and development operations.

Outside the United States, we lease space for regional offices in Canada, Israel, Europe and Asia. The leased
space is for sales, marketing, administrative offices or design engineering and related support space.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we are a party to various litigation matters incidental to the conduct of our business.

In January 2003, Ricoh Company, Ltd. filed in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware a
complaint against us and other parties alleging infringement of a patent owned by Ricoh. The case has been
transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California. Ricoh is seeking an injunction and
damages in an unspecified amount relating to such alleged infringement. The patents relate to certain
methodologies for the automated design of custom semiconductors. This case had been scheduled to go to trial in
March 2007. However, in December 2006, after the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (PTO) issued a non-final
office action rejecting all of the claims of the patent and gave Ricch two months to respond, the court issued an
order staying the case pending a final decision from the PTO on the validity of the claims stated in the patent at
issue in this case. We believe that the asserted claims are without merit, and even if meritorious, that we will be
indemnified against damages by Synopsys, Inc., and that resolution of this matter will not have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition.
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There is no other pending or threatened legal proceeding to which we are a party that, in the opinion of
management, is likely to have a material adverse effect on our future financial results or financial condition,

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stockholders during the fourth quarter of 2006.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

QOur common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “*AMIS.” The following table
sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices per share reported for our common stock.

High Low
2006 el O
Fourth Quarter (from Qctober 1, 2006 to December 31,2006) . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... $11.05 $8.88
Third Quarter (from July 2, 2006 to September 30,2000) . ...... ... .. ... . ..., $10.18 $8.48
Second Quarter (from April 2,2006to July 1,2006) . ..... ...t i $10.84 $8.01
First Quarter (from January 1, 2006 to April 1,2006) . ... ... it $11.20 $7.83
2005
Fourth Quarter (from October 2, 2005 to December 31,2005 ... .. ... ... ... ... ......... $12.19 $ 9.89
Third Quarter (from July 3,2005 to October 1,2005) ... ... it $14.21 $10.68
Second Quarter (from April 3,2005 to July 2,2005) . ... ... .. $13.95 $10.15
First Quarter (from January 1, 2005t0 April 2,2005) ... ..ot e $1645 § 9.59

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company issued 0.9 million shares of its common stock to
Dspfactory as payment of additional consideration in connection with the acquisition of substantially all the
assets of Dspfactory in November 2004. The shares were issued in reliance on an exemption from registration
contained in Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act of 1933,

As of February 23, 2007, there were approximately 200 stockholders of record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain earnings to finance
future growth, and therefore do nol anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Our senior credit
facilities prohibit us from paying cash dividends on our equity securities, except in limited circumstances. See
note 6 to our audited consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K
for a more complete description of limitations on our ability to pay dividends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical financial data for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 were derived from our audited consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this annual report. The selected historical financial data for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 and as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements, which are not included in this annual report. When comparing the 2006, 2005 and 2004 consolidated
financial position and operating results 1o prior periods, you should note that the initial public offering of our
common stock and the issuance of our senior subordinated notes during 2003 had a significant impact on our
financial position and operating results. When comparing the 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial
position and operating results to prior periods, you should note that the MSB acquisition in June 2002 had a

significant impact on our 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003 financial position and operating results. The Starkey

Laboratories and NanoAmp acquisitions in 2006, the Flextronics acquisition in 2005 and the Dspfactory
acquisition in 2004 also affect the consotidated financial position and operating results when comparing those

periods to prior periods. You should read the following 1ables in conjunction with other information contained
under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” our audited
consolidated financial statements and related notes and other financial inforimation contained elsewhere in this

annual report on Form 10-K.

Consolidated Statement of Income Data:

Revenue ... ... ..o i e
Gross profit ... .. e
Netincome (1088) .. ... .. i it
Net income {loss) attributable to common stockholders ........
Basic net income (loss) per common share ..................
Diluted net income (loss) per common share .................

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (end of the period):
Cashand cashequivalents . ... ... . ... ... . ... ... .. ...
Accounts receivable,net .. .. ... .. ... ..
INVentories . ... ... .. i e s
Total assets . ... . ... i e
Long-term liabilities .............. ... .. .. v,
Long-term debt, including current portion .. .................
Series A Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock ... ......... . ...,
Series B Junior Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock . ......
Series C Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock .. ...............
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) .. .......................
Other Financial Data:

Grossprofit margin .. .. ... . i e
Research and development .. .. ... ... . . it
Depreciation and amortization ........... ... .. ..o .ian..
Capital expenditures . ............ .. .. i
Operatingcashflow ... ... .. i i,
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Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003

2002

(In millions, except per share and percent information)

$605.6 $503.6 $5i7.3 $454.2 S§ 3453

271.1 2372 2463 19838
374 217 524 (0.4)

1303
5.1

$374 $217 $524 3(467) % 57.4)
$043 $025 3063 $(0.84) § (1.24)
$ 042 $025 5060 3(0.84) § (1.24)

$77.1 §$96.7 SI61.7 5119.1
110.1 99.9 78.6 73.6
77.5 64.3 522 45.6
7869 740.8 6432 550.1
5.7 8.2 24 0.4
279.6 3179 2535 2547

3827 299.8 286.1 205.0

44.8% 47.1% 47.6% 438%
$1046 $ 874 $772 §$ 702
$679 $550 %438 § 448
$512 $345 §$ 324 $ 266
$938 $562 $962 §$ 707

$

& B 0 o

62.2
66.0
39.4
502.5
3.1
160.1
233.7
190.5
79.3
(240.4)

37.7%
521
47.0
22.0
81.1



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S HSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference
to, the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K. Except for
the historical information contained herein, the discussions in this section contain forward-looking statements
that invelve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those discussed below. See
“Factors That May Affect Our Business and Future Results” in Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors” in this annual
report on Form 10-K for a discussion of these risks and uncertainties. Unless the context otherwise reguires,
references to “we,” “our,” “us” and “the Company” refer to AMIS Holdings, Inc. and consolidated
subsidiaries; and references to “AMI Semiconductor” and “AMIS” refer to AMI Semiconductor, Inc., a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Overview

We are a leader in the design and manufacture of customer-specific mixed signal semiconductor products.
We focus on the automotive, medical, industrial, communications and military and aerospace markets where
there is a significant need for electronic products to interact with the real world through analog signals, such as
light, heat, pressure, power and radio waves. These analog signals are captured, processed, controlled and
converted into digital signals by mixed-signal semiconductors provided by us. Our integrated mixed signal
products combine analog and digital circuitry on a single integrated circuit, or IC, to perform functions that range
from monitoring of human heart rates to determining air pressure in a tire.

We provide complete solutions to our customers through both custom and application-specific standard
products and manufacturing services. Among our core technical capabilities are our ability to integrate
computing, accurate sensing and high voltage control capabilities in semiconductors that can operate in rugged
high voltage or high temperature environments, our low power digital signal processors and our market leading
structured digital conversion platforms for field programmable gate arrays, or FPGAs, to application specific
integrated circuits conversions.

We work closely with most of our customers and we have been supplying many of our customers for over
ten years. Our current customers include industry leaders such as Alcatel, General Electric, Hella, Hewlett
Packard. Medtronic and Siemens. We believe we are the sole-source provider for the majority of our integrated
mixed signal products and due 1o the nature of our products and the markets we serve, we estimate our average
product life 1o be eight to ten years. We have been leveraging our end market expertise and intellectual property
10 increase the share of our revenue that is derived from application specific standard products in order to
broaden our offering to customers and to improve returns on our research and development investment.

When evaluating our business, we generally look at financial measures, such as revenue, gross margins and
operating margins. We also use internal tracking measures, such as projected three-year revenue from design
wins and the capacity utilization of our fabrication facilities. Design win activity has been strong in 2006 though
design wins in the second half of 2006 slowed from the pace set in the first half. As a result, three-year forecasted
revenue for design wins in 2006 decreased approximately 9% from 20035. Our opportunity pipeline remains
strong however, in 2007 we expect design wins to return to the pace of the first half of 2006. Capacity utilization
wis 76% in the fourth quarter of 2006, compared to 78% in the third quarter. Capacity utilization is a measure of
the degree to which our manufacturing assets are being used and, correspondingly, our ability to absorb our fixed
manufacturing costs into inventory. Our gross margins decreased in 2006 and could be negatively affected in the
future if capacity utilization continues to decline. Other key meitrics we use to analyze our business include days
sales outstanding (DSO) and days of inventory. DSO remained roughly flat quarter on quarter at 64 days in the
fourth quarter of 2006, Days of inventory increased to 89 in the fourth quarter of 2006, up seven days
sequentially, due to increased inventory on lower revenue.

30




In June 2002, we acquired the mixed signal business of Alcatel Microelectronics NV from
STMicroelectronics NV. We refer to this as the MSB acquisition. The MSB acquisition increased our analog and
mixed signal engineering team, enhanced our relationships with major European customers, provided us with
additional high voltage and wireless technologies that enable us to offer new types of custom integrated circuits
to our end markets and provided us with two fabs in Oudenaarde, Belgium.

In November 2004, we acquired Dspfactory Ltd. {Dspfactory), a leader in ultra-low power digital signal
processing technology for digital hearing aids and other low power applications for approximately $43.6 million
plus an additional $8.5 million in common stock paid upon the achievement of certain revenue milestones in
2005. Results from operations for 2006 and 2003 include this business. The results of operations for 2004 include |
Dspfactory from the date of acquisition. See note 18 to the audited consolidated financial statements contained
elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K,

In September 2005, we completed the purchase of substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of the
semiconductor business of Flextronics International USA Inc. (the “Flextronics Semiconductor Business™) for
approximately $138.5 million in cash plus other liabilities (the “Flextronics acquisition™). The Flextronics
Semiconductor Business specializes in custom mixed signal products, imaging sensors and digital application-
specific integrated circuits, including FPGA conversion products. Results of operations for 2006 include this
business. Results of operations for 2005 include this business from the date of acquisition. See note 17 to the
audited consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

In July 2006, we purchased certain assets of Starkey Laboratories’ tntegrated circuit design center located in
Colorado Springs, Celorado, for approximately $6.0 mitlion in cash. This design center designs specialized, low
power audiology integrated circuits used in Starkey’s hearing aids. Results of operations for 2006 include this
business from the date of acquisition. See note 16 to the audited consolidated financial statements contained
elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

In September 2000, we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of the Ultra-Low Power (ULP)
six-transistor (6T) SRAM and medical System-on-Chip (SOC) ASIC businesses of NanoAmp Solutions, Inc., for
approximately $21.0 million in cash. NanoAmp Solutions specializes in low-voltage and ULP memory and ASIC
solutions for the wireless communication, industrial, medical and networking market segments. Results of
operations for 2006 include this business from the date of acquisition. See note 15 to the audited consolidated
financial statements contained elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires our management to make estimates and judgments that affect our reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, revenue and expenses and related disclosures. We have identified revenue recognition,
inventories, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, income taxes and stock options as areas
involving critical accounting policies and the most significant judgments and estimates.

We evaluate our estimates and judgments on an engoing basis, We base our estimates on historical
experience and on assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Qur experience and
assumptions form the basis for our judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may vary from what we anticipate and different assumptions or
estimates about the future could change our reported results. We believe the following accounting policies are the
most critical to us, in that they are important to the portrayal of our financial statements and they require the most
difficult, subjective or complex judgments in the preparation of our financial statements.
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Revenue Recognition

Several criteria must be met before we can recognize revenue from our products and revenue relating to
engineering design and product development. We must apply our judgment in determining when revenue
recognition criteria are met.

We recognize revenue from products sold directly to end customers when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, the price is fixed and determinable, delivery is fulfilled and collectibility is reasonably
assured. In certain situations, we ship products through freight forwarders. In most cases, revenue is recognized
when the product is delivered to the customer’s carrier, regardless of the terms and conditions of sale. The only
exception is where title does not pass until the product is received by the customer. In that case, revenue is
recognized upon receipt by the customer. Estimates of product returns and allowances, based on actual historical
experience and our knowledge of potential quality issues, are recorded at the time revenue is recognized or when
quality issues are known and are deducted from revenue.

Revenue from contracts to perform engineering design and product development is generally recognized as
milestones are achieved, which approximates the percentage-of-completion method. Costs associated with such
contracts are expensed as incurred, except as discussed below with regard to loss accruals recorded. Revenues
under contracts acquired as part of the Flextronics acquisition are recorded using the completed contract method.
This method is consistently applied to each contract and revenue is recognized accordingly when the item enters
production or when the contract is complete.

Under contracts for which revenue is recognized as milestones are achieved, a typical milestone billing
structure is 40% at the start of the project, 40% at the creation of the reticle set and 20% upon delivery of the
prototypes. Since up to 40% of revenue is billed and recognized at the start of the design development work and,
therefore, could result in the acceleration of revenue recognition, we analyze those billings and the status of
in-process design development projects at the end of each quarter to determine that the milestone billings
approximate percentage-of-completion on an aggregate basis. We compare each project’s stage with the total
level of effort required to complete the project, which we believe is representative of the cost-to-complete
method of determining percentage-of-completion. Based on this analysis, the relatively short-term nature of our
design development process and the billing and recognition of 20% of the project revenue after design
development work is complete (which effectively defers 20% of the revenue recognition to the end of the
contract), we believe our milestone method approximates the percentage-of-completion method in all material
respects.

Our engineering design and product development contracts generally involve pre-determined amounts of
revenue. We review each contract that is still in process at the end of each reporting period and estimate the cost
of each activity yet to be performed under that contract. This cost determination involves our judgment and the
uncertainties inherent in the design and development of integrated circuits. If we determine that our costs
associated with a particular development contract exceed the revenue associated with such contract, we estimate
the amount of the loss and establish a corresponding reserve.

Inventories

We generally initiate production of a majority of our semiconductors once we have received an order from a
customer. Based on forecasted demand from specific customers or operational activities, we may build up
inventories of finished goods in anticipation of subsequent purchase orders. We purchase and maintain raw
materials at sufficient levels to meet lead times based on forecasted demand. If inventory quantity exceeds
forecasted/market demand, we may need to provide an allowance for excess or obsolete quantities. Forecasted
demand is determined based on multiple factors including: historical sales or inventory usage, expected future
sales, other projections or the nature of the inventories. We also review other inventories for indicators of
impairment and provide an allowance as deemed necessary.
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We state inventories at the lower of cost (using the first-in, first-out method) or market. We determine the
cost of inventory by adding an amount representative of manufacturing costs plus a burden rate for general
manufacturing overhead to the inventory at major steps in the manufacturing process.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

We regularly evaluate the carrying amounts of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, as well as the related amortization periods, to determine whether adjustments to these
amounts or to the useful lives are required based on current circumstances or events. The evaluation, which
involves significant management judgment, is based on various analyses including cash flow and profitability
projections. To the extent such projections indicate that future undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to
recover the carrying amounts of the related long-lived assets, the carrying amount of the underlying assets will be
reduced, with the reduction charged to expense so that the carrying amount is equal to fair value, primarily
determined based on future discounted cash flows. To the extent such evaluation indicates that the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are different than originally estimated, the amount of future depreciation expense
is modified such that the remaining net book value is depreciated over the revised remaining useful life.

Goodwill

Under the guidelines of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” we assess goodwill at least annually for impairment using fair value measurement techniques.
Specifically, goodwill impairment is determined using a two-step process. The first step is to compare the fair
value of a reporting unit to which the goodwill is assigned with the unit’s net book value (or carrying amount),
including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, there is no deemed
impairment of goodwill and the second step of the impairment test is unnecessary. However, if the carrying
amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed
to measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss, it any. The second step compares the implied fair value of
the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting
unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount
equal to that excess. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the amount of
goodwill recognized in a business combination. That is, the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of
the assets and liabilities of that unit (including any unrecognized intangible assets) as if the reporting unit had
been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting unit was the purchase price paid to
acquire the reporting unit. We annually test our goodwill for impairment during the fourth quarter. Since the
adoption of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, our testing has not indicated any impairment,

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit under the first step of the goodwill impairment test and
determining the fair value of individual assets and liabilities of a reporting unit (including unrecognized
intangible assets) under the second step of the goodwill impairment test is judgmental in nature and often
invojves the use of significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions could have a
significant impact on whether an impairment charge is recognized, and on the magnitude of any such impairment
charge. To assist in the process of determining goodwill impairment, we may obtain appraisals from independent
valuation firms. In addition to the use of independent valuation firms, we perform internal valuation analyses and
consider other market information that is publicly available. Estimates of fair value are primarily determined
using discounted cash flows and market comparisons of recent transactions. These approaches use significant
estimates and assumptions including the amount and timing of projected future cash flows, discount rates
reflecting the risk inherent in the future cash flows, perpetual growth rates, determination of appropriate market
comparables and the determination of whether a premium or discount should be applied to these comparables,

Income Taxes

[iicome taxes are recorded based on the liability method, which requires recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities based on differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities
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measured using enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to
reverse, A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce our deferred tax asset to an amount we determine is more
likely than not to be realized based on our analyses of past operating results, future reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences and projected taxable income, including tax strategies available to generate future taxable
income. Qur analyses of future taxable income are subject to a wide range of variables, many of which involve
estimates, and therefore our deferred tax asset may not be ultimately realized. Utilization of our net operating
loss carryforwards may be subject to an annual limitation under the “change of ownership” provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Stock Options

As described in Note 2 to the audited consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this annual
report on Form 10-K, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 2004)
on January 1, 2006. SFAS 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee
stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values, This statement revises
SFAS 123, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board {(APB) Opinion 25. We adopted SFAS 123(R) using the
modified prospective transition method and therefore, our consolidated financial statements for prior periods
have not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the effect of SFAS 123(R).

Share-based compensation expense that was recorded in 2006 includes the compensation expense for the
share-based payments granted in the current year, as well as for the share-based payment awards granted prior to,
but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the pro
forma provisions of SFAS 123. As of December 31, 2006, the total compensation cost related to unvested share-
based awards granted to employees under our stock option plans but not yet recognized was approximately
$13.3 million, net of estimated forfeitures of $4.3 million. This expense is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 6.3 years using the straight-line method.

During the third quarter of 2006, we implemented a change in our share-based compensation strategy to
utilize a combination of stock options and restricted stock units (RSUs) that vest over time based on setrvice, or
vest based on a combination of performance and service rather than exclusively offering stock options. On
July 31, 2006, we granted 366,633 service-based RSUs to key exempt employees and 138,650 performance-
based RSUs to a limited number of executive staff. These RSUs are included in the determination of total share-
based compensation expense. The projected number of shares that will actually be issued pursuant to the
performance-based RSUs is evaluated each reporting period and compensation expense is recognized only for
those shares for which issuance is probable. The number of shares that will be issued is calculated by estimating
how actual business performance at the end of the measurement period will compare to predetermined
performance targets. As of December 31, 2006, we determined that it was not probable that any shares would be
issued for 2006 under the performance-based RSUs. Consequently, no compensation expense was recognized
during the fourth quarter of 2006 and the expense recognized during the third quarter of 2006 was reversed. Since
the performance conditions were not met, these RSUs will terminate on March 1, 2007. As of December 31,
2006, there were approximately $2.6 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to the service-
based RSUs, net of estimated forfeitures of $0.5 million. Compensation expense will be recognized over the
vesting period of two or three years from the vesting commencement date using the straight-line method.

We used the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model for our pro forma information required under
SFAS 123 and continue to use this model to value any share-based compensation under SFAS 123(R). Option
valuation methods, including Black-Scholes-Merton, require the input of assumptions including the risk free
interest rate, dividend rate, expected term and volatility rate. Although the expected term and the volatility rate
are highly subjective assumptions, a change of one year in the expected term for options granted during the most
recent fiscal year affects share-based compensation expense for that year by approximately 7% and a 10%
change in the volatility rate affects the share-based compensation expense for that year by approximately 8%. We
adjust the compensation cost related to our share-based plans for subsequent changes in estimated forfeitures.
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As aresult of adopting SFAS 123(R), our net income before income taxes was $7.5 million lower and our
net income is $5.1 million lower for the year ended December 31, 2006 than if we had continued to account for
share-based compensation under APB 25. We did not consider the impact on net income related to the RSUs in
making this calculation because compensation expense would have been required under APB 25 as well. Basic
and diluted eamnings per share for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2006, are $0.06 lower,
respectively, than if we had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25. In accordance
with SFAS 123(R), any cash flows resulting from the tax benefits for tax deductions in: excess of the
compensation expense recorded for those options {excess tax benefits) will be classified as financing cash flows.
We recognized no excess tax benefits during 2006,

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), we followed the intrinsic value-based method prescribed by APB 23,
and related interpretations, in accounting for employee stock options. We did not record any compensation
expense for stock options we granted to our employees where the exercise price equaled the fair market value of
the stock on the date of grant and the exercise price, number of shares eligible for issuance under the options and
vesting period were fixed. We recorded deferred share-based compensation when we granted stock options to
employees at exercise prices less than the estimated fair market value of the underlying common stock on the
grant date. We complied with the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148, which required
that we disclose our pro forma net income or loss and net income or loss per common share as if we had
expensed the fair value of the options in determining net income or loss. In calculating such fair value, we used
certain assumptions, as disclosed in our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2003, we accelerated the vesting of certain unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock options that
were previously awarded to employees and officers that had exercise prices per share of $13.00 to $20.00, in
anticipation of adopting SFAS No. 123(R). As a result, options to purchase approximately 1.9 million shares of
our common stock became exercisable immediately. We expected this acceleration to reduce the pre-tax expense
that we would have recognized with respect to share-based compensation under adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) by

approximately $5.0 mitlion in 2006, $2.7 million in 2007, and $0.9 million in the aggregate for 2008 and 2009.

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes certain information relating to our operating results, as derived from our
audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dolars in millions)
Statement of Income Data:
Revenue ... ... e e $605.6 100.0% $503.6 100.0% 517.3 100.0%
Grossprofit .. ... . . . e 271,17 448% 2372 47.1% 2463 47.6%
Operating expenses:;
Researchand development ........................... 1046 173% 874 174% 772 149%
Marketingand selling ............................... 49.1 8.1%  39.1 7.8% 430 8.3%
General and administrative ........................... 338 5.6%  28.5 59% 287 5.5%
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets ....... 18.0 3.0% 9.0 1.8% 1.3 0.3%
In-process research and development . .................. —_ — 08 0.2% 1.5 0.3%
Restructuring and impairment charges .................. 83 1.4% 5.3 1% 7.9 1.5%
Total operating eXpenses .. ......coviiiiieiiinrnnnnn... 2138 353% 1701 33.8% 1596 30.9%
Operating inCcome . ... . i i i i 57.3 95% 671 133% 867 16.8%
Other expense:
Interest eXpense, MEL . ......ovuu e e innnennannnnn (184) -3.0% (13.8) -2.7% (18.6) -3.6%
Otherexpense, net . ........ ...t inrinnrnn 0.3) 0.0% @47 -69% (07 -0.1%
Income before income taxes ................... ... ... .... 38.6 6.4% 18.6 37% 674  13.0%
Provision (benefit) forincometaxes ........................ 1.2 0.2% 3.1) -06% 150 2.9%
Netincome ... ... . ittt ieiiee s $ 374 6.2% $ 21.7 43% 5% 524 -10.1%




Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared With Year Ended December 31, 2005
Revenue

Revenue in 2006 increased 20% to $605.6 million from $503.6 million in 2005. The increases in revenue
were due primarily to the Flextronics acquisition, which accounted for approximately $92.3 million of revenue in
2006. In 2005, only $23.8 million in revenue was recognized from the Flextronics acquisition, as it closed on
September 9, 2005. The Starkey and NanoAmp Solutions acquisitions also increased revenue by $4.4 million in
2006. Excluding the effect of our acquisitions, organic revenue growth in 2006 was 6%. The organic increase for
2006 was driven primarily by higher revenues in our target markets, with the strongest growth being driven by
the industrial market.

Gartner (February 2007) has forecasted consumption revenue growth for the application-specific segment of
the semiconductor industry to be approximately 11% from 2005 to 2006. The application-specific segment is
split into two subsegments; application-specific integrated circuits and application-specific standard products.
The application-specific integrated circuit market is estimated io have grown approximately 12% in 2006. The
market for application-specific standard products is estimated to have grown approximately 10% over the same
year-over-year period.

Our revenues grew by 20%, including the effect of acquisitions, from 2005 to 2006, outperforming the
forecasted growth of the application-specific integrated circuit segment where the majority of our revenues were
derived.

Revenue from integrated mixed signal products for 2006 increased 20% to $471.0 million from
$393.2 million in 2005. The increase for 2006 was driven primarily by higher revenue in our target markets, with
the strongest growth being driven by the industrial market and the contributions from our acquisitions. During
2006, integrated mixed signal saw a decrease in average selling prices but an increase in unit volumes sold
compared to 2005.

Structured digital products revenue in 2006 increased 22% to $134.6 million from $110.4 million in 2005,
driven primarily by higher revenue in the industrial and communications markets and the contribution from the
Flextronics acquisition. During 2006, this segment saw a decrease in average selling prices, but an increase in
unit volumes sold compared to 2005,

The following table represents our revenue by region for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005
North AMerica ... ...t i i e e 41.7% 42.5%
BUrOpe .. 35.0% 37.8%
P 233% 19.7%

Gross Profit

Cost of revenue consists primarily of purchased materials, labor and overhead (including depreciation)
associated with the design and manufacture of products scld. Costs related to non-recurring engineering fees are
included in cost of revenue to the extent that they are reimbursed by our customers under a development
arrangement as such reimbursements are recorded as revenue. Costs associated with unfunded non-recurring
engineering are classified as research and development because we typically retain ownership of the proprietary
rights to intellectual property that has been developed in connection with non-recurring engineering work. Gross
profit was $271.1 million, or 44.8% of revenue, in 2006 compared to $237.2 million, or 47.1% of revenue, in
2005. The decrease in gross profit margin percentage was primarily due to continuing inefficiencies in our test
operations resulting from the recently completed relocation to a new facility in the Philippines, as well as an
unfavorable product mix and price decreases. During the second half of 2006, some progress was made in our
Philippine test operations, particularly tester utilization and cycle times. Further progress is expected to continue
into 2007. In addition, share-based compensation expense increased cost of revenue by $0.8 million during 2006.
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Operating Expenses

We began expensing share-based compensation with the adoption of SFAS 123(R) in the first quarter of
2006. See note 2 to the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report on Form 10-K
for additional information, As shown in the table below, share-based compensation expense affected several
operaling expense line items (in millions).

Year ended:
Income Statement Category w
CoSLOFTEVEIIUE .. ... $0.8
Researchand development .............. ... . ... ..ccovviiin... $3.1
Salesand marketing . . ... .. . e $1.1
General and administrative . .......... it i 529

Research and development expenses consist primarily of activities related to process engineering, cost of
design tools, investments in development libraries, technology license agreements and product development.
Research and development expenses were $104.6 million, or 17.3% of revenue, in 2006 compared to
$87.4 million, or 17.4% of revenue, in 2005. This increase in research and development expense was due
primarily to the incremental expense from our acquisitions and share-based compensation expense.

Marketing and selling expenses consist primarily of commissions to sales representatives, salaries, benefits,
and commissions of sales and marketing personnel and advertising and communication costs. Marketing and
selling expenses increased to $49.1 million, or 8.1% of revenue, in 2006 from $39.1 million, or 7.8% of revenue,
in 2005. This increase was primarily due to higher selling expenses on increased revenue, incremental expense
from our acquisitions and share-based compensation expense.

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and benefits of our administrative staff,
professional fees related to audit and tax services and advisory fees for various consulting projects. General and
administrative expenses were $33.8 million, or 5.6% of revenue, in 2006 compared to $28.5 million, or 3.7% of
revenue, in 2005. This increase was primarily due to incremental expense from our acquisitions and share-based
compensation expense.

Amortization of acquisition-retated intangible assets increased to $18.0 million in 2006 from $9.0 million in
2005. This increase was due to higher amortization expense related to intangible assets associated with our
acquisitions in 2006 and a full year of amortization of intangibles purchased as part of the Flextronics
acquisition.

There were no in-process research and development charges in 2006 compared with $0.8 million in 2005
related to the Flextronics acqguisition.

37



We recorded $8.3 million in restructuring and impairment charges in 2006 compared to $5.3 million in
2005. Net restructuring charges of $7.7 million in 2006 relate to our 2006 restructuring plan, the consolidation of
our Fab | into our Fab 2 facility in Belgium and the relocation of our Philippines facility, combined with the
transfer of our wafer sort operations in the United States and Belgium to our new facility in the Philippines. In
addition, $0.6 million was recorded in 2006 for impairment of certain equipment. The amounts recorded in 2005
included charges for employee severance and other items as a result of our restructuring program announced in
the fourth quarter of 2004. This program included headcount reductions related to the consolidation of our sort
operations in the United States and Belgium to the Philippines, as well as other reductions in force resulting from
cost containment measures. Following is a summary of the restructuring accrual as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2006 (in millions):

Lease Facility Legal Fees
Severance Termination Relocation and Other
Costs Costs Costs Costs Total
Balance at January 1, 2005 $5.0 $ 03 $— $— $53
2005 EXpense ..... ... 5.1 — — 1.7 6.8
2005 Paid ... e (4.0) 0.1 — (.7 (5.8)
2005 Reserve Reversal . ........ ... .. ... (1.3) (0.2) — — (1.5)
Balance at December 31, 2005 4.8 — —_ —_ 4.8
2006 EXpEnse . ...t 3.6 — 4.7 — 8.3
2006 Paid .. ... ... e {4.5) — 4.2) — (8.7)
2006 Reserve Reversal ...... ... .. iiiininnin, (0.6} — — — (0.6)
Balance at December 31, 2006 $33 $ — $ 05 $— $38

Operating Income

Operating income decreased to $57.3 million, or 9.5% of revenue, in 2006 compared to $67.1 million, or
13.3% of revenue, in 20035. Operating income in 2006 included $7.9 million of share-based compensation
expense, which was not recorded in 2005. Share-based compensation expense is not allocated to our reportable
segments. Following is a discussion of operating income by segment.

Integrated mixed signal products operating income was $45.5 million, or 9.7% of segment revenue, in 2006
compared to $44.8 million, or 11.4% of segment revenue, in 2005. This decrease in operating margin was
primarily attributable to higher manufacturing costs, driven primarily by higher test costs, an unfavorable product
mix and price decreases. Higher acquisition-related intangible asset amortization also negatively impacted
operating margin.

Structured digital products operating income was $28.0 million, or 20.8% of segment revenue, in 2006,
compared to $27.6 million, or 25.0% of segment revenue, in 2005. This decrease in operating income was
primarily due to lower gross margins due to increased manufacturing costs, an unfavorable product mix and price
decreases.

Net Interest Expense

Net interest expense for 2006 increased to $18.4 million, compared to $13.8 million in 2005. This increase
in net interest expense was primarily attributable to a full year of interest expense associated with the addition of
$110.0 million to our term loan in September 2005 in connection with the Flextronics acquisition and higher
interest rates.
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Other Expense

Other expense in 2006 decreased to $0.3 million from $34.7 million in 2005. This decrease is primarily due
to charges associated with the redemption of our senior subordinated notes in the first quarter of 2005. There was
no comparable amount during 2006. Other expense in 2005 included a charge of $28.0 million associated with
the tender offer and redemption of our 10 ¥2% senior subordinated notes and a charge of $6.7 million for the
write-off of deferred financing and other costs associated with our prior senior credit facility and senior
subordinated notes.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $1.2 miilion in 2006 compared with an income tax benefit of $3.1 million in 2005.
The effective tax rate for 2006 was 3.1%. The effective tax rate for 2005 was not a meaningful number. The low
effective tax rate in 2006 compared to the U.S. statutory rate of 39% was due to the continued release of our
valuation allowance, tax credits and increased income in low tax jurisdictions. The primary reason for recerding
a tax benefit on positive net income before taxes in 2005 is that there was a loss and a corresponding tax benefit
recorded in the U.S. for the year related to our debt refinancing activities in the first quarter, while at the same
time there was income and a corresponding tax expense recorded in foreign jurisdictions with lower statutory tax
rates. While the income in the foreign jurisdictions more than offset the U.S. losses in 2005, the foreign tax
expense was not large enough to offset the U.S. tax benefit. Also benefiting the effective tax rates in both 2005
and 2006 was a reduction in our valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. Based on projections of taxable
income for future periods, we reversed approximately $6.2 million of valuation allowance in each year. We have
reduced our deferred tax assets through the use of a valuation allowance to amounts that are more likely than not
to be realized. We will continue to evaluate the need to increase or decrease the valuation allowance on our
deferred tax assets based upon the anticipated pre-tax operating results of future periods.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared With Year Ended December 31, 2004
Revenue

Revenue in 2005 decreased 3% to $503.6 million from $517.3 million in 2004. Excluding revenues of
$23.8 mitlion in 2005 due to the Flextronics acquisition, revenue decreased 7% to $479.8 million in 2005. In
2005 we experienced a significant decrease in our communications end market driven by the loss of foundry
revenues to STMicroelectronics as a result of the expiration of a take-or-pay contract in June 2004. Across our
other end markets, but primarily in automotive and industrial, we experienced a greater than normal roll-off of
revenues from older products in 2005 as compared to 2004, This was partially offset by increases in medical and
military/aerospace revenues. The increase in medical revenues was due in part to a full year of revenues from our
Dspfactory acquisition in November 2004.

Integrated mixed signal revenue of $393.2 million in 2005 decreased 1% compared with 2004 sales of
$397.7 million. In 2005, we saw strong growth in the medical end market for this segment, offset by decreases in
the communications end market for the reasons noted above. This segment saw a decrease in average selling
prices, due in part 1o pricing changes, as well as to changes in the product mix, which was partially offset by an
increase in unit volume sold, due to greater product offerings with the addition of revenue from the Dspfactory
and Flextronics acquisitions.

Structured digital products revenue was $110.4 million in 2005, a decrease of 8% over 2004 revenue of
$119.6 million, Increased revenue from the military/aerospace and industrial end markets were offset by
decreases in the communications and computing end markets in 2005. This segment saw a decrease in average
selling prices, due primarily to changes in the product mix, which was partially offset by an increase in unit
volume sold, due to greater product offerings with the addition of revenue from the Flextronics acquisition.

We formerly had a third segment, mixed signal foundry services, which we have combined into the
integrated mixed signal products segment.
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The following table represents our revenue by region for the years ended December 31:

s 20
North AMEriCa . . ... . i i i i i i ettt 425% 42.1%
BUIOpE ..o e 37.8% 41.3%
3 S 197% 16.6%

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased to $237.2 million, or 47.1% of revenue, in 2005 from $246.3 million, or 47.6% of
revenue, in 2004, The decrease in gross profit percentage is a result of decreased utilization of our wafer
fabrication facilities, inefficiencies related to the relocation of our test operations in the Philippines and the
transfer of our sort operations from Pocatello and Oudenaarde to the Philippines, and a $3.7 million charge
related to discussions involving a previous quality issue with one customer.

Operating Expenses

Research and development expenses increased to $87.4 million, or 17.4% of revenue, in 2005 from
$77.2 million, or 14.9% of revenue, in 2004. This increase is primarily attributable to higher expenses driven by
increased design wins and the associated non-customer funded expenses, as well as incremental expense from the
Flextronics acquisition.

Marketing and selling expenses decreased to $39.1 million, or 7.8% of revenue, in 2005 from $43.0 million,
or 8.3% of revenue, in 2004. This decrease is due to decreased costs assoctated with lower sales levels as well as
the results of cost reduction efforts, including focusing on the use of internal sales people rather than sales rep
firms, partially offset by additional costs related to the Flextronics acquisition.

General and administrative expenses decreased to $28.5 million, or 5.7% of revenue, in 2005 from
$28.7 million, or 5.5% of revenue, in 2004. This decrease was primarily due to lower management incentive plan
costs in 2003 as our financial performance did not meet the minimum requirements to trigger payments under the
plan.

Amortization of acquisition related intangible assets increased to $9.0 million from $1.3 million in 2004,
This increase is due 1o a full year of amortization of intangible assets associated with the Dspfactory acquisition

as welil as a partial year of amortization of the intangible assets assoctated with the Flextronics acquisition.

In-process research and development charges were $0.8 million in 2005 related to the Flextronics
acquisition compared with $1.5 million in 2004 related to the Dspfactory acquisition.
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We recorded a net $5.3 million in restructuring charges in 2005, compared to $7.9 million in 2004. The
amounts in 2005 are related to several restructuring plans, including the announced consolidation of our Fab 1 in
Belgium and the relocation of our Philippines facility combined with the transfer of our wafer sort operations in
the United States and Belgium to our new facility in the Philippines. The amount in 2004 inctuded charges for
employee severance and other items as a result of our restructuring program announced in the fourth quarter of
2004. This program included headcount reductions related to the consolidation of our sort operations in the
United States and Belgium to the Philippines, as well as other reductions in force resulting from cost containment
measures. Following is a summary of the restructuring accrual as of and for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2005 (in millions):

Lease Legal Fees
Severance  Termination  and Other
Costs Costs Costs Total
Balance at January 1,2004 . ............ ... ... ... ... .. $0.7 $02 $— $09
2004 EXPENSE o\ttt e e 7.7 02 — 7.9
2004 Paid . ..ot e e e e (3.4) (0.1) — 3.5
Balance at December 31,2004 .. ... ... ... .. ... ... .. .. 5.0 03 —_ 53
2005 EXPEISE Lottt e 5.1 — 1.7 6.8
2005 Paid .. L e e (4.0) (0.1 (1.7 (5.8)
2005 Reserve Reversal .. ... . . . o e (1.3) (0.2) — (1.5)
Balance at December 31,2005 .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ..o $48 $— $— $438

Operating Income

Operating income decreased to $67.1 million, or 13.3% of revenue, in 2005 compared with $86.7 mitlion, or
16.8% of revenue, in 2004, driven by lower revenues, lower gross profit margin and higher operating expenses,
particularly intangible amortization and research and development costs.

Integrated mixed signal products operating income decreased to $44.8 million, or 11.4% of segment revenue
in 2005 from $71.7 million, or 18.0% of segment revenue, in 2004. This decrease is attributable to lower revenue
levels and lower capacity utilization, which drove higher per unit product costs and a reallocation of resources to
support this segment’s design win activity.

Structured digital products operating income increased to $27.6 million, or 25.0% of segment revenue in
2005 from $22.9 million, or 19.1% of segment revenue, in 2004. This increase is attributable to improved
product sales mix and a decrease in operating expense due to a reallocation of resources to support integrated
mixed signal design win activity.

Net Interest Expense

Net interest expense for 2005 decreased to $13.8 million, compared with $18.6 million in 2004. The lower
interest expense was primarily attributable to the redemption of our senior subordinated notes (see further
discussion in “Liquidity and Capital Resources™), partially offset by a higher balance on our term loan beginning
in September 2005 due to additional financing obtained in conjunction with the Flextronics acquisition.

Other Expense

Other expense in 2005 increased to $34.7 million from $0.7 million in 2004, This increase is primarily due
to charges associated with the redemption of our senior subordinated notes in the first quarter of 2005.

41




Income Taxes

Income tax benefit was $3.1 million in 2005 compared with an income tax expense of $15.0 million in 2004.

The effective tax rate for 2005 was not a meaningful number. The effective tax rate was 22% in 2004. The
primary reason for recording a tax benefit on positive net income before taxes in 2005 is that there was a loss and
a corresponding tax benefit recorded in the U.S, for the year related to our debt refinancing activities in the first
quarter, while at the same time there was income and a corresponding tax expense recorded in foreign
jurisdictions with lower statutory tax rates. While the income in the foreign jurisdictions more than offset the
U.S. losses in 2005, the foreign tax expense was not large enough to offset the U.S. tax benefit. Contributing to
the large U.S. tax benefit was a reduction in our valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. Based on projections
of taxable income for future periods, we reversed approximately $6.2 million of valuation allowance in 2005 and
$6.4 million in 2004. We have reduced our deferred tax asseis through the use of a valuvation allowance to
amounts that are more likely than not to be realized.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal cash requirements are to fund working capital needs, meet required debt payments, including
debt service payments on our senjor credit facilities, complete planned maintenance of equipment and equip our
fabrication facilities. We anticipate that cash flow from operations, together with available borrowings under our
revolving credit facility, will be sufficient to meet working capital needs, interest payment requirements on our
debt obligations and capital expenditures for at least the next twelve months. Although we believe these
resources may also meet our liquidity needs beyond that period, the adequacy of these resources will depend on
our growth, semiconductor industry conditions and the capital expenditures necessary to support capacity and
technology improvements,

Our senior credit facilities consist of a $320.0 million senior secured term loan and a $90.0 million
revolving credit facility. We made a voluntary $35.0 million prepayment toward the term loan on December 29,
2006, and the remaining balance of the term loan was $279.6 miltion as of December 31, 2006. The term loan
requires principal payments, together with accrued interest, on the last day of March, June, Seplember and
December of each year, with the balance due on April 1, 2012. The amortization schedule for the required
quarterly principal payments changed due to this prepayment, and the revised required quarterly principal
payment amount is now $0.7 million. The interest rate on the senior secured term loan on December 31, 2006,
was 6.9%, based on LIBOR +1.5%. The revolving credit facility ($40.0 million of which may be in the form of
letters of credit) is available for working capital and general corporate purposes.

These credit facilities require us to maintain a consolidated interest coverage ratio and a maximum leverage
ratio and contain certain other nonfinancial covenants, all as defined within the credit agreement. The facilities
also generally restrict payment of dividends to parties outside of the consolidated entity. We were in compliance
with these covenants as of December 31, 2006, We anticipate continuing to be in compliance with these
covenants in the first quarter of 2007.

We generated $93.8 million in cash from operating activities in 2006, compared to $56.2 million in cash
from operating activities in 2005. This increase in operating cash flow was primarily due to increased net income
in 2006 and less cash used for working capital.

Other significant sources and uses of cash can be divided into investing activities and financing activities.
During 2006 and 2005, we invested in capital equipment in the amounts of $51.2 million and $34.5 million,
respectively. See “Capital Expenditures” below. During 2006, we paid an aggregate of $27.0 million for the
acquisitions of Starkey Laboratories’ integrated circuit design center and the ULP 6T SRAM and medical
SOC ASIC businesses of NanoAmp Solutions, Inc. During 2005, we paid cash of $138.5 million for the
Flextronics Acquisition, of which $110.0 million was financed by increasing our credit facility.
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During 2006, we used net cash from financing activities of $35.5 million, due primarily to prepayments
toward long-term debt, partially offset by issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options. During
2005, we generated net cash from financing activities of $63.6 million, due primarily to the addition of
$110.0 million to our term loan in the third quarter of 2005 to finance the Flextronics Acquisition, partially offset
primarily by lowering our long-term debt by $43.2 million in conjunction with the redemption of our 10%4%
senior subordinated notes and the refinancing of our senior credit facilities.

Capital Expenditures

During 2006, we spent $51.2 million for capital expenditures, compared with $34.5 million in 2005. Capital
expenditures for 2006 focused on expanding the capacity of Fab 2 in Belgium to compensate for the planned
closure of Fab 1, upgrading testers and handlers in our test operations and other equipment and facility upgrades.
Our annual capital expenditures are limited by the terms of the senior credit facilities. We believe we have
adequate capacity under our senior credit facilities to make planned capital expenditures.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than operating leases for certain equipment and real estate, purchase agreements for certain chemicals,
raw materials and services at fixed prices or similar instruments, we have no significant off-balance sheet
transactions and we are not a guarantor of any other entity’s debt or other financial obligations. None of these
off-balance sheet arrangements is likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in
financial condition, revenues or expenses, resuits of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources that is material to investors.

Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
The following table presents a summary of our contractual obligations and payments, by period, as of
December 31, 2006.
Cash Payments Due by Period

After 5
Total 1 Year 2.3 Years 4-5Years  Years

(in millions)

Total long-termdebt ... ......... .. .. i i $2796 $28 $56 $56 $2656
Operating leases . ... ... ... ... it iiiir i, 41.0 8.1 12.9 6.9 13.1
Purchase obligations ............... ... .. ... . oo, 11.2 28 56 2.8 —
Other long-term liabilities ... ... ... ... ..... .. ... ... .... 8.1 2.8 46 0.7 —
Total contractual cash obligations ......................... $339.9 $165 $28.7 3160 $2787

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB Issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities-including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115", This standard permits entities to
choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value and provides the opportunity
to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without
having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. This standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. We have not yet determined the impact, if any, this guidance will have on our results of
operations or financial position,

In October 2006, the FASB issued FSP 123(R)-5, "Amendment of FASB Staff Position FAS 123(R)-1".
FSP 123(R)-5 amends FSP 123(R)-1 for equity instruments that were originally issued as employee compensation
and
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then modified, with such modification made solely to reflect an equity restructuring that occurs when the holders
are no longer employees. We do not expect the adoption of FSP {23(R)-5 to have a material impact on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. This standard defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States, and expands disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. This standard s effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November |5, 2007, We have not yet determined the
impact, if any, this guidance will have on our results of operations or financial position.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48
(FIN No. 48}, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN
No. 48 clarifies the accounting and disclosure for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
statements. The Statement prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return to reduce diversity in
practice. This interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. In the quarter of adoption,
companies will be required to record the impact of adoption of FIN No, 48 to shareholders' equity. At this time, we do
not expecl the implementation of FIN No. 48 to have a material effect on our financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of changes in value of a financial instrument, derivative or non-derivative,
caused by fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Changes in these factors could
cause fluctuations in the results of our operations and cash flows. In the ordinary course of business, we are
exposed to foreign currency and interest rate risks. These risks primarily relate to the sale of products and
services to foreign customers and changes in interest rates on our long-term debt.

We have foreign currency exposure related to our operations in Belgium as well as other foreign locations.
This foreign currency exposure, primarily related to Euro-denominated instruments, is due to potential
fluctuations in our annual sales and operating costs denominated in foreign currencies as well as exposure arising
from the translation or remeasurement of our foreign subsidiaries' financial statements into U.S. dollars. For
example, a substantial portion of our annual sales and operating costs are denominated in Euros and we have
exposure related 1o sales and operating costs increasing or decreasing based on changes in euro currency
exchange rates. We attempt to mitigate the impact of this exchunge rate risk by utilizing financial instruments,
including derivative transactions pursuant to our policies. During December 2006, we entered into a foreign
exchange collar contract, which ensures conversion of €4.5 million in the first quarter of 2007 at a rate of no less
than $1.3030 and no more than $1.3700 per €1.

We also have foreign currency exposure arising from the translation or remeasurement of our foreign
subsidiaries' financial statements into U.S. dollars. The primary currencies to which we are exposed to
fluctuations include the euro, the Japanese yen and the Philippine peso. If the U.S. dollar increases in value
against these foreign currencies, the value in U.S. dollars of the assets and liabilities originally recorded in these
foreign currencies will decrease. Conversely, if the U.S. dollar decreases in value against these foreign
currencies, the value in U.S. dollars of the assets and liabilities originally recorded in these foreign currencies
will increase. Thus, increases and decreases in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to these foreign currencies
have a direct impact on the value in U.S. dollars of our foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities, even
if the value of these iems has not changed in their original currency. As of December 31, 2006, approximately
73% of our consolidated net assets were attributable to subsidiaries that prepare their financial statements in
foreign currencies. As such, a 10% change in the U.S. dollar exchange rates in effect as of December 31, 2006,
would cause a change in consclidated net assets of approximately $17.1 million, primarily due to euro
denominated exposures. We attempt to mitigate the impact of this exchange rate risk by utilizing financial
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instruments, including derivative transactions, pursuant to our policies. As of December 31, 2006, the existing
forward contract to sell €40.0 million on January 3, 2007 at a rate of $1.273980 per €1was offset by a spot
contract to buy €40.0 million at a rate of $1.31700 per €1. The net difference of the contracts, as well as the net
difference of previous contracts in 2006 of $2.2 million, was recorded in other comprehensive income on our
balance sheet. The Company currently does not have any forward contracts in place. When forwards are used,
they act as a hedging instrument to hedge net investment exposure in foreign subsidiaries. The forward contracts
are typically in euros and normally have maturities that do not exceed 100 days. All derivative contracts we
entered into are components of our hedging program and are entered into for the sole purpose of hedging an
existing or anticipated currency exposure, not for speculation or trading purposes.

When utilized, the fair value of our forward contracts is subject to change as a result of potential changes in
market rates and prices. If the U.S. dollar were to strengthen or weaken by (0% against the foreign currencies
that are hedged by our forward exchange contracts, the hypothetical value of the contracts would change
accordingly. However, these forward exchange contracts are hedges and consequently any market value gains or
losses arising from these foreign exchange contracts should be offset by foreign exchange losses or gains on the
underlying net assets and liabilities. Calculations of the above effects assume that each rate changed in the same
direction at the same time relative to the U.S. dollar. The calculations reflect only those differences resulting
from mechanically replacing one exchange rate with another. They do not factor in any potential effects that
changes in currency exchange rates may have on statement of operations translation, sales volume and prices and
on local currency costs of production.

Factors that could affect the effectiveness of our hedging programs include volatility of the currency and
interest rate markets, availability of hedging instruments and the our ability to accurately project sales, expenses
and cash balances. Actual gains and losses in the future may differ materially from our analysis depending on
changes in the timing and amount of interest rate and foreign exchange rate movements and our actual exposures
and hedges.

Our exposure (o interest rate risk consists of floating rate debt based on the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR} plus an adjustable margin under our credit agreement. A change of 10% in the interest rate would cause
a change of approximately $1.9 million in interest expense. We are also subject to interest rate risks on our
current cash and cash equivalent balances. For example, if the interest rate on our interest bearing investments
were to change 1% (100 basis points), interest income would have hypothetically increased or decreased by
$1.0 million during 2006. This hypothetical analysis does not take into consideration the effects of the economic
conditions that would give rise to such an interest rate change or our potential response to such hypothetical
conditions. Cash and cash equivalents include all marketable securities purchased with maturities of three ar
fewer months. Cash equivalents at December 31, 2006 and 2005, consisted primarily of investments in money
market funds.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our Management. including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). Our management assessed the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, our management
used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
("COSO") in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Management’s assessment and conclusion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of the acquired
NanoAmp Solutions (NanoAmp) business, which we acquired on September 8, 2006. As of and for the year
ended December 31, 2006, NanoAmp constituted approximately 0.6% and 0.9% of total assets and net assets,
excluding goodwill and intangible assets related to this acquisition, respectively and 0.6% and (1.0)% of
revenues and net income, respectively.

Our management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our internal control over financial reporting
was effective to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for externa! purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
based on the criteria set forth by the COSO.

Although our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our controls will prevent all error and all fraud. In
addition, our internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or deiect misstatements. Furthermore,
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risks that our controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued a report on our
assessment of our internal control over financial reporting, which is included herein.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the consolidated balance sheets of AMIS Holdings, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders” equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 of AMIS Holdings, Inc. and our report dated
February 27, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Salt Lake City, Utah
February 27, 2007
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders

AMIS Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AMIS Holdings, Inc. as of December 3t,
2006 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of AMIS Holdings, Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 12 to the financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company changed
its methed of accounting for stock-based compensation, as a result of its adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-
Based Payments™.

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of AMIS Holdings, Inc.’s internal control over financiat reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 27, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

fs/  ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Salt Lake City, Utah
February 27, 2007
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In millions, except share data)

2006 2005
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ........ ... . . it $ 771 % 9.7
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $3.4 million and $4.4 million at December 31,

2006 and 2003, respectively 10.1 999
TR 010 5= 71.5 64.3
Defermed tax a88eLS . ... .. i e 39 4.5
Prepaid EXPenses . .. ... e e 17.0 22.9
Other CUITENt A8SELS . .. o\ttt ittt it e e it es it aa e 15.3 8.8

TOtal CUITENE ASSELS . .+ o v v v vt e e e m e e et e ettt et aan e aen 300.9 297.1
Property, plant and equipment, et . ... .. ... ... e 2159 203.8
GoodWill, MBl . ... e e e e 89.1 72.6
Intangible @ssels, MEL . . . ... i i e i 100.6 92.5
Deferred 1aX 88818 . .. ..ot e e e 57.0 514
L 1T TP 234 23.4
Tolal A8SEES L . i oottt e e e e $ 7869 § 740.8
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-termdebt ... .. ... ... i e $ 28 % 3.2
Accounts payable . ... .. e 56.5 48.8
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities . .. ....... ... . ... . i 584 62.7
Foreign deferred tax liability ....... ... .. .. .o i 23 2.7
Income taxes payable .. ... ... ... s 1.7 0.7
Total current Habilities . ... .t it i et i e e 121.7 118.1
Long-term debt, less current portion . ....... ... .. i i e 276.8 314.7
Other long-term labilities ... ... ... . i e 57 8.2
Total liabilities . ... . i e e i e 404.2 441.0
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 88,171,454 and 86,348,367
shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
reSPECtIVEly . L e 0.9 0.9
Additional paid-incapital ... ... ... .. e 553.6 5344
Accumulated defiCit . ..o . e e e e (211.5) (248.9)
Deferred compensation . . ...ttt i e et _ 0.2)
Accumulated other comprehensive inCOME . ... ... ... 39.7 13.6
Total stockholders™ equity ........ ... i 3827 299.8
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ......... .. ... i i $ 789 $ 740.8

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In millions, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

RN .. .. it e $605.6 $503.6 $517.3
oSt Of FEVEIUE . . . . o e e e e e e 3345 2664 2710

2711 2372 2463

Operating expenses:

Research and development .. ... ... ... ... .. ... .. . . . iiiiiiii. 104.6 87.4 77.2
Marketingandselling . ......... ... ... . . 49.1 39.1 43.0
General and administrative ...... ... .. ... .. . . e 338 285 28.7
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets . ..................... 18.0 9.0 1.3
In-process research and development ... ... ... ... ... .. ... oL —_ 0.8 1.5
Restructuring and impairment charges . ... ...... ... .. .. ... .. ... 83 53 7.9
2138 170.1 1596
OPerating INCOIMIE . . ... vttt et et it et eiaa i 57.3 67.1 86.7
Other income (expense):
Interest BXpPense ... ... . e (22.3) (le.l) (20.7)
[Rterest iINCOME . . ... . o i i et 39 23 2.1
Other expense, NEL . ... oottt ittt e e e et (0.3) (34.7) (0.7
(18.7) (48.5) (19.3)
Income before income taxes . . ... .. .. e 38.6 18.6 67.4
Provision (benefit) for IncOme taxes . ..., ... i iii et 1.2 (3.1 15.0
Nt inCOmE .o e $374 $217 § 524
Basic net income pershare . .. ... i $043 $025 %063
Diluted net income per share .. ... .. ...t e $042 $025 %060
Weighted average number of shares used in calculating basic net income
PErShare ... e e 87.6 85.7 82.9
Weighted average number of shares used in calculating diluted net income
Per Share . ... e e 89.3 88.2 86.6

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In millions)

Balance at January 1, 2004
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ..................
Foreign currency translation
adjustment

Total comprehensive income ... ... ..
Exercise of stock options ...........
Issuance of common stock related to
acquisition
Employee stock purchase plan .. .....
Share-based compensation on
acceleration of stock option vesting
and options issued to
nonemployees . _................
Amortization of deferred
compensation

Balance at December 31, 2004
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ..................
Unrealized derivative gain . ... ..
Foreign currency translation
adjustment

Total comprehensive income . ... .. ..
Exercise of stock options
Issuance of common stock related to
exercise of warrant . ... ..........
Employee stock purchase plan .. ... ..
Amortization of deferred
compensation

Balance at December 31, 2005
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ..................
Impact of adoption of FASB
Statement No. 158
Unrealized derivative loss (net of
taxes of $1.5)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment

Total comprehensive income ........
Exercise of stock options
Issuance of common stock related to
acquisition
Employee stock purchase plan ... ...
Amortization of deferred
compensation
Share-based compensation expense . . .

Balance at December 31, 2006

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock  Paid-in ~ Accumwulated  Deferred  Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Compensation Income (Loss)  Total
82.0 $0.8 $5107 $(323.00 $(0.5) $17.0  $2050
— —_ — 524 — — 524
— — — — — 8.6 8.6
— — — 52.4 — 8.6 61.0
14 — 1.1 — — — 1.
1.3 — 16.5 — — — 16.5
0.1 — 1.5 — — — 1.5
— — 0.8 — —_ — 0.8
- = — — 0.1 — 0.1
84.8 0.8 530.6 (270.6) 0.4) 25.6 286.0
— — — 21.7 — — 21.7
— — — — — 0.1 0.1
— — — — — (12.0) (12.0)
— — — 217 — (11.9) 9.8
1.2 0.1 0.8 — — — 0.9
01 — — — — — —
03 — 29 — — — 29
— = — — 0.2 — 0.2
86.4 09 5343 (248.9) (0.2) 13.7 299.8
- — — 374 — — 37.4
— — — — — 0.3 03
_ _ — — (2.2) (2.2)
e — — — 27.9 27.9
— — — 374 -_— 26.0 63.4
06 — 0.6 — — — 0.6
09 — 8.5 — — — 8.5
03 — 23 — — — 23
— — — — 0.2 — 0.2
— — 79 — — — 79
88.2 $09 $553.6 S$(211.5) 0.0 $397 27

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In mitlions)

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities
NEL IMCOMIE L L et et e e e e e e e e e e e $374 § 217 $ 524
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . ... 67.9 55.0 43.8
In-process research and development . ... ... .. ... .. ... il — 0.8 1.5
Amortization of deferred financingcosts ........ ... ... ... ... ooiiiae 0.8 0.8 1.3
Share-based compensation expense ............. ... .., 79 0.2 0.9
Restructuring charges, netof cashexpended ........ ... ... ... . ... .. .. (0.6) 4.9 5.1
Impairment of equipment ........... . ... i i 0.6 — —
Provision for (benefit from) deferred incometaxes ....................... (4.4) (4.5) 2.2
Write-off of deferred financing fees ........ ... ... ... . .. ... 0.4 6.7 —
Loss on retirement of property, plant and equipment ...................... 0.3 0.1 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . ... 5.1y  (16.3) 0.4)
IRVENLOTIES L.\ttt i e 6.6y (11.5) (40
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ....... .. ... ... .. ... ... .. ..., (0.4) 1.0 (5.2)
Accountspayable .. ...... .. ... ... L 5.2 8.2 0.9
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . ............................ 9.8) (109 2.3)
Net cash provided by operating activities ................................... 938 56.2 96.2
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plantand equipment ............... ... . ... ... ... (51.2) (345 (324
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . ......................... — — 0.1
Purchase of business, netof cashacquired ................. ... ... ... ....... (27.0) (138.5) (26.8)
Changes inrestricted cash . ... ... .. e e 0.5 {L.2) 2.4
Changes in Other a8Se1S . ... .. ..ttt i et e (5.6) 2.1 3.3)
Net cash used in investing activities .......... ... ... .. . .., (83.3) (176.3) (60.0)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on long-termdebt .. .. ... .. . (38.2) (255.6) (1.2)
Proceeds from seniortermloan . ....... ... ... ... .. — 3200 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options for common stock and employee stock
purchase plan ... ... . 2.8 38 2.5
19 T o B T T T Ta T 1 £ 0.1 (4.5}
Payment to settle derivatives . ... ... . — 0.1 —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ........................... (35.5) 63.6 i3
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ............ ... 5.4 {8.3) 5.1
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... . (19.6) (65.0) 426
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year ... ..., ... .. .............. 96.7 161.7  119.1
Cash and cash equivalentsatend of year ................................. $77.1 & 967 81617
Supplementary cash flow information
Cash paid forinterest . .. ... ... . e $214 8§ 211 § 194
Cash paid for InCome taxes ... ... ... i e e $ 39 % 42 % 126
Supplementary disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities
Common stock issued for purchase of business . ............................. $ 85 %8 — § 167

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

1. Background, Basis of Presentation and Recapitalization
Background and Basis of Presentation

AMIS Holdings, Inc., through its wholly-owned subsidiary, AMI Semiconductor, Inc., {collectively, the
Company) is primarily engaged in designing, manufacturing and marketing integrated circuits worldwide. The
Company is headquartered in Pocatello, Idaho and has manufacturing operations in Pocatello, Idaho,
QOudenaarde, Belgium and Calamba, the Philippines, and design centers and sales offices throughout the world.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AMIS Holdings and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the consolidated
financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Several criteria must be met before the Company can recognize revenue from its products and revenue
relating to engineering design and product development. Management must apply its judgment in determining
when revenue recognition criteria are met.

The Company recognizes revenue from products sold directly to end customers when persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed or determinable, delivery is fulfilled and collectibility is reasonably
assured. In certain situations, the Company ships products through freight forwarders. In most cases, revenue is
recognized when the product is delivered to the customer’s carrier, regardless of the terms and conditions of sale.
The only exception is where title does not pass until the product is received by the customer, In that case, revenue
is recognized upon receipt by the customer. Estimates of product returns and allowances, based on actual
historical experience and the Company’s knowledge of potential quality issues, are recorded at the time revenue
is recognized or when the quality issues are known and are deducted from revenue.

Revenue from contracts to perform engineering design and product development are recognized as
milestones are achieved, which approximates the percentage-of-completion method. Costs associated with such
contracts are expensed as incurred unless the estimated costs of the contract will exceed the revenues. When this
occurs, the loss on the contract is recognized immediately. Revenues under contracts acquired as part of the
Flextronics acquisition are recorded using the completed contract method. This method is consistently applied to
each of these contracts and revenue is recognized accordingly when the item enters production or when the
contract is complete. Under contracts for which revenue is recognized as milestones are achieved, a typical
milestone billing structure is 40% at the start of the project, 40% at the creation of the reticle set and 20% upon
delivery of the prototypes. Since up to 409 of revenue is billed and recognized at the start of the design
development work and, therefore, could result in the acceleration of revenue recognition, management analyzes
those billings and the status of in-process design development projects at the end of each quarter to determine
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that the milestone billings approximate percentage-of-completion on an aggregate basis. Management compares
each project’s stage with the total level of effort required to complete the project, which management believes is
representative of the cost-lo-complete method of determining percentage-of-completion. Based on this analysis,
the relatively short-term nature of the Company’s design development process and the billing and recognition of
20% of the project revenue after design development work is complete (which effectively defers 20% of the
revenue recognition to the end of the contract), management believes the Company’s milestone method
approximates the percentage-of-completion method in all material respects.

Shipping and handling costs are expensed as incurred and included in cost of sales.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Certain specifically defined fundamental and
prototype research projects, executed by the Company’s Belgian subsidiary in collaboration with other research
centers, are partly funded by research and development grants provided by the IWT (Flemish Institute for the
enhancement of scientific technologic research in the industry) and the European Commission (the
“Authorities”). Such grants are recorded as a reduction to research and development expense as costs are incurred
and when it is reasonably assured that all conditions under the grant agreement will be met. Management
regularly evaluates whether it is reasonably assured that such conditions will be met.

Capitalized Software Development Costs for Internal Use

I accordance with the provisions of Statement of Position (SOP) No. 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of
Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use,” the Company capitalizes internal and external costs to
develop or obtain internal use software during the application development stage. Costs incurred during the
preliminary project stage are expensed as incurred, as are training and maintenance costs. The Company
capitalized approximately $0.5 million, $1.1 millien and $1.4 million relating to purchased software and the
internal and external costs to develop that software in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Amortization is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated vseful life of the assets, which has been determined
to be three years,

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of trade receivables. The Company’s customers include, but are not limited to, other U.S. and foreign
semiconductor manufacturers and manufacturers of computer systems, automobiles, and medical, industrial and
telecommunications equipment. Management believes that any significant risk of accounting loss is reduced due
to the diversity of its products and end customers. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers’ respective financial condition and requires collateral, such as prepayments or letters of credit, when
deemed necessary. The Company monitors the need for an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical
losses, economic conditions and expected collections of accounts receivable. No one customer accounted for
more than 10% of revenue or net accounts receivable for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are siated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (using the first in, first out method) or market. The Company
provides an allowance for inventories on hand that are in excess of forecasted demand. Forecasted demand is
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determined based on historical sales or inventory usage, expected future sales or inventory usage using backlog
and other projections and the nature of the inventories. The Company also reviews other inventories for
indicators of impairment and provides an allowance as deemed necessary.

The Company also provides an allowance for obsolete inventories, which are written off when disposed of.
The Company determines the cost of inventory by adding an amount representative of manufacturing costs plus a
burden rate for general manufacturing overhead to the inventory at major steps in the manufacturing process.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, including capitalized interest. Any assets acquired as part of
the purchase of all or a portion of another company’s operations are stated at their relative fair values at the date
of acquisition. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets ranging from three to thirty years. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as
incurred.

Depreciation expense related to property, plant and equipment was approximately $43.5 million,
$41.8 million and $40.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, is composed of a guarantee made by our Belgian
subsidiary on behalf of our Philippine subsidiary related to the lease of the Philippine facility. Restricted cash is
included as a component of other assets. {See Note 3.)

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recorded at the lower of cost or their net realizable value and are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over six months to fifteen years.

The following table summarizes the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for each major
class of intangible assets at December 31 (in millions):

2000 2005
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount  Amortization Amount  Amortization Useful Life
LICenses .. ...t %764 $66.6 $ 724 $63.3 0.5 to 13 years
Non-compete agreements . ................ 24 1.1 23 0.4 2 years
Customer relationships . .................. 59.3 9.8 45.8 30 4 to 10 years
Developed technology .. .................. 48.1 14.6 379 4.7 510 10 years
Patents . ... ... ... . .. . 8.4 2.1 6.6 1.2 5to 10 years
Contracts ............ccoveiiiiinnnnnnn.. 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.2 5 years
Total .. ... $195.1 $94.5 $165.3 $72.8

Amortization expense relating to intangible assets, except for acquisition-related intangible assets, was
approximately $1.0 million, $1.4 million and $2.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. These amounts are classified in research and development expenses in the accompanying
statements of income. Amortization expense related to acquisition-related intangible assets was approximately
$18.0 million, $9.0 million and $!.3 mitlion for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. These amounts are shown as a separate line item in operating expenses in the accompanying
statements of income. The accumulated amortization balances as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 include
the impact of translation from foreign currencies to the US Dollar and therefore, the change in accumulated
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amortization balances between the periods does not necessarily equal the amortization expense for the same
period.

The scheduled amortization expense for the next five years is as follows (in millions):

200 e 5204
2008 $19.7
2000 . e e e $159
2010 e $ 93
L) O $ 9.1

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company regularly evaluates the carrying amounts of long-lived assets, including its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, as well as the related depreciation and amortization periods, to determine
whether adjustments to these amounts or to the useful lives are required based on current circumstances or
events. The evaluation, which involves significant judgment by management, is based on various analyses
including cash flow and profitability projections. To the extent such projections indicate that future undiscounted
cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amounts of the related long-lived assets, the carrying amount
of the underlying assets will be reduced, with the reduction charged to expense so that the carrying amount is
equal to fair value, primarily determined based on future discounted cash flows.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs relate to fees incurred to obtain and amend bank term loans and revolving credit
facilities and fees incurred in connection with senior subordinated notes (see Note 6). These costs are being
amortized to interest expense over the respective lives of the debt issues on a straight-line basis, which
approximates the effective interest method. Amortization expense was approximately $0.8 million, $0.8 million
and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. During 2006, the
Company voluntarily prepaid a portion of the $320.0 million senior secured term loan. In connection with this
prepayment, the Company expensed approximately $0.4 million of unamortized debt issuance costs, which is
included as part of other expense on the accompanying 2006 consolidated statements of income. During 2005,
the Company repaid the senior subordinated notes. In connection with this repayment, the Company expensed
approximately $6.7 million of unamortized debt issuance costs, which is included as part of other expense on the
accompanying 2005 consolidated statements of income,

Goodwill

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, *Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company identified its
reporting units and determined the carrying value of the reporting units by assigning assets and liabilities,
including goodwill and intangible assets, to the reporting units. As of December 31, 2006, there is approximately
$84.5 million of the Company’s goodwill classified within the Company’s Integrated Mixed Signal Products
segment and $4.6 million within the Structured Digital Products segment. The Integrated Mixed Signal Products
segment is comprised of the following reporting units: Integrated Mixed Signal Product Line, Medical Wireless
Product Line and Image Sensing Product Line, The Structured Digital Products segment is also a reporting unit.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s gross goodwill balance is approximately
$110.9 million, and $94.4 million, respectively, with accumulated amortization of approximately $21.8 million
for each period. The Company’s goodwill increased in 2006 as a result of the acquisitions discussed elsewhere in
this annual report on Form 10-K. The Company’s goodwill balance is also impacted by foreign currency
translation.
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SFAS No. 142 requires a two-step annual impairment test. In the first step, the Company determines the fair
value of the reporting unit using a discounted cash flow valuation model and compares it 1o the reporting unit’s
carrying value. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, goodwill of the reporting unit is
considered not impaired and no further testing is required. If the fair value does not exceed the carrying value,
the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any.

In the second step of the goodwill impairment test, the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill is
compared to the carrying value. The implied fair vatue of the reporting unit goodwill is determined as if the
reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination. If the carrying vatue of the reporting unit goodwill
exceeds the implied value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess.

The Company’s valuation methodology requires management to make judgments and assumptions based on
historical experience and projections of future operating performance. If these assumptions differ materially from
future results, the Company may record impairment charges in the future. Additionally, the Company’s policy is
to perform its annual impairment testing for its reporting unit in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. The
Company performed its annual impairment test for goodwill during the fourth quarter of 2006 and concluded that
goodwill was not impaired.

Foreign Currency

The local currencies are the functional currencies for the Company’s fabrication facilities, sales operations
and/or product design centers outside of the United States, except for the Company’s operations in the
Philippines. Cumulative translation adjustments that result from the process of translating these entities’ financial
statements into U.S. dollars are included as a component of comprehensive income which totals approximately
$41.5 miilion, $13.6 million and $25.6 million as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for the Company’s operations in the Philippines. Remeasurement
adjustments that result from the process of remeasuring this entity’s financial statements into U.S. dollars are
included in the statements of income.

Translation gains and losses relating to balance sheet accounts in U.S. dollars held in foreign operations
with non-U.S. dollar functional currencies are recorded in the statement of operations as incurred.

Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions, such as those resulting from the settlement of
transactions that are denominated in a currency other than a subsidiary’s functional currency, are included in the
correlating line of the statement of income. The effects of foreign currency on the statement of income in 2006,
2005, and 2004 were immaterial.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded based on the liability method, which requires recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities measured
using enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in cffect when the difterences are expected to reverse. A
valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the deferred tax asset to an amount that is determined to be more likely
than not to be realized, based on an analyses of past operating results, future reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences and projected taxable income, including tax strategies available to generate future taxable
income. The Company’s analyses of future taxable income are subject to a wide range of variables, many of
which involve management's estimates and therefore the deferred tax asset may not be ultimately realized.

Stock Options

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 2004) on
January 1, 2006. SFAS 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock
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options. to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair vatues. This statement revises SFAS 123,
and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 25. The Company adopted SFAS 123(R) using the
modified prospective transition method and therefore, its consolidated financial statements for prior periods have
not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the effect of SFAS 123(R).

Share-based compensation expense that was recorded in 2006 includes the compensation expense for the
share-based payments granted in the current year, as well as for the share-based payment awards granted prior to,
but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the pro
forma provisions of SFAS 123. As of December 31, 2006, the total compensation cost related to unvested share-
based awards granted to employees under our stock option plans but not yet recognized was approximately
$13.3 million, net of estimated forfeitures of $4.3 million. This expense is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 6.3 years using the straight-line method.

During the third quarter of 2006, the Company implemented a change in its share-based compensation
strategy to utilize a combination of stock options and restricted stock units (RSUs) that vest over time based on
service, or vest based on a combination of performance and service rather than exclusively offering stock
options. On July 31, 2006, the Company granted 366,633 service-based RSUs to key exempt employees and
138,650 performance-based RSUs to a limited number of executive staff. These RSUs are included in the
determination of total share-based compensation expense. The projected number of shares that will actually be
issued pursuant to the performance-based RSUs is evaluated each reporting period and compensation expense is
recognized only for those shares for which issuance is probable. The number of shares that will be issued is
calculated by estimating how actual business performance at the end of the measurement period will compare to
predetermined performance targets. As of December 31, 2006, the Company determined that it was not probable
that any shares would be issued for 2006 under the performance-based RSUs. Consequently, no compensation
expense was recognized during the fourth quarter of 2006 and the expense recognized during the third quarter of
2006 was reversed. Since the performance conditions were not met, these RSUs will terminate on March 1, 2007.
As of December 31, 2006, there were approximately $2.6 million of total unrecognized compensation costs
related to the service-based RSUs, net of estimated forfeitures of $0.5 million. Compensation expense will be
recognized over the vesting period of two or three years from the vesting commencement date using the straight-
line method.

Effective January 1, 2006, compensation expense related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) is
also being recognized in accordance with SFAS 123(R). The total unrecognized compensation expense related to
this plan was immaterial to the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2006.

The Company incurred a total of $7.9 million for share-based compensation expense for the twelve-month
period ended December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2006, $0.3 million of the total share based compensation
was capitalized as inventory and the remaining expense was recorded to the following line items of the
Statements of Income and Balance Sheet (in millions):

Twelve months ended: As of
Financial Statement Line Item December 31, 2006 December 31, 2006
Costofrevenue ............................ $0.8
Research and development . ......... ... .. .. $3.1
Sales and marketing ............ ... ... ... $1.1
General and administrative ................... 529
INVENIOTY ..ot $0.3

As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R), the Company’s net income before income taxes was $7.5 million
lower and its net income is $5.1 million lower for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2006,
respectively, than if it had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25. The impact on net
income related to the RSUs was not considered because compensation expense would have been required under
APB 25 as well. Basic and diluted net income per share for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2006,
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are $0.06 lower, respectively, than if the Company had continued to account for share-based compensation under
APB 25.

‘The Company determined share-based compensation expense for options and/or warrants granted to
non-employees prior to January 1, 2006 in accordance with SFAS 123 and the Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) consensus on Issue No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to Other than
Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services.” The Company remeasured the fair
value of options or warrants granted to non-employees as the underlying options or warrants vested, Afier
January 1, 2006, the Company determined share-based compensation expense in accordance with SFAS 123(R),
in addition to the EITF consensus on Issue No. 96-18. The Company will continue to record the expense ai fair
value and re-measure it periodically.

In accordance with SFAS 123(R), any cash flows resulting from the tax benefits for tax deductions in excess
of the compensation expense recorded for those options {excess tax benefits) will be classified as financing cash
flows. There were no excess tax benefits recognized during the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2006.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company elected to follow the intrinsic value-
based method prescribed by APB 25, and related interpretations in accounting for employee share-based
compensation. Under APB 25, the Company did not record any compensation expense for stock options the
Company granted to employees where the exercise price equaled the fair market value of the stock on the date of
grant and the exercise price, number of shares eligible for issuance under the options, and vesting period are
fixed (which is generally the Company’s policy). The Company recorded deferred share-based compensation
when it granted stock options to employees at exercise prices less than the estimated fair value of the underlying
commeon stock on the grant date. The Company complied with the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 and
SFAS No. 148, which required the disclosure of pro forma net income and net income per share as if the
Company had expensed the fair value of the options in determining net income. The following table provides pro
forma information for the years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 that illustrates the net income
(in millions, except per share data), and net income per share as if the fair value method had been adopted under
SFAS 123

2005 2004
Netincome as rFeported .. ...ttt i e e $21.7 3524
Less: Share-based compensation expense determined under the fair value method, net of related
[ = & (v 1< (3% (3G9
Add: Compensation expense associated with accelerated stock options, net of related
L2 {1 1 — 04
Amortization of deferred compensation, net of related tax effects ..................... 0.1 0.1
Pro forma net INCOME . . .. .t e e e e $ 85 3490

Net income per share:

Basicas teported . ... e $025 50.63
Diluted asreported .. ... ... $025 30.60
Pro forma basic ... et $0.10 30.59
Proformadiluted ... ... ... i i s $0.10 $0.57

In December 20035, the Company accelerated the vesting of certain unvested and “out-of-the-money™ stock
options that were previously awarded to employees and officers that had exercise prices per share of $13.00 to
$20.00, in anticipation of adopting SFAS No. 123(R). As a result, options to purchase approximately 1.9 million
shares of the Company’s stock became exercisable immediately. The Company expected this acceleration to
reduce the pre-tax expense that it would have recognized with respect to share-based compensation under
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) by approximately $5.0 million in 2006, $2.7 million in 2007, and $0.9 miilion in
the aggregate for 2008 and 2009.
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The Company used the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model for its pro forma information required under
SFAS 123 and continues to use this model to value any share-based compensation under SFAS No. 123(R). The
Company estimated the fair value of options at the date of the grant based on the following weighted-average
assumptions for options granted during each period:

2006 2005 2004

Dividend yield ... o 0.0% 00% 0.0%
Volatility . . o e e 54.0% 66.0% 75.0%
Risk-free interest rate . . .. .. ... L. e 479% 4.18% 3.14%
Expected life in years ... ... i e et e 4.75 54 37
Weighted average fair value of options at grantdate . . ............ ... ..covvet, $4.75 $7.01 $8.05

Option valuation methods, including Black-Scholes-Merton, require the imput of highly subjective
assumptions, which are discussed below.

Expected Term—Options granted generally vest as follows: 25% of the shares on the first anniversary of
the vesting commencement date and the remaining 75% proportionately each month over the next 36 months.
Options granted expire seven years from the date of grant. Management does not believe that an adequate amount
of post-IPO data exists to use the Company’s experience to determine the expected term of the option grant. The
expected term currently used is calculated using the “shortcut approach” described in SAB 107, Under this
approach, the expected term is presumed to be the mid-point between the weighted average vesting date and the
end of the contractual term, taking graded vesting into account.

Expected Volatility-—SFAS 123(R) indicates that companies should consider volatility over a period
generally commensurate with the expected or contractual term of the stock option. AMIS Holdings, Inc. is a
relatively new public company and adequate data does not exist for this time period. Management does not
believe that historical stock price volatility accurately reflects option-related volatility as no post-IPO options
have been exercised as of December 31, 2006. Therefore, the volatility variable used is a benchmark of other
comparable companies’ volatility rates.

Expected Dividend—The dividend rate used is zero as the Company has never paid any cash dividends on
its common stock and does not anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future. The Company is also restricted from
paying dividends under its senior secured credit facilities.

Risl-Free Interest Rate—The inierest rates used are based on the implied yield currently available on U.S.
Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term equal to the expected life of the award,

Expected Forfeiture Rate—Management made an estimate of expected forfeitures and is recognizing
compensation costs enly for equity awards expected to vest, as required by SFAS 123(R). The estimated
forfeiture rate for options is determined using a weighted average of historical forfeiture rates and approximates
11.0% at December 31, 2006. Because RSUs with solely time-based vesting were granted only to exempt
employees, the Company estimated the expected forfeiture rate to be 8.5% based on the historical termination
rate for exempt employees. For RSUs with both performance-based and time-based vesting, which the Company
granted only to twelve key executives, the Company estimated the expected forfeiture rate based on a
combination of historical data and subjective judgment. The Company examined the historical forfeiture rate for
options held by these key executives, which is approximately 1%, and then estimated the number of executives
that would leave which produced an expected forfeiture rate of 2.1%.

Advertising

Advertising expenditures are charged to expense as incurred. Advertising expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, were not material to the consolidated financial statements.
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Net Income Per Share

The Company calculates net income per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic
net income per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. The dilutive effect of the common stock equivalents is included in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share only when the effect of their inclusion would be dilutive. Potentially dilutive common equivalent shares
consist of stock options, RSUs and warrants.

Options to purchase 5.1 million, 5.5 million, and 1.2 million shares of common stock and warrants 1o
purchase 4.6 million, 4.6 million, and 4.7 million shares of common stock were outstanding as of December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share as the
effect would have been anti-dilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted shares outstanding for the years ended
December 31 (in millions):

2006 2005 2004

Weighted-average basic shares outstanding . .................... 876 857 829
Effect of dilutive securities—shares jssuable upon exercise of

options, warrants and contingently issuable shares ............. 1.7 25 3.7

Weighted-average fully diluted shares outstanding ............... 803 882 866

I
||

Derivatives

The Company complies with SFAS No, 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,”as amended. SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring that every
derivative instrument, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, be recorded in the
balance sheet as either an asset or liability and measured at its fair value. The statement also requires that changes
in the derivative’s fair value be recognized in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. (See
Note 13 for further discussion.)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB Issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financtal Assets and Financial
Liabilities-including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115", This standard permits entities to choose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value and provides the opportunity to mitigate
volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply
complex hedge accounting provisions. This standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 13,
2007. The Company has not yet determined the impact, if any, this guidance will have on its results of operations or
financial position.

In October 2006, the FASB issued FSP 123(R)-5, “Amendment of FASB Staff Position FAS 123(R)-1",
FSP 123(R)-5 amends FSP 123(R)-! for equity instruments that were originally issued as employee compensation
and then modified, with such maodification made solely to reflect an equity restructuring that occurs when the
holders are no longer employees. The Company does not expect the adoptton of FSP 123(R)-5 to have a material
impact on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. This standard defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States, and expands disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. This standard is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has not yet
determined the impact, if any, this guidance will have on its results of operations or financial position.
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In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48
(FIN No. 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.”
FIN No. 48 clarifies the accounting and disclosure for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s
financial statements. The Statement prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return to
reduce diversity in practice. This interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. In
the quarter of adoption, companies will be required to record the impact of adoption of FIN No. 48 to
shareholders’ equity. At this time, we do not expect the Implementation of FIN No. 48 to have a material affect
on our financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts shown have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

3. Financial Statement Details

Inventories consist of the following at December 31 (in millions):

2006 2005

RAW MAtEHalS . . vttt e ieee et et $58 §$409
WOTK-IN-PrOCESS ..\ i ittt aine e e iiian e iein s 44.5 40.6
Finished goods . .. ... o i e 272 18.8
$775 3643

Other long-term assets consist of the following at December 31 (in millions):

2006 2005
Restricted Cash . . . oo vr ettt i e e $22 5126
Prepaid pension @ssel ............c.oiiiiiiaiii i 96 8.6
Debt iSSUATICE COSLS, T o v v v vt v it r e cnaem et iene e 2.8 4.0
(01117 U 3.8 8.2
$234 5234

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following at December 31 (in millions):

2006 2005
Landand buildings . ........coiiviii i $ 660 § 706
Machinery and equipment . ....... ... oo 464.1 433.7
Construclion-in-Progress ... .......euroereorananaromcaainssss 258 11.3
. 555.9 515.6
Less accumulated depreciation .. ....... ..o oot (340.0) (311.8)

$2159 §203.8




Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following at December 31 (in millions):

2006 2008
Accrued employee Compensation . ... . ... ..t en $28.9 $239
Reserve for restructuring charges .......... .. oo it 3.8 4.8
Reserve for product development projectlosses . ... ...ttt 3.1 8.6
Investment grantpayable . ...... ... . ... . .. 34 37
Reserve forwarranty . ... ... ... . ... ... 1.1 4.7
Interestpayable . ... ... . . ... 0.2 0.1
Other .. 15.9 16.9

5384 $627

4. Lease and Other Commitments

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under noncancelable operating lease arrangements,
some of which include various renewal options and escalation clauses. During the years ended December 31,
2006. 2005 and 2004, rental expense under such arrangements was approximately $7.7 million, $6.8 million and
$7.1 million, respectively.

Approximate future minimum annual rental commitments at December 31, 2006, are as follows
{(in millions):

2007 . e 38.1
2008 L e 3572
2000 . e $5.7
2000 $4.0
4 $2.9

To achieve more favorable pricing and ensure delivery when demanded, the Company contracts for certain
chemicals, raw materials, and services at fixed prices, but not fixed quantities. These contracts are renegotiated on
either a quarterly or annual basis. As no fixed quantities are required and terms are less than one year, no reportable
commitment is deemed to exist for these contracts. In October 1995, the Company entered into a 15-year
take-or-pay supply agreement under which Praxair, Inc. (“Praxair”) will supply 100% of the Company’s need for
certain industrial gases. The Company does have the option to purchase these gases elsewhere, if the Company can
prove that market prices are lower than those charged by Praxair. In 2006, 2005, and 2004 the Company purchased
approximately $1.2 million, $1.8 million, $1.3 million, respectively, under this agreement. No amounts have been
paid out under the take-or-pay provision of the contract.

From time to time, the Company enters into contracts with customers in which the Company provides some
indemnification to the customer in the event of claims of patent or other intellectual property infringement resulting
from the customer’s use of the Company’s technology. Such provisions are customary in the semiconductor
industry and do not reflect an assessment by the Company of the likelihood of a claim. The Company has not
recorded a liability for potential obligations under these indemnification provisions and would not record such a
liability unless the Company believed that the likelihood of a material obligation was probable.

5. Transactions with Related Parties
Shareholders’ Agreement

We are party to a sharchelders’ agreement with certain significant shareholders, each of which beneficially
owns more than 5% of our outstanding common stock, and certain other stockholders. This agreement covers
matters of corporate governance, restrictions on transfer of securities, tag-along rights, rights to compel a sale of
securities, registration rights and information rights.
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The Company is a “primary responsible party” to an environmental remediation and cleanup at its former
corporate headquarters in Santa Clara, California (see discussion below regarding indemnification by Nippon
Mining's subsidiary). Costs incurred by the Company include implementation of the clean-up plan, operations
and maintenance of remediation systems, and other project management costs. Management’s estimate of the
remaining cost to fulfill its obligations under the remediation effort, as determined in consultation with its
environmental consultants and the governing regulatory agency, is immaterial to the financial statements.
Remaining accruals for costs associated with the remediation are immaterial to the financial statements.

Nippon Mining’s subsidiary agreed to indemnify the Company for any obligation relating to this
environmental issue. In accordance with Statement of Position (SOP) No. 96-1, “Environmental Remediation
Liabilities,” because amounts to be paid by the Company and reimbursed by Nippon Mining’s subsidiary are not
fixed and determinable, the Company has not offset the receivable from Nippon Mining’s subsidiary against the
estimated liability on the consolidated balance sheets. Therefore, a receivable from Nippon Mining’s subsidiary
is recorded on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, related to this matter. The amounts are immaterial to the financial statements.

6. Long-Term Debt

The following table summarizes the Company’s outstanding long-term debt at December 31, (in millions):

2006 2005
TErMIOAN ..ottt ettt e e et e $279.6 %3179
Less CUIment POrTION . . . . ..o ottt eaemiaar e 2.8 3.2
Total long-termdebt ... ... ... $276.8 $314.7

The Company and AMI Semiconductor, Inc., its wholly owned subsidiary, maintain senior secured credit
facilities consisting of a senior secured term loan and a revolving credit facility.

On March 2, 2005, AMI Semiconductor, Inc., announced a tender offer for its 10 ¥4% senior subordinated
notes as well as a refinancing of the existing $125.0 million senior secured term loan and $90.0 million revolving
credit facility. On April 1, 2005, 100% of the outstanding notes had been repurchased and the indenture
governing the senior subordinated notes was discharged. Proceeds from a new senior secured term loan of
$210.0 million, entered into on April 1, 2005, and existing cash of $75.8 million were used to purchase the
outstanding notes for $130.0 million, pay a premium on the notes and expenses associated with the tender of
$28.0 million in the aggregate, which is recorded in other expense on the accompanying consolidated statement
of income, repay the outstanding balance of the previous senior secured term loan of $123.2 million, with the
remainder used to pay accrued interest on the notes and the previous senior secured term loan and pay expenses
related to the refinancing of the senior credit facilities. As a result of these transactions, total debt was reduced by
$43.2 million. In conjunction with the refinancing, the Company recorded a charge of $6.7 million in other
expense on the accompanying consolidated statement of income in the first quarter of 2005 for the write off of
deferred financing and other costs associated with the notes and the previous senior credit facilities. In addition,
the Company recorded $2.9 million in deferred financing costs related to the new senior credit facility, included
in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, which will be amortized over the term
of the senior credit facilities.

On September 9, 2005, AMI Semiconductor, Inc. amended its senior secured credit facilities by borrowing
an additional $110.0 million under the term loan to fund a portien of the purchase of substantially all of the assets
and certain liabilities of the semiconductor division of Flextronics International USA Inc. (see Note 17). The new
amended senior credit facilities consist of the new amended senior secured term loan and a $90.0 million
revolving credit facility. The Company recorded an additional $1.6 million in deferred financing costs related to
this amendment. Pursuant to the senior credit facility the covenants require the debt to be collateralized by 100%
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of the domestic corporations’ equity and 65% of the directly owned foreign corporations’ equity. The Company
made a voluntary $35 mitlion prepayment toward the term loan on December 29, 2006, and the remaining
balance of the term loan was $279.6 million as of December 31, 2006. The term loan requires principal
payments, together with accrued interest, on the last day of March, June, September and December of each year,
with the balance due on April 1, 2012, The amortization schedule for the required quarterly principal payments
changed due to the aforementioned prepayment, and the revised required quarterly principal payment amount is
now $0.7 million. The interest rate on the senior secured term loan, which is based on LIBOR + 1.5, on
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, was 6.9%, 5.9% and 4.9%, respectively. The revolving credit facility
{$40.0 miltion of which may be in the form of letters of credit) is available for working capital and general
corporate purposes.

The facilities require the Company to maintain a consolidated interest coverage ratio and a maximum
leverage ratio and contain certain other nonfinancial covenants, all as defined within the credit agreement. The
facilities also generally restrict payment of dividends to parties outside of the consolidated entity. The Company
was in compliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2006,

Letters of Credit

During January 2005 one of the Company’s subsidiaries, AMI Semiconducter Belgium, BVBA obtained a
Letter of Credit in association with the planned relocation to a new facility in the Philippines. The Letter of
Credit is for $6.0 million, of which $3.0 million is collateralized with a cash deposit recorded as restricted cash in
other assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, The face value of the Letter of Credit decreases
every six months beginning June 30, 2006, by $0.2 miltion for 13 years and the $3.0 million of collateral is
reduced by the same amount for 7.5 years. As of December 31, 2006, the value of the cash deposit was
$2.8 million. The bank issuing the Letter of Credit has the right to create a mortgage on the real property of AMI
Semiconductor Belgium, BVBA as additional collateral, which had not been done as of December 31, 2006.

Aggregate Maturities of Long-Term Debt

The following table summarizes the aggregate maturities of the Company’s long-term debt (in millions):

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter

TermLoan ......... ... .. .o, $2.8 528 %28 $28 %28 $265.6

7. Customer-Funded Product Development Activities

Customer-funded product development activities are accounted for as contracts. The Company evaluates
individual contracts and, where appropriate, records an accrual for any contracts that individually are expected to
result in an overall loss. Revenue earned and costs incurred on product development contracts for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, are as follows: 2006—$37.7 million and $24.7 million, respectively; 2005—
$32.3 million and $23.1 million, respectively; and 2004—$32.3 million and $24.1 million, respectively.
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8. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31 is as follows (in millions):

2006 2005 2004
Federal:
[0tV o= 11 S $01 $— $ 0.1
Deferred . ... o e 0.7 (6.4) 5.5
08 (6.4) 5.6
State:
LT 3 (=1 | A O — —_ —_
Deferred . .. e e 0.1 (0.7) 1.0
0.1 0.7 1.0
Foreign:
L0y =31 & PR 5.7 1.4 12.3
Deferred . ... s (5.4) 2.6 (3.9)
0.3 4.0 8.4
B 11 751 [ O $12 $3.1) $150

The provision (benefit) for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the federal statutory
income tax rate of 35% for the following years ended December 31 as follows (in millions):

2006 2005 2004
Federal tax al StatulOry FALE . . ...ttt t e ie e enans $135 $ 65 8236
State taxes (net of federal benefit) ... ... ... ... ... .. .. . oL 1.5 0.7 4.0
Impact of foreign tax rates ... i e (4.6) ah (5.6)
Change in valuation allowance .......... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... (6.2) (6.2) (6.4)
Change in estimate of blended statutoryrate . ....................... — 1.7 —
Permanent differences .. ... ... ... .. i 0.8 0.9 0.8
Research and development/investment tax credits .................... (4.6) 4.0) (1.9
Non-deductible share-based compensation .............. ... . ...... 0.8 — —
Other, Nel . . ... i e e — 1.0 0.5
Total ...... e e e e $12 %31 3150
Effective taX Tae . . . ottt e i et 31% -16.7% 223%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant
components of the Company’s deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are as foltows at December 31 (in millions):

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Foreign research and development investment deduction ................ $ 186 $ 163
Reserves not currently deductible .. ... ... ... .. . il 6.2 94
Intangible asset basis difference ....... ... ... ool 513 62.6
Net operating loss carryforwards ......... ... .. ... .. . i it 46.5 50.4
Tax credit carryforwards . ... .. .. e e 6.6 42
Share-based compensation .......... ..ottt 24 —
Oher ..o e 19 02
Total deferred tax assels .. ... ... ... .ttt ittt 139.5 143.1
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax in excess of book depreciation .............. ... ... .. . ... ol (3L.2) (36.1)
Prepaid pension asset .. ... .. ... e 33 2.9
L1111 o (7.3) (5.6)
Total deferred tax liabilities .. .. ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... .. ... (41.8) (44.6)
97.7 98.5
Valuation allowance ... ...t e (39.1) (45.3)
Net deferred tax assets . ..ottt et i $ 586 § 532

Pretax income from foreign operations was approximately $27.2 million, $23.9 millicn and $36.2 miflion
for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, undistributed pretax earnings of certain foreign
subsidiaries in the amount of approximately $139.7 million is considered by the Company to be permanently
invested outside the U.S. and, accordingly, U.S. income taxes have not been provided on this amount.

A portion of the Company’s operations in the Philippines and in Switzerland is eligible for tax holidays
which expire in whole or in part during 2010 and 2011. The impact of these tax holidays to income taxes was
$1.1 million in 2006 and was not material in 2005 or 2004.

During 2005, the Company recorded a charge of $1.7 million to reduce its deferred tax asset to reflect a
change in its estimated U.S. statutory tax rate from 41% to 39%. This statutory tax rate change is a result of a
decrease in the Company’s estimated blended state tax rate from 6% to 4%, based upon the apportionment of its
income to states in which the Company does business, net of the deduction for federal income tax purposes.

Changes in the Company’s deferred tax valuation allowance for 2006 included a decrease of $6.2 million
based on projections of future U.S. taxable income. Changes in the Company’s deferred tax valuation allowance
for 2005 included a decrease of $2.5 million relating to the revaluation of deferred tax assets in conjunction with
the statutory rate change from 41% to 39% explained above. In 2005 these decreases were offset by an increase
in the deferred tax valuation allowance of $3.6 million relating to exercises of employee stock options. The
valuation allowance on these deferred tax assets will be reduced in the period in which the Company realizes a
benefit on its tax return from a reduction of income taxes payable attributable to the use of its net operating loss
carryforwards generated by deductions associated with the exercise of employee stock options. When recogmzed,
the tax benefit of these loss carryforwards will be accounted for as a credit to additional paid in capital rather
than as a reduction of income tax expense. As of December 31, 2006, deferred tax assets of approximately
$12.6 million related to net operating loss carryforwards resulting from the exercise of employee stock options
prior to January 1, 2006.

As discussed in Note 12, the Company adopted FAS 123(R) as of January 1, 2006 which changed the
reporting of the income tax benefits related to the exercise of employee stock options. As a result of this change,
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the Company no longer reports the income tax benefit of the exercised options as a deferred tax asset until a
benefit is realized. That is, the Company is considered an NOL company pursuant to FAS 123(R), and therefore
cannot recognize the income tax benefits in the Company’s financial statements for years after 2005 on the
exercise of employee stock options because such tax deduction merely increases the net operating loss and does
not reduce income taxes payable. Therefore, no similar adjustment to the valuation allowance is necessary for
2006. As of December 31, 2006 the Company has income tax benefits from the exercise of stock options that
occurred since the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) of $1.5 million that are not included in the financial statements.
For tax years after 2003, the Company has reported a temporary difference for the book compensation expense
related to non-qualified stock options. When options are exercised and the income tax benefit is recognized, the
tax benefit of these carryforwards will be accounted for as a reduction in the income taxes payable and a credit to
additional paid in capital thus removing the temporary difference.

Similarly, a portion of the Company’s deferred tax assets attributable to the carryforward of tax credits for
increasing research and experimentation expenditures (R&D Tax Credit) has been generated by costs relating to
the exercise of employee stock options. As of December 31, 2006, deferred tax assets pertaining to the portion of
R&D Tax Credit carryforwards resulting from the exercise of employee stock options were immaterial to the
financial statements. When recognized, the tax benefit of the R&D Tax Credit carryforwards will be accounted
for as a credit to additional paid in capital rather than as a reduction of income tax expense.

The Company has prepared an analysis of projected future taxable income, including tax strategies available
to generate future taxable income. Based on that analysis, the Company believes its valuation allowance reduces
the net deferred tax asset 1o an amount that will more likely than not be realized.

At December 31, 2006, aggregated federal and state net operating loss carryforwards were $114.7 million and
aggregated tax credit carryforwards were $6.6 million. Net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in
2021. The tax credit carryforwards include federal and state research and development credits of $3.6 million and
state investment tax credits of $2.2 million, which begin expiring in 2015, and other miscellaneous credits. The state
investment tax credits are treated as a reduction in income taxes in the year in which the credits arise in accordance
with APB 4, “Accounting for the Investment Credit”, At December 31, 2006, the Company had no remaining
foreign net operating loss carryforwards. Under the “change of ownership” provisions of the Internal Revenue Code
utilization of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards may be subject to an annual limitation.

9. Employee Benefit Plans
Defined Contribution Plans

Substantially all United States employees are eligible to participate in a 401(k) plan sponsored by the
Company. This plan requires the Company to match 50% of employee contributions, as defined, up to 6% of the
employee’s annual salary. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, employer contributions
totaled approximately $2.1 million, $1.9 million and $1.8 million, respectively.

Certain Belgian employees are eligible to participate in a defined contribution plan. Under the terms of the
plan, the Company is required to contribute amounts based on each respective employee’s pay grade. For the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 employer contributions totaled approximately $0.7 million,
$0.6 million and $0.6 million, respectively.

Employees in certain of the Company’s overseas subsidiaries are covered by defined contribution plans.
These plans provide contributions based on the employees” annual salary. Employer contributions to these plans
are not material to the consolidated financial statements.

Defined Benefit Plan

Certain Belgian emplovees are also eligible to participate in a defined benefit retirement plan. The benefits of
this plan are for all professional employees who are at least 20 years old and have an employment agreement for an
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indefinite period of time. Employees in the Philippines are covered by a noncontributory defined benefit retirement
plan (the Philippine Plan). The Philippine Plan provides employees with a lump-sum retirement benefit equivalent
to one month’s salary per year of service based on the final monthly gross salary before retirement.

On December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158,
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R).” SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or
underfunded status (i.e., the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligation)
of a defined benefit postretirement plan in its statement of financial position and to recognize changes in the
plan’s funded status in comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur. An adjustment is made to
accumulated other comprehensive income at adoption to represent the net unrecognized actuarial losses,
unrecognized prior service costs, and unrecognized transition obligation remaining from the initial adoption of
Statement 87. These amounts will be subsequently recognized as net periodic pension cost pursuant to the
Company’s historical accounting policy for amortizing such amounts. The standard also requires an employer to
measure the funded status of a plan as of the end of its fiscal year.

The incremental effects on individual lines of the statement of financial position of adopting SFAS 158 is
shown below at December 31, 2006 (in millions):

Prior to Effect of As Reported at

Adopting SFAS  Adopting SFAS  December 31,
158 158 2006
NON-CUrrEnt PEnSioNn @SSEIS . .\ v vv e e iy iaeenns $83 $13 $£96
Non-current pension liability .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ..., — $05 $05
Non-current deferred tax assets . ... ....cooi it iiinennnns $57.5 $(0.5) $57.0
Accumulated other comprehensive income . .. .................... . $39.5 $03 $39.8

The following disclosures regarding the Belgium pension plan are based upon an actuarial valuation
prepared for the years ended December 31 {in millions):

2006 2005
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period . ... ... ... e $526.5 3315
B T -5 25 27
T o o3 1.2 1.3
Benefits, administrative expenses and premiums paid ... ... .. ... ... it e (2.5) (0.3)
Actuarial Gain . .. e e (1.1 4.5)
Foreign currency translation (gain} loss . ... ... ... .. . i i i e 3.2 4.2)
Benefit obligation atend of period .. ... .. i i e e e e 29.8 265
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginningof period ... ... ... . . ... e $358 $38.8
Actual Telurm On PN @S5S . . oottt e e e e e 1.9
Benefits, administrative expenses and premiums paid . .. ... .. o e (2.5)
Foreign currency translation (loss) gain . . ... ... e

Fairvalue of plan assetsatend of period . ... .. it i e i e e

Excess of plan assets over benefit obligation .. ... ... . . . . e
Accumulated Benefit Obligation—December 31,2006 . . ... ... .. .

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
BT o ol T A

o o

— w
w2 \P".‘Di.\ci:‘“
tn oalnlb

81 Gt I 1.2 1.3
Expected return on plan assels . .. ... ... i e e e s 2.3 (.5
Net periodic Pension COSE . ... v ettt ittt e e e i e 314 25
Weighted average assumptions:

DaSCOUME TALE L o oot ottt st i et i e e ettt it e 4.25% 4.5%
Expected return on plan assets .. ... . i i e 59% 4.5%
Compensation [ale IMCTEASE . . . .. ...ttt it ettt e e e et et e e e e e e 3.0% 4.0%




The overfunded status of the plan of $9.6 mitlicn at December 31, 2006, is recognized in the accompanying
statement of financial position as a non-current pension asset. Pursuant to the adoption of FAS 158, the
unrecognized actuarial gain of $1.0, net of taxes, that has not yet been recognized in net periodic pensiocn cost,
was included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2006.

The fund operates under an investment strategy that is designed to achieve an appropriate diversification of
investments as well as safety and security of the principal invested. Beginning in 2005, under the Company’s
contract with the plan administrator, 40% of the fund is guaranteed a minimum rate of return of 3.75% (formerly
the entire fund was guaranteed a minimum rate of return of 3.75%). The remaining 60% of assets invested are
allocated to certain global sub-asset categories within prescribed ranges in order to promote international
diversification across security type, issue type, investment style, industry group and economic sector in order to
generate greater returns for the plan assets. Projected benefits to be paid over the next ten years are as follows (in
millions):

Expected Benefits
to be Paid
2 Pt 504
2008 e e e e 50.7
2000 e $0.1
2000 e e e e $1.2
2 ) P $0.1
20122006 ... e $3.3

Total benefit obligations under the Philippine Plan and contributions to it are not material to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006. Employees in certain of the Company’s
overseas subsidiaries are covered by other contributory defined benefit plans. Total benefit obligations under
these plans and contributions to these plans are aiso not matenal to the consolidated financial statements.

Collective Bargaining Agreements

At December 31, 2006, the employees located in Belgium, representing 26% of the Company’s worldwide
labor force, are represented by unions and have collective bargaining arrangements at the national, industry and
company levels.

10. Contingencies

The Company is subject to various claims and legal proceedings covering matters that arise in the ordinary
course of its business activities. Management believes any liability that may ultimately result from the resolution
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position,
operating results, or cash flows.

In 2004 the Company produced parts for a customer that the customer incorporated into its product that it
shipped to its customers. After experiencing a number of product failures, the customer initiated a recall of its
product. The Company reached an agreement with the customer for the return of parts in the recalled products for
$5.0 million in cash, in exchange for a release for all past and future claims between the customer and the
Company. The Company had paid this amount in full as of December 31, 2006. As a result of this, the Company
submitted a claim against its professional liability insurance and received consideration of $0.7 million, which
was recorded as a reduction of cost of revenue during 2006.

The Company is a “primary responsible party” to an environmental remediation and cleanup at its former
corporate headquarters in Santa Clara, California. Costs incurred by the Company include implementation of the

clean-up plan, operations and maintenance of remediation systems, and other project management costs.
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However, Nippon Mining’s subsidiary agreed to indemnify the Company for any obligation relating to an
environmental issue. In accordance with Statement of Position {(SOP) No. 96-1, “Environmental Remediation
Liabilities,” because amounts to be paid by the Company and reimbursed by Nippon Mining’s subsidiary are not
fixed and determinable, the Company has not offset the receivable from Nippon Mining’s subsidiary against the
estimated liability on the consolidated balance sheets. Therefore, a receivable from Nippon Mining's subsidiary
is recorded on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, related to this matter. The liability and receivable amounts are immaterial to the financial
statements.

11. Warrants

In 2000, AMIS Holdings issued a warrant to Nippon Mining's subsidiary to purchase approximately
4.6 million shares of common stock for an initial exercise price of $19.41 per share. The warrants, which became
exercisable upon the initial public offering in 2003, expire on December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2006 and
2005, AMIS Holdings had 4.6 million shares of its authorized, unissued common shares reserved for issuance
pursuant to the warrant obligation.

12. Share-Based Compensation

The Company grants stock options and RSUs pursuant to its Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive
Plan, which was originally adopted on July 29, 2000. In 2003, the Board of Directors amended and restated the
2000 Equity Incentive Plan and revised the share reserve such that it shall not exceed in the aggregate
approximately 11.9 million shares of common stock, plus an annual increase on the first day of each fiscal year
during the term of the Plan beginning January 1, 2003, through January 1, 2010, in each case in an amount equal
to the lesser of (i) 1.8 million shares, (ii} 2.5% of the number of shares of the common stock outstanding on such
date, or (iii) an amount determined by the Board of Directors.

The Company has approximately 4.3 million shares of common stock available for grant at December 31,
2006, under the Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan. The Company has reserved shares of
common stock for issuance for all outstanding awards and shares of common stock available for grant under the
Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan.

Stock Options

Options granted under the 2000 Equity Incentive Plan generally vest as follows: 25% of the shares vest on
the first anniversary of the vesting commencement date and the remaining 75% vest proportionately each month
over the next 36 months. Options granted expire seven years from the date of grant.

73




Stock Option Activity

A summary of option activity for common stock options is as follows (in millions, except per share
amounts):

Weighted-
Number of average

Stock Options Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate

Outstanding Exercise Price Contractual Life Intrinsic Value
Balance at January 1,2004 ... ... .......... 49 $ 211 7.75 years
Optionsgranted .................. ... ..... 29 15.05
Optionsexercised ............. ... ... ... (1.4) 0.76
Optionscanceled ......................... ©.3) 13.87
Balance at December 31,2004 .............. 6.1 $ 8.08 8.12 years
Optionsgranted .. ............. ... ........ 3.0 11.68
Optionsexercised ........................ (L.2) 0.81
Optionscanceled ......................... ©0.4) 12.57
Balance at December 31,2005 .............. 7.5 $10.40 7.23 years
Options granted .......................... 2.4 9.41
Optionsexercised ........................ (0.6) 0.94 $52
Optionscanceled ......................... 0.7 11.69
Balance at December 31,2006 .............. 8.6 $10.68 6.38 years $1455

The following information relates to common stock options at December 31, 2006:

Weighted Average

Number Weighted-Average Remazining Aggregate Intrinsic
w (in millions) Exercise Price Caontractual Life Value (in millions)
Exercisable .......................... 4.7 $10.93 6.46 years $11.8
Vested or expected to vest ............... 79 $10.71 6.38 years $14.0
Vested during 2006 .................... 1.1 $10.15 5.96 years $15
Unvestedat 1/1/06 . .................... 32 $10.68 6.66 years
Unvested at 12/31/06 . .................. 39 $10.38 6.28 years

The number of options that are expected to vest is all outstanding options less expected forfeitures. The
aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying awards and
the quoted price of the Company’s commaon stock for the options that were “in-the-money”. There were
approximately 3.4 million outstanding options that were “in the money” as of December 31, 2006.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company grants RSUs that vest over time solely based on continuous service as well as RSUs that vest
based on a combination of service-based and performance-based requirements. The Company measures the fair
value of the RSUs based upon the market price of the underlying common stock as of the date of grant.

The service-based RSUs vest over a period of two or three years. For the RSUs with a two-year vesting
period, one-third of the amount of the grant vests on the grant date, with another third vesting on each of the first
and second anniversaries of the grant date. For those with a three-year vesting period, one-third of the grant vests
on each of the first, second, and third anniversaries of the grant date. The initial service-based RSUs were granted
during the third quarter of 2006 to key exempt employees.

The performance-based RSUs issued in the third quarter of 2006 would have begun service-based vesting
based on the achievement of performance goals for the six-month period ending on December 31, 2006. The
minimum performance goals were not achieved and therefore, all performance-based RSUs will terminate on
March 1, 2007. Accordingly, no expense was recorded related to the performance-based RSUs.
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Restricted Stock Unit Activity

Weighted
Nomber of Average
RSUs Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Outstanding Average Grant Contractual Intrinsic Value
(in millions) Date Fair Value Life (in millions)
RSUsawarded ................cciiieernnnnnnn. 0.5 $9.38
RSUswested ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ..c ... — —

$9.38 1.37 years 554

$9.38 1.30 years $49

Lh

0.
Expected to vest at December 31,2000 ............. 0.

Lh

Emplovee Stock Purchase Plan

During 2003, the Company adopted the Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) and
reserved approximately 2.3 million shares for use under the plan. The plan was amended on February 1, 2005.
This plan provides employees the opportunity to purchase common stock of the Company through payroll
deductions. Under the plan, the Company’s employees, subject to certain restrictions, may purchase shares of
common stock at 90% of fair market value at the purchase date, which is the last trading date within the
applicable six-month offering period. As of December 31, 2006, there were approximately 0.1 million shares
expected to be purchased in the first quarter of 2007.

13. Derivatives and Hedging

The Company has entered into derivative contracts to hedge forecasted Euro-denominated income streams.
The Company has not chosen to pursue cash flow hedge accounting treatment under SFAS No. 133 and,
therefore, changes in fair value are recognized on a current basis in the statement of income. The Company has
also entered into derivative contracts to hedge the Euro-denominated net investments of our European
subsidiaries that use the euro as their functional currency, The Company has met the requirements pursuant to
SFAS No. 133 and these derivatives qualify as hedges. Therefore, the Company records the changes in fair value
in Other Comprehensive Income on the Balance Sheet. The Company’s objectives with holding derivatives are to
minimize the risks associated with Euro-denominated income, mitigate the exposure arising from the translation
or remeasurement of our foreign subsidiartes' financial statements into U.S. dollars, and to reduce the effect these
exposures have on results of operations.

The amounts recognized in the statements of income pertaining to these hedges, including amounts related
to hedge ineffectiveness, were not material for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, or 2004, No cash flow
hedges were derecognized or discontinued in 2006, 2005, or 2004.

14. Restructuring and Impairment Charges

In December of 2006, the Company adopted a plan to dispose of certain testers that were no longer useful.
The Company expects that the final sale of these testers will occur during 2007. The Company determined that
the carrying values of the testers exceeded their fair values. Consequently, the Company recorded an impairment
loss of $0.6 million, which represents the excess of the carrying values of the testers over their fair values, less
cost to sell. The impairment loss is recorded as part of the restructuring and impairment expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Income for 2006. The carrying value of $1.1 million of the assets that are held for sale
are included in the property, plant and equipment line in the Consolidated Balance Sheet due to immateriality.
However, these assets are no longer depreciated.

Pursuant to FASB Statement 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” and
EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit
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an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring),” in 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, senior
management and the Board of Directors approved plans to restructure certain of the Company’s operations.

The 2006 restructuring plan involved the termination of certain management and other employees, as well
as the potential closure of certain offices. This plan was entered into in order to realign the Company’s resources
and locations. The original estimated expense of $1.0 million was decreased to $0.6 million during the third
quarter of 2006 as there was no longer any intention to close any offices related to this plan. Terminations
occurred across several departments within the Company. As of December 31, 2006, total expenses of
approximately $0.6 million related to this plan have been recognized, all of which has been paid. The Company
does not expect any other material expense to be incurred in relation 1o this plan.

The 2005 consotidation plan involved the consolidation of the 4-inch fabrication facility in Belgium into the
6-inch fabrication facility in Belgium and the termination of certain employees. The objectives of the plan are to
reduce manufacturing costs of the Company and ensure that the assets of the Company are being utilized
effectively. The negotiations with the workers’ council are complete with respect to the severance package to be
offered, however the number of employees to be terminated is not yet fixed and is dependent upon future
business needs. The Company currently estimates the costs related te one-time termination benefits to be
approximately $10.3 million. These employees are likely to be located in the Belgian facility. Expenses
recognized during 2006 were approximately $5.6 million. Total expenses to date related to this plan were
approximately $10.5 million, net of approximately $0.6 million of expenses related to this plan that were
reversed in 2006. Approximately $6.8 million has been paid. An accrual of approximately $3.7 million for
additional severance and consolidation expenses has been included in the accompanying balance sheet as of
December 31, 2006. Additional expenses expected to be incurred relating 1o this plan primarily relate to
qualification of products in the 6-inch fabrication facility, equipment relocation costs, and decommissioning and
decontamination of the 4-inch fabrication facility. In the aggregate, total expense related to this restructuring plan
is expected to be in the range of approximately $20.0 million to $23.0 million, which will be recorded in 2007
and the first half of 2008. This plan is expected to be complete during the first half of 2008.

The 2004 plan involved the relocation of the Philippine test facility to a larger building and the
consolidation of sort operations in the United States and Belgium into the new facility, the move of certain
offices to lower cost locations and the termination of certain employees. The objectives of the plan were to
increase the competitiveness of the Company, provide future flexibility in the Company’s test operations, and
manage costs during a period of end-market weakness. In total, approximately 110 employees in the United
States and Belgium were terminated as part of this program. In addition, approximately 50 employees in the
Philippines were also terminated. These terminations affected virtually all departments within the Company’s
business. Actual expenses related to the plan totaled approximately $9.8 million as of December 31, 2006, net of
approximately $1.5 million of expenses related to this plan that were reversed in 2005. As of December 31, 2006,
approximately $10.0 million had been paid out. Approximately $1.5 million of expenses were recognized in
2006. There is no other activity expected in relation to this plan. The remaining accrual relating to the 2004 plan
is immaterial to the accompanying balance sheet as of December 31, 2006.

The 2003 plan involved the termination of certain management and other employees as well as certain sales
representative firms in the United States. Internal sales employees replaced these sales representative firms. In
total, 32 employees, from various departments within the Company, were terminated as part of this program. All
terminated employees and sales representative firms were notified in the period in which the charge was
recorded. Expenses related to the plan total approximately $1.7 million to date, which includes $0.6 million
related to the accelerated vesting on certain options making them immediately exercisable upon termination. As
of December 31, 2006, approximately $1.0 million had been paid out related to this plan. There is no other
activity expected in relation to this plan. The remaining accrual relating to the 2003 plan is immaterial to the
accompanying balance sheet as of December 31, 2006.
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Following is a summary of the restructuring accrual relating to the 2006, 2005, 2004 angd 2003 plans
(in miltions):

Lease Facility Legal Fees
Severance Termination Relocation and Other
Costs Costs Costs Costs Total
Balance at January 1, 2004 $0.7 $0.2 $— $— $0.9
2004 EXPENSe . ..o e 1.7 0.2 — — 79
2004 Paid . ... e (3.4) (0.1) — — (3.5)
Balance at December 31, 2004 5.0 0.3 —_ — 53
2005 EXPEOSE .\ttt e 5.1 — — 1.7 6.8
2005 Paid ... . e 4.0) {0.1) — (1.7 (5.8)
2005 Reserve Reversal ... ... ... ... ............. (1.3) {0.2) — — (1.5)
Balance at December 31, 2005 4.8 —_ —_ — 4.8
2000 Expense ... 3.6 4.7 — 83
2000Paid ... ... e “.5 — {4.2) — 8.7
2006 Reserve Reversal ... ... inninennnneann. (0.6) —_ — — (0.6)
Balance at December 31, 2006 $33 $— $05 $— 38

15. Purchase of the Ultra-Low Power (ULP) six-transistor (6T) SRAM and medical System-on-Chip (SOC)
ASIC businesses of NanoAmp Solutions, Inc.

On September 8, 2006, the Company acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of the Ultra-Low
Power (ULP) six-transistor (6T) SRAM and medical System-on-Chip (8OC) ASIC businesses of NanoAmp
Solutions, Inc, for approximately $21.0 million in cash. NanoAmp Solutions specializes in low-voltage and ULP
memory and ASIC solutions for the wireless communication, industrial, medical and networking market
segments. Under conditions of the sale, structured as an asset purchase, the Company employed approximately
25 people in the United States, Korea and Taiwan.

The following is a summary of the preliminary allocation of the purchase price of NancAmp Solutions
(in millions):

INVENIONY, B . . e $ 22
Property, plant and equipment . .......... ... i e 0.3
Deferred taK aSSel . ... oottt e e s 0.1
Acquisition-related intangible assets .. ... ... L i e 16.7
Goodwill . .o 26
Other current l1abilities . ... .. .ot it i it it e 0.9)
Total purchase price allocated ... ... ... i et $21.0

The value of the identifiable intangible assets was determined by management, which utilized, among other
factors, an independent appraisal by an independent financial consulting firm, LECG, LI.C. Goodwill related to
the acquisition is allocated to the Integrated Mixed Signal Products segment. The following is a detail of the
acquisition-related intangible assets acquired in the NanoAmp Acquisition (in millions);

Useful Life

Total Yalue in Years
Customer relationships . .. ....... .. ... ... ..., e e § 57 7-10
Proprietary technology . ... it e 9.2 5-10
Patents .. e e 1.5 5-10
CONMIACT . . . ot et e e e e 0.1 5
Non-compete agreement . ... ....ouuntninneireiian e e 0.2 2
Total acquisition-related intangible assets . ........................... 516.7




The final purchase price and resulting allocation is dependent upon management completing the analysis of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The results of operations related to NanoAmp have been included in the
Company’s statement of income since the acquisition date.

16. Purchase of certain assets of Starkey Laboratories’ integrated circuit design center

On July 14, 2006, the Company purchased certain assets of Starkey Laboratories’ integrated circuit design
center located in Colorado Springs, Colorado, for approximately $6.0 million in cash. This design center designs
specialized, low power audiology integrated circuits used in Starkey’s hearing aids. As part of the acquisition,
approximately 20 mixed signal and digital signal processing designers joined the Company. In conjunction with
this transaction, the parties entered into a long-term supply agreement whereby the Company will become the
principal supplier of products for use in Starkey’s hearing aids.

The following is a summary of the preliminary allocation of the purchase price of Starkey Laboratories’
integrated circuit design center (in millions):

Acquisition-related intangible assets . ........ ... ... $6.2
Other current liabilities .. ... ... . e 0.2)
Total purchase price allocated . ........ .. . . ... i 560

The acquisition-related intangible assets consist of customer relationships, which will be amortized over a
ten vear pericd. Goodwill related to the acquisition is allocated to the Integrated Mixed Signal Products segment.

The final purchase price and resulting allocation is dependent upon management completing the analysis of
liabilities assumed. The results of operations related to Starkey have been included in the Company’s statement
of income since the acquisition date.

17. Purchase of the Semiconductor Business of Flextronics International USA Inc.

On September 9, 2005, AMI Semiconductor, Inc., Emma Mixed Signal CV, and AMI Semiconductor Israel,
LTD, subsidiaries of the Company, acquired substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of the
semiconductor business of Flextronics International USA, Inc. and certain of its affiliates (the “Flextronics
Semiconductor Business™) for approximately $138.5 million in cash plus other liabilities including acquisition-
related expense and exit-related liability costs. The purchase price reflects the estimate of restructuring costs,
accrued pursuant to EITF No. 95-3, “Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business
Combination,” the Company expects to incur associated with this acquisition. An immaterial accrual for
restructuring costs remains on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2006
for the relocation of Flextronics™ San Jose test operations to the Far East.

The following is a surmmary of the Flextronics Acquisition purchase price (in millions);

Cash paid to Flextronics International USAINC, .. ..ottt iiin i $138.5
Acquisition-related expenses ... .. ... ... 54
Receivable from Flextronics for a working capital adjustment . ............. ... ... ..... (5.2)

Exit-related liability coSts . ... ... . . e 1.1
Operating liabilities assumed (including accounts payable, deferred revenue and other
current Habilities) . . ... . 7.2

Total PUICNASE PIICE . . .\ttt et e $147.0
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The following table sets forth the allocations of the total consideration paid in the Flextronics Acquisition
(in mitlions):

Trade accounts receivable, MBL .. . ... .o ittt it et e $ 10.7
IOVENIOrY, ML . .. i e e 42
313 (7 110 0. £ T 1.2
Deferred tax GSSET . . . ..\t i ittt i e e e 22
OTher CUMTENE ASSETE 1 4 vt - v v v e ettt et et it et aa e a et 0.4
Property, plant and eqUIPMENt . ... ...t tn ottt i 4.4
Acquisition-related intangible assets ... ... ... oo 65.2
In-process research and development . ............ . oot 0.8
GoodWIIl ... e i et 579
Total purchase price allocated ... ... ... i e $147.0

The value of identifiable intangible assets was determined by management which utilized, among other
factors, an independent appraisal by an independent financial consulting firm, LECG, LLC. The allocation of
costs to goodwill was determined to be $57.9 miilion. Of this amount, $32.5 million was allocated to the
Integrated Mixed Signal Products reporting unit, $20.8 million to the Image Sensors Products reporting unit and
$4.6 million to the Structured Digital Products reporting unit. In total, $53.3 million was allocated to the
Integrated Mixed Signal segment and the remainder to the Structured Digital Products segment. In connection
with the purchase, a charge of $0.8 million for in-process research and development was recorded in 2005. The
following is a detail of the acquisition-related intangible assets acquired in the Flextronics Acquisition (in
millions):

Total Useful Life

Value in Years
Customer relationships ... ... ..ot $35.7 8
Proprietary technology ... ..ottt i e e 25.2 4
T U= 11 24 10
NON-COmpete agreemient . . ... ... vt eennnnr oty 1.9 3
Total acquisition-related intangible assets ............ .. e, $65.2

The results of operations related to Flextronics have been included in the Company's statement of income
since the acquisition date.

18. Acquisition of Dspfactory Lid.

On November 12, 2004, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of
Dspfactory Lid., (“Dspfactory”) headquartered in Waterloo, Ontario, Canada. Dspfactory develops and markets
ultra-miniature and ultra-low power digital signal processing solutions for audio devices targeting the medical
and consumer markets. As part of the acquisition, the Company also acquired all of the common stock of
Dspfactory’s wholly-owned subsidiary, dspfactory S.A., located in Neuchatel, Switzerland. Excluding cash
acquired of approximately $0.2 million, the Company paid approximately $27.0 million in cash, including fees
and expenses, and approximately 1.3 million shares of common stock, with a value of approximately
$16.6 million, based on a stock price of $12.61 per share. The purchase price of approximately $43.6 million was
allocated as follows (in millions):

Net tangible liabilities ... ... ...t i e $(0.D)
Intangible assets ... .. ... e 28.5
GoodwWill . . . e e e e e 15.2
Ol . . oot et e e e $43.6




The value of the identifiable intangible assets was determined by management, which utilized, among other
factors, an independent appraisal by an independent financial consulting firm, LECG, LLC. Goodwill related to
the acquisition is allocated to the Integrated Mixed Signal Products segment. In connection with the purchase, a
charge of approximately $1.5 million for in-process research and development was recorded in the fourth quarter
of 2004. The following is a detail of the acquisition-related intangible assets acquired {in millions):

Useful Life
Total Value in Years

Customer relationships . ... ... .. e $10.1 4-10
Proprietary technology . ........ ... .. ... .. 12.6 3
3617 o P 34 10

I Ta T T 2.0 10
Non-compete agreement . ... ...t inr i 0.4 2
Total acquisition-related intangibleassets . ..... ... ... ... ... .... $28.5

A provision for additional purchase price consideration of $8.5 million in common stock was payabie in
whole or in part upon the achievement of certain revenue milestones in 2005 or 2006. Based on 2005 revenues,
the additional purchase consideration was earned in full, and was paid in 0.9 million shares of common stock
during the second quarter of 2006.

The results of operations related to Dspfactory have been included in the Company’s statement of income
since the acquisition date.

19. Operating Segments and Geographic Information

The Company designs, develops, manufactures and sells custom and semi-custom integrated circuits of high
complexity, The Company focuses on setling its integrated circuits primarily to original equipment
manufacturers in the automotive, medical and industrial markets through worldwide direct sales, commissioned
representatives and distributors.

The Company has two reportable segments: Integrated Mixed Signal Products and Structured Digital
Products. Each segment is composed of product families with similar technological requirements. In the third
quarter of 2003, in conjunction with a reorganization, the Company determined that it had these two reportable
segments, rather than the three it previously reported under. Prior periods have been adjusted to reflect these new
segments,

Integrated Mixed Signal Products: designs, manufactures and markets system-level integrated mixed
signal products using the Company’s proprietary wafer fabrication process technologies and the expertise of the
Company’s analog and mixed signal engineers. The Company also supplies mixed signal foundry services that
leverage current process technologies. The Company applies its mixed signal expertise primarily for sensors,
controls, high voltage outputs, applications utilizing digital signal processing, wireless or radio frequency
communication and low power.

Structured Digital Products: designs, manufactures and markets structured digital products, which involve
the conversion of higher cost field programmable gate arrays, or FPGAs, into lower cost digital semiconductors,
and medium complexity prime digital semiconductors, which are customized solutions developed directly from
customer specifications rather than from a pre-existing semi-standard integrated circuits. Opportunities are
focused on the mid-range of production volumes, where the Company believes it can create the most value for its
customers,

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. Management evaluates performance based on income or loss from operations before share-
based compensation expense, restructuring charges, interest, nonrecurring gains and losses and income taxes.
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The Company’s wafer manufacturing facilities fabricate integrated circuits for all business units as
necessary and their operating costs are reflected in the segments’ cost of revenues on the basis of product costs.
Because operating segments are defined by the products they design and sell, they do not make sales to each
other, Management does not report assets or track expenditures on long-lived assets by operating segments.

Information about segments (in millions):

Integrated Structured

Mixed Signal Digital
Products Products Total

Year ended December 31, 2006:

Net revenue from external customers . ................. £471.0 $134.6 $605.6

Segment operating income . ....... ... .. ..o iaia.... 45.5 28.0 73.5
Year ended December 31, 2005:

Net revenue from external customers .. ...........c..... $393.2 $110.4 $503.6

Segment operating income .. ........ .. il 44.8 27.6 72.4
Year ended December 31, 2004:

Net revenue from external customers .................. $397.7 $119.6 $517.3

Segment operating income . .............. ..o 71.7 229 94.6

Reconciliation of segment information to financial statements as of December 31 (in millions):

2006 2005 2004

Total operating income for reportable segments ...................... $735 §$724 39406
Restructuring and impairmentcharges . .. .. ... ... ... oo (8.3 5.3 (7.9
Share-based compensation ........... ..o 7.9 — —_

OPErating iNCOMIE . . . ..ottt et e e et e ettt e $57.3  $67.1  $86.7

There are intercompany sales and transfers recorded between geographical subsidiaries. Major operations
outside the United States include fabrication facilities, sales offices and technology centers in Canada, Europe
and Asia-Pacific, as well as subcontract assembly and test operations in the Asia-Pacific region. Foreign
operations are subject to risks of economic and political instability and foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations.

Transfers between geographic areas are accounted for at amounts that are generally above cost and
consistent with the rules and regulations of governing tax authorities. Such transfers are eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements. Although assets are tracked by geographical locations, they are not segregated
by reportable segment nor reported separately for internal decision-making purposes.

Geographic information about revenue based on shipments to customers by region is as follows for the years
ended December 31 (in millions):

2006 2005 2004
Geographic information:
Revenue(l):

United States ... ..ottt e $2294 %1926 $186.1

Other North America ...t 23.2 214 31.8

Europe ... ... i s 211.7 190.3 2139

Asia-Pacific ... ... . . e e 141.3 99.3 B5.5

Subtotal Non-United States .. .......... ... ... ..., 376.2 311.0 331.2
Total .o e e e e $605.6 §503.6 $317.3

(1) Revenue is attributed to geographic regions based on the shipments to customers located in those regions.
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21. Subsequent Event (Unaudited)

On February 1, 2007, the Company announced a restructuring plan to reduce costs through a consolidation
of design centers and a workforce reduction. The restructuring plan includes a workforce reduction of
approximately 80—85 employees world-wide, representing approximately 3 percent of its total workforce. As
part of this reduction, the Company will be closing design centers in: Eilat, Israel; Panningen, The Netherlands;
Carlsbad, California; and India. The Company anticipates these actions along with other business changes will
result in annual cost savings of approximately $10 million when fully implemented by the end of the first quarter
2007. A restructuring charge, expected to range between $6.0 million and $7.0 million, is anticipated to be
recorded in the first quarter of 2007. This charge will reflect expenses associated with the workforce reduction
and lease termination and other costs associated with closed facilities. Substantially all of the restructuring
charges are expected 1o be cash charges.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Controls and Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of December 31, 2006, and have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended)
were effective 1o ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their
objectives. However, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does
not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no
matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives
of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues
and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, other than described below, during
the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,

our internal control over financial reporting.

As described in more detail in our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, in the fourth
quarter of 2006, we have enhanced our internal control over financial reporting with regard to income taxes.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item with respect to directors, executive officers and corporate governance
is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for the 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which we
expect to file on or before May 17, 2007.

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics applicable to our directors, officers {including our
principal executive officer, principal financial officer and corporate controller) and employees, known as the
Code of Ethics. The Code of Ethics is available on our website at www.amis.com/investor_relations/
corporate_governance.html. In the event that we amend or waive certain provisions of the Code of Ethics
applicable to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer or controller, or our other executive
officers or directors, we intend to disclose the same on our website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our 2007 proxy statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our 2007 proxy statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our 2007 proxy statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our 2007 proxy statement.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
{a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:
(1) Financial Statements. See the “Index to Financial Statements” in Item 8.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules. All financial statement schedules for which provision is made in
the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required
under the related instructions, are inapplicable, or the required information has been provided in
the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits, See Exhibit Index.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AMIS HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/  DaviD A. HENRY

David A. Henry
Chief Financial Officer
Date; February 28, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated have signed this report below.

Signature

/s/  CHRISTINE KING

Christine King

/s/ DaviD A. HENRY

David A. Henry

fs/  DIPANIAN DEB

Dipanjan Deb

/s/ COLIN SLADE

Colin Slade

/sf  WILLIAM N. STARLING, JR.

William N. Starling, Jr.

/s/ PauL C. SCHORR IV

Paul C. Schorr 1V

fs/ S, ATIQ Raza

S. Atig Raza

Is/  DAVID STANTON

David Stanton

/s/  JaMES A. URRY

James A, Urry

Title

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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February 28, 2007

February 28, 2007
February 28, 2007
February 28, 2007
February 28, 2007
February 28. 2007
February 28, 2007

February 28, 2007




Exhibit Index

Exhibit No. Document
3.1  Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of AMIS Holdings, Inc., as amended (3)
32 Amended and Restated By-Laws of AMIS Holdings, Inc. (19)
4.1  Indenture dated as of January 29, 2003 among AMI Semiconductor, Inc., AMIS Holdings, Inc., AMI
Acquisition LLC, AMI Acquisition [I LLC and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, N.A. (1)
4.2 Form of Certificate of Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of AMIS Holdings, Inc. (2)

10.1  Credit Agreement dated as of December 21, 2000 among the Company, AMIS Holdings, Inc.
{formerly named AMI Holdings, Inc.), the lenders party thereto and Credit Suisse First Boston
Corporation, as Collateral Agent and Administrative Agent (the “Credit Agreement™) (3)

10.2  Global Assignment and Acceptance and Amendment dated as of February 20, 2001 relating to the
Credit Agreement (3)

10.3 Amendment No. 2, Waiver and Agreement dated as of February 6, 2002, relating to the Credit
Agreement (3)

10.4  Amendment No. 3, Consent, Wavier and Agreement dated as of May 2, 2002, relating to the Credit
Agreement (3)

10.5 Amendment No. 4, Waiver and Agreement dated as of September 6, 2002, relating to the Credit
Agreement (3)

10.6  Summary of Director Compensation (16)

*10.7  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of August 15, 2001 by and between AMIS
Holdings, Inc. and Christine King (13)

10.8  First Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement among AMIS Holdings, Inc. and the holders
named therein (4)

10.9  Supply Agreement between STMicroelectronics, NV and AMI Semiconductor Belgium BVBA dated
June 26, 2002 (8)

10.10  Form of warrant held by Merchant Capital, Inc. to purchase shares of common stock of AMIS
Holdings, Inc. (8)
10.11  Form of warrant held by Nippon Mining Holdings, Inc. (formerly Japan Energy Electronic Materials,
Inc.) to purchase shares of common stock of AMIS Holdings, Inc. (8)
10.12  Agreement dated May 8, 2002 between AMI Semiconductor Belgium BVBA, AMI Semiconductor,
Inc. and STMicroelectronics NV for the acquisition of the business of the Mixed Signal Division of
Alcatel Microelectronics (8}
10.13  Advisory Agreement dated December 21, 2000 by and between AMI Holdings, Inc., AMI Spinco
Inc. and Francisco Partners GP, LLC (8)
10.14  Advisory Agreement dated December 21, 2000 by and between AMI Holdings, Inc., AMI Spinco,
Inc. and TBW LLC (8)
*10.15  Amended and Restated AMIS Holdings, Inc. 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (12)
10.16  Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and executive officers of AMIS Holdings, Inc. (13)
*10.17  Appendix to the Minutes of the General Shareholders’ Meeting regarding the Appointment of

Mr. Walter Mattheus in the Office of Compensated Director of AMI Semiconductor Belgium BVBA
dated June 26, 2002 (8)
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Exhibit No.

Document

10.18

*10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22

10.23

*10.24
*10.25
*10.26
*10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
*10.31
*10.32

*10.33
*10.34
10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38
10.39
*10.40
10.41
10.42

Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated June 26, 2002 between STMicroelectronics NV
and AMI Semiconductor, Inc.; Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated June 26, 2002
between Alcatel Microelectronics NV and AMI Semiconductor, Inc. (14)

Amended and Restated AMIS Holdings, Inc. 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (15)
Amendment No. 1 to the Advisory Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.21 (13)
Amendment No. 1 to the Advisory Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.22 (13)

Asset Purchase Agreement dated September 9, 2004 among AMI Semiconductor, Inc., Emma
Mixed Signal C.V., AMI Semiconductor Canada Company, AMIS Holdings, Inc., Dspfactory Ltd.
and the other parties named therein (5)

Share Purchase Agreement dated September 9, 2004 among AMI Semiconductor Netherlands
B.V., AMIS Holdings, Inc., Dspfactory Ltd. and the other parties named therein (3)

Key Manager Incentive Plan for 2006 (16)

Form of 2000 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement (Nonstatutory Stock Option) (6)
Key Manager Incentive Plan for 2004, as amended (16}

Key Manager Incentive Plan for 2005 (7)

Amendment No. | to the First Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement (15)

Contract of Lease, as amended (15)

Memorandum of Agreement, as amended (15)

Terms of Compensation Arrangement with Jon Stoner

Employment Agreement dated as of July 26, 2005 by and between AMIS Holdings, Inc. and
Christine King (9}

Terms of Compensation Arrangement with Charlie Lesko
Terms of Compensation Arrangement with David Henry

Credit Agreement dated as of April 1, 2005, among AMIS Holdings, inc., AMI Semiconductor,
Inc., the lenders party thereto and Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation as Collateral Agent and
Administrative Agent (10)

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of September 9, 2005, between AMI Semicenductor, Inc,
Emma Mixed Signal C.V., AMI Semiconductor [srael Ltd., AMIS Holdings, Inc. and Flextronics
Semiconductor, Inc.. Flextronics International USA, Inc., Flextronics Semiconductor Ltd. (UK},
Flextronics Semiconductor Lid., Peripheral Imaging Corporation, KMOS Semiconductor, Inc., and
Flextronics Semiconductor Design, Inc. (11)

Amendment No. | Consent, Waiver and Agreement dated August 19, 2005, to the Credit
Agreement dated as of April 1, 2005 (11)

Agreement in Principle(16)

Schneider Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release (17)

Summary of Compensation Arrangement with Ted Tewksbury (18)

Letter of Intent to Acquire 6T Memory Business of NanoAmp Solutions, Inc. (18)

Asset Purchase Agreement between AMI Semiconductor, Inc. and NanoAmp Solutions, Inc. dated

September 8, 2006 (18)
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Exhibit No.

Document

*1
*]

|

*]

ey

(2)

3)

(4)

(5}

(6}

N

(8

®

(10)

(1n

(12)

(13)

0.43 Form of US Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (18)

0.44 Form of Change of Control Agreement (18)

0.45 Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement

0.46 Key Manager Incentive Plan for 2007

21.1 Direct and Indirect Subsidiaries of AMIS Holdings, Inc.

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

311 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

32.2 Section 1350 Centification of Chief Financial Officer
This Exhibit constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement,
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our registration statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-103070) filed
on February 10, 2003,
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our registration statement on Form S-1/A (No. 333-108028)
filed on September 22, 2003,
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our registration statement on Form $-4/A (No. 333-103070)
filed on May 13, 2003,
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 25, 2004.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our current report on Form 8-K dated October 1, 2004, filed on
February 7, 2005.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibit to our current report on Form 8-K dated February 16, 2005 filed on
February 22, 2005.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the registration statement on Form $-4/A (No. 333-103070) of
AMI Semiconductor, Inc, filed on June 2, 2003.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our current report on Form 8-K dated July 26, 20035, filed on
August |, 2005.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
April 2, 2005.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
October 1, 2005.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 27, 2003).
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our registration statement on Form S-1/A (No. 333-108028)
filed on September 18, 2003.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the registration statement on Form $-4/A (No. 333-103070) of

(14)

AMI Semiconductor, Inc. filed on June 13, 2003.
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(15)
(16)
(17}
(18)

(19)

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004,

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended
April 1, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our current report on Form 8-K dated April 10, 2006, filed on
April 14, 2006,
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Reconciliations From GAAP Financial Measures to Non-GAAP Financial Measures

in Millions

GAAP Gross Margin to Non-GAAP Gross Margin

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
GAAPRevenue .......c.coiiviiiininnnn, $3453 $4542 35173 $303.6 $605.6
GAAP Costof Revenue _................0.uu. 2149 2554 271.0 266.4 3345
GAAPGrossProfit . ..., $130.4 $198.8 $2463 $237.2 %2711
GAAPGrossMargin ..., 378% 438% 47.6% 47.1% 44.8%
Non-GAAP Adjustment to Cost of Revenue:

Share-Based Compensation ................ — — — — 0.8
Non-GAAP Costof Revenue . ................ 2149 255.4 271.0 266.4 333.7
Non-GAAPGross Profit ........ ... ... ..., $130.4 $198.8 $2463 $2372 %2719
Non-GAAP Gross Margin . .................. 378% 438% 476% 47.1% 449%

GAAP Operating Profit to Non-GAAP Operating Profit
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
GAAP Operating Profit .......................... $17.6 3302 $86.7 $67.1  $57.3
GAAP Operating Margin . ........................ 51% 66% 168% 133% 9.5%
Non-GAAP Adjustments to Operating Profit:

Impairment of Intangible Assets ................. —_— 20.0 — — —

Advisory Agreement Amendment ................ — 8.5 — — —

Compensation Expense on Preferred Stock

Options . ... vt e — 29 — — —

Amortization of Acquisition-Related Intangible

ASSEIS L.t e 8.1 4.8 1.4 9.0 18.0

In-Process Research and Development ............ — — 1.5 0.8 —

Restructuring EXpenses . ...........vvvvirraan. 0.6 1.7 7.8 5.3 8.3

Share-Based Compensation ..................... — — — — 7.8
Non-GAAP Operating Profit ...................... $26.3 $68.1 $974 $82.2 $914
Non-GAAP Operating Margin ..................... 7.6% 150% 18.8% 163% 15.1%
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and lnquiries
Communications regarding
investor records, including
duplicate mailings, changes of
address or ownership, transfer
of shares, and lost certificates,
should be directed to the

Company's stock transfer agent

identified above.
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directed to the Company's
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Wade Olsen
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2300 Buckskin Road
Pocatello, ldaho 83201

Tel: 208-234-6045
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Forward Looking Statement

Stataments in this Annual Report ather than stataments of historical fact are “forward-looking” statsments within the meaning of the Privats Sacurities Litigation Refornm Act of 1995. Thess forward-tocking
statermnants includa statements regarding our sxpectations, beliafs, outlook, or pradictions for future tinancial results, product introductians, technelogical ad b fits from op | actions, growth
opponunities within our targst markats, and success in the market. In soma casaes, you can identity forward-looking statemants by tarminology such a3 “may,;” “will” “should” “sxpscts” “plans] “1arget” “an-
ticipates” “belioves,” "astimates,” "predicts” “potential” “continuas” or the negative of thesa terms or other comparable terminciogy. Thess stataments ara only pradictions and speak only 43 of the date of this
repart. Thase forward-looking statamants are based largely on our cusrent expeciations and are subject to a number af rieks and uncertainties. Actual reaults could differ materially from these forward-locking
statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include failure 1o proparty axecute on the announced rastructuning plan, failure to operate our manufacturing facilities on a cost-sffac-

tive basis and in 8 mannar that avaids manufacturing defects and unnecessary scrap, the availability of required capacity at our key sub manut ing underutilization, changes in the conditions
affecting our target merkats, fluctuations in customar demand, timing and success of new preducts, competitive canditions in the semiconductor industry, faiture 10 suctessfully integrate the recently-scquired
Flextronics, Starkey and NanoAmp businesses, foss of key perscnnel, ganaeral aconamic and political uncertainty, diticns In the ductar industry, rate and hedging risks and othar rigks and
uncertainties indicated fram time t¢ time in our filings wath the U.S. Securities and Exchanges Commission, including our most recent Quarterly Report on Form 10-C and Annual Raport on Form 10-K. In light of

thewa risks and uncartaintiss, thare can be no assurance that the mattera raferred 1o in the forward-locking statements contained in this annual repart will In fact occur. Wa do not intend 1o publicly relsssa any
ravisions to thess farward-looking stataments to reflect avents or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated evants.
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